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Solid performance in 
challenging markets

Against the backdrop of diffi cult global market conditions in 2011, 
Ecclesiastical continued to make progress. Although a number of major 
natural catastrophes in Australasia affected our Group results, the 
underlying result for the year was satisfying under the circumstances. 
Our ordinary grant to our charitable owner, Allchurches Trust, rose from 
£9.25 million to £10.25 million.

I am pleased to report that during the year we made good progress 
against the strategic areas which we identifi ed as priorities in last year’s 
Report. In particular, we successfully established our presence in the 
UK property investors market, where the strength of our proposition 
enabled us to compete and win high profi le business. We also 
succeeded in growing our niche commercial general insurance 
business in the UK and Ireland.

Elsewhere, our investment management business continued to do well, 
attracting net new funds of £142 million, and winning several awards in 
the process; and we further developed our owned broker businesses. 

We worked hard to enhance our governance framework, strengthening 
formal risk management processes and ensuring that independent and 
objective assurance is provided through developing our Group Internal 
Audit function.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Our Group Combined Operating Ratio (COR) was 105% 
(2010: 102%). 

After taking account of investment performance and other operations 
our pre-tax result was a £7.7 million loss (2010: £50.4 million profi t). 

Regulatory capital cover remains strong, at over 300% on the current 
enhanced capital measure. The Group is well placed to meet the new 
set of EU-wide regulatory capital requirements and risk management 
standards known as Solvency II which will be introduced progressively 
over the next few years. As previously reported, our 2011 underwriting 
result was adversely affected by both the severe fl oods and storms in 
Australia and the earthquakes in New Zealand. The latter led to the 
announcement in November of our managed withdrawal from the New 
Zealand market. This is progressing according to plan and our priority 
remains meeting claims as quickly and fairly as possible. 

As I write, however, the total cost of claims for our New Zealand 
subsidiary in relation to the Canterbury earthquakes continues to 
evolve. Due to the complexity of events it will take some considerable 
time for the fi nal level to be established, and we are still assessing 
the situation. 

We have engaged a team of experienced catastrophe claim 
professionals to help us make accurate assessments of 
potential claims. 

Our focus remains on providing a good claims service to affected 
customers and on balancing the interests of all those concerned.

Looking back on the year, I am deeply grateful to all our staff for all 
their hard work and, in particular, the way in which they have addressed 
the various challenges they have faced. We approach our 125th year in 
the spirit of thanksgiving and service to which we have been dedicated 
since our foundation in 1887. 

Will Samuel
Chairman

Resilient to global 
challenges
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Ecclesiastical has naturally experienced a great deal of change in 
125 years. We have grown to the point where our annual turnover is 
around £0.5 billion. We offer insurance protection to other faiths, 
charities, social enterprises, educational and nursing establishments 
and heritage property owners. We have worked with brokers to create 
tailored schemes for specialist groups of customers and we have 
diversifi ed through acquiring insurance businesses overseas and 
brokers in the UK.   

Over the past fi ve years, we have given over £55 million to our 
charitable owner, Allchurches Trust.

Throughout the past 125 years we have used our skills and experience 
to provide reassurance and advice to those we serve. As a charity-
owned, specialist insurance and fi nancial services company, we seek 
to provide good advice, relevant expertise and caring protection. 

We have been making a difference to our customers and communities 
for 125 years. We are committed to continuing to do so in the years 
to come.

125TH ANNIVERSARY

125 years making a difference
125 years is a signifi cant milestone for any organisation. It is a moment 
that prompts refl ection on what has been achieved during those years.

The Ecclesiastical Buildings Fire Offi ce, as it was known when it was 
founded in 1887, was established to protect Anglican churches and 
church buildings from the consequences of fi re, and to distribute profi ts 
from this activity to help the charitable work of the church. Today, 
although Ecclesiastical insures many more risks for a wider range of 
organisations and people who care about contributing to society, our 
fundamental purpose of service to the community remains unchanged. 
It is this clarity of purpose and unity of spirit that forms the basis of 
our strength.

Insurance for 
organisations and 
people who care 

since 1887
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Introduction
Over the course of 2011 we continued to make progress and grow our 
business in a turbulent fi nancial environment and highly competitive 
insurance market. We also faced a number of major natural 
catastrophes, which signifi cantly impacted our underwriting result for 
the year. 

Against this backdrop, the business performed well. We have been able 
to hone our strategy and maintain focus on the major initiatives required 
to move Ecclesiastical forward. These form the major elements of our 
ongoing change programme for the coming year and beyond. 

REVIEW OF GROUP OPERATIONS

£m 2011 2010

Turnover1 498.8 506.6

Results:

  General insurance (16.1) (5.9)

  Investments 8.5 60.2

   Long-term 
insurance

0.7 (1.6)

  Broking 2.2 2.0

  Advisory (2.1) (1.8)

  Other2 (0.9) (2.5)

(Loss)/profi t before 
tax

(7.7) 50.4

Shareholders’ funds 436.1 456.9

COR (%) 105.4 102.0

1 Turnover of the Group incorporates general and life insurance GWP, and fee and commission income 
generated by our investment management, broking and advisory operations

2 ‘Other’ costs include amortisation of intangible assets on business acquisitions, and one-off corporate 
costs in the prior year

Brisbane fl ood of 2011



11Ecclesiastical Insurance Offi ce plc

Organisational and operating structures 
During the year we made a number of changes to our organisational 
and operating structures. On 1 January 2011, we transferred to 
Ecclesiastical the business of our UK subsidiary Ansvar Insurance 
Company Limited under a Part VII transfer as part of our strategy 
to reduce the number of companies within the Group. Ansvar now 
operates as a business division in the UK. 

We also restructured our UK general insurance operations, with 
a number of the support functions being more aligned with the 
business units. 

In April, the Group launched a new property investors proposition into 
the London market. This move built upon our existing skills and 
expertise and the Group’s strong reputation as a property insurer. It is 
serviced by a specialist team of experienced property underwriters 
based in our London offi ce.

Since the launch we have established ourselves as a credible 
alternative to those UK insurers who have traditionally dominated this 
market, and we achieved strong premium growth in 2011. We are 
targeting further premium growth in this sector in 2012, both in London 
and the regions. Underwriting control will remain with our dedicated 
team in London to ensure the quality of business written is maintained.

Alongside our managed withdrawal from the New Zealand market, 
we have refocused our Australian business, withdrawing from the 
intermediated personal lines business. 

We have continued to diversify the Group by growing all other areas 
of the business, including the management of third party investments, 
our owned broker businesses and long-term insurance supporting 
retail funeral plan sales; and we have expanded our fi nancial 
advisory operations.

As might be expected, our online presence has been growing: the 
volume of our business transacted via the internet more than doubled 
during the year. 

Financial performance
Gross Written Premium (GWP) for our general insurance businesses 
grew by 4% to £465 million (when excluding our London Market 
run-off business, EUML, from the current and prior year fi gures). This 
growth was broadly in line with our plans, despite the relatively static 
general insurance rating environment.  

Our general insurance businesses were affected particularly by the 
Australian weather and the New Zealand earthquake events during 
the year, further detailed later in this review. The greatest devastation 
resulted from the February aftershock in Christchurch, and gross 
claims incurred exceeded the previous year’s largest ever recorded 
for the Group. 

To date, the reinsurance programme has responded well to contain net 
costs for this event. However, as noted earlier, claims continue to evolve 
and the Board has considered a range of contingent risk management 
actions to help manage the risk of further adverse developments 
should these occur. 

In November, we announced our intention to make an orderly 
withdrawal from New Zealand in 2012. Our underlying Group COR, 
which has been calculated excluding the exceptional losses in 
Australasia and related catastrophe reinsurance costs, was 97.5%, 
broadly in line with our long-term target. 

Elsewhere, strong profi ts generated by the property account in the UK 
were partly offset as the frequency and cost of liability claims continued 
to escalate. 

Our owned brokers continued to grow and made increased profi t 
contributions.

Despite uncertainty in fi nancial markets, it is pleasing to report that our 
investment management business further developed as a standalone 
source of income and profi t to the Group. 

As part of our continuing commitment to our charitable owner, 
Allchurches Trust, we increased the level of our underlying grant to 
them to £10.25 million (2010: £9.25 million, plus a special grant of 
£10 million), enabling them to support more good causes.

Our general insurance 
businesses responded well to 
an exceptional run of natural 

catastrophes in Australasia
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Results of key operations
General insurance 

Our UK general insurance operations, including the Ansvar business 
division, grew in line with our plans during the year in what remains a 
challenging environment. GWP increased by 8% from £303 million to 
£326 million, adjusted on a management basis to remove our London 
Market business, which is now in run-off and reported within the ‘Other’ 
general insurance segment. 

In addition to the expansion of our product offering, which generated 
high profi le business wins, retention levels remain high within our core 
niches, reinforcing our position as a credible insurer in these sectors. 

We continue to improve our sales and underwriting capability to ensure 
risk selection is based on sound underwriting principles. The 
development of our academy programme to support this objective is 
discussed under the ‘Our People’ heading further on in this review.

Underwriting action was taken on the motor account in the UK 
following the losses reported in 2010. Rating increases have been 
achieved in specifi c areas of the account, and risk selection has 
become more sophisticated. Both of these factors contributed to a 
signifi cant improvement in performance. The property account results 
returned to a healthy profi t, with milder winter weather at the latter end 
of the year. Liability claims continue to escalate both in frequency and 
cost due to a signifi cant increase in ‘slip and trip’ claims and increases 

Expansion of our 
product offering
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in the number of latent abuse claims. We are taking action to improve 
profi tability in the current poorest performing areas, notably in the care 
sector.

Increased brand awareness in Ireland has enabled us to grow in our 
target markets. We achieved 8% GWP growth overall despite uncertain 
economic conditions. As in the UK, 2011 claims were much less severe 
compared with the freezing weather events which adversely impacted 
the prior year’s performance. We have identifi ed opportunities for 
further growth in Ireland, and have appointed a new Managing Director, 
David Lane, who will be responsible for the delivery of our future plans.  

Our Ansvar subsidiaries in Australasia suffered a number of natural 
catastrophes during the year which severely impacted profi t, due to the 
increased number and cost of claims and also through additional 
reinsurance costs to back-up and reinstate cover. Of the overall £16.9 
million underwriting loss for this territory, the Australia business 
contributed a loss of £11.8 million largely relating to the fl oods and 
storms in Queensland and Victoria, along with Cyclone Yasi, all of which 
occurred in January and February 2011. 

Our New Zealand business incurred an unusually high level of claims 
from three signifi cant earthquake aftershocks in the Canterbury region. 
The total gross claims cost from the earthquakes stretching across 
2010 and 2011, which continues to evolve, is estimated at 
NZ$0.8 billion at the end of 2011, with this estimated total covered by 
our group catastrophe reinsurance programme. The net overall 
underwriting result for New Zealand in 2011 was a loss of 
£5.1 million.

The series of earthquakes in New Zealand has signifi cantly increased 
the cost of reinsurance protection in this territory, making underwriting 
uneconomic for the size of our subsidiary. This prompted our decision 
to withdraw from underwriting within New Zealand and the business 
ceased being on risk from 1 January 2012. 

Alternative cover has been offered to Direct customers by Lumley 
Insurance and further back-up cover, excluding earthquake, from 
Ansvar in Australia.  

A claims operation will be maintained in New Zealand to manage the 
earthquake losses. This has been an extremely tough year for everyone 
affected, and we would like to thank our staff for their hard work and 
professionalism through such a diffi cult period. 

During the year we refocused the business in Australia and exited 
from intermediated personal lines business to concentrate on business 
within our core niches as planned. Growth in our target segments 
has been promising, and we have further strengthened the team in 
Australia to give a sharper focus on business development, 
underwriting disciplines and service delivery.  

In Canada, the tripartite customer relationship strategy, embedded 
globally, drove higher-than-average industry retention of 98% and also 
provided new customer referrals, delivering GWP of £34 million, an 
increase of approximately 16%. There were signifi cant new business 
successes within the core niches, particularly faith and education. 
However, a number of weather events increased the cost of claims, 
and, together with a spike in latent abuse claims, resulted in a small 
underwriting loss.

Overall, our run-off operations progressed satisfactorily, including 
savings recorded on the previous year large claims for our London 
Market business. However, after inclusion of central underwriting 
expenses and £5.8 million of Group reinsurance reinstatement and 
back-up costs, this segment reported a loss of £7.3 million.

The Group remains committed to reducing its expense ratio 
(underwriting expenses expressed as a proportion of GWP) and last 
year made progress against this objective. The one-off reductions in 
GWP relating to EUML and Australasia increased the expense ratio to 
18.6% (2010: 17.2%), excluding this the ratio remained at or below the 
2010 level across our other territories. We expect the changes we have 
made to bring further benefi ts in future. 

We successfully piloted a new servicing model in the UK Schemes 
area, and we will continue to roll this out across the UK businesses 
to increase effi ciency and improve service levels. We completed an 
external benchmarking exercise of all the key functions in the UK and 
identifi ed several opportunities to reduce costs within the business.  

We will continue to work to improve the way we operate and to expand 
our offering, including our internet capability, in order to enhance our 
reputation for customer service and make us fi rst choice for customers 
and business partners. 
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Investments

The performance of our investments in 2011 refl ects the turbulent 
market conditions that persisted throughout the year.

Despite the low level of economic growth, infl ation remained stubbornly 
above its target level throughout the year, refl ecting rising energy and 
food costs. 

The FTSE All Share Index fell by 6.7% (2010: +10.9%). The FTSE 100 
Index fell less sharply (5.6%), demonstrating its relative defensive 
properties compared with the falls of 12.6% and 14.9% in the more 
economically sensitive FTSE 250 Mid Cap Index and Small Cap Index 
respectively. Our UK equity portfolio outperformed these, refl ecting its 
defensive orientation. 

Overseas, the troubling fi nancial conditions of the Eurozone inevitably 
contributed to large falls in World indices. The March 2011 earthquake, 
tsunami and nuclear meltdown in Japan and various other factors 
served to stifl e the rate of expansion of the global economy, and our 
investments were not immune to the impact. 

Our low exposure to a stronger US performance also dampened our 
overall equity return. The Group pursues a long-term investment 
strategy, and is relatively well placed to cope with shorter-term periods 
of volatility. As a further defensive measure, during the year, and at year 
end, derivative contracts were put in place to limit losses in the event of 
a further substantial fall in equity markets.

The FTSE Government All Stocks Index rose 11.0% over the year 
(2010: +2.8%) refl ecting Bank of England intervention and investors’ 
desire for so-called ‘safe haven’ assets. Corporate bonds generally 
underperformed gilts, refl ecting the negative impact of lowered 
economic expectations and, notably, investor worries about the 
debilitating effects of the credit crisis on the fi nancial sector. 

In the UK, our gilt holdings rose less sharply than the market due to 
their shorter-dated profi le. Overseas, our bond-weighted portfolios 
generally benefi ted from the fact that the global turmoil tended to 
push yields down and market values up, in particular in Australia 
where we recorded gains.

Investment result - management basis

£m 2011 2010

Total return1 10.4 62.2

Investment 
expenses1

(3.1) (2.5)

Investment 
management 

1.2 0.5

Investment result 8.5 60.2

1 Management fi gures presented in this review relate to portfolio investments supporting the general 
insurance and life shareholder funds. Other Group investments, including those of the index-linked 
long-term insurance business, form part of the reviews of those operations

Total return by asset class, incorporating income 
and capital gains/(losses)

£m 2011 2010

Equities (7.7) 17.7

Ecclesiastical 
Investment Funds 
(EIF)

(10.5) 20.4

Debt securities 25.6 19.9

Property 2.2 1.8

Cash 2.5 3.4

Derivatives (3.5) (1.3)

Other, incl. exchange 
gains/(losses) 

1.8 0.3

Total 10.4 62.2
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* Allocation of equity holdings is stated excluding the impact of derivative protection. ‘EIF’ refers to 
holdings of Ecclesiastical Investment Funds, an OEIC managed by the Group which invests in a range 
of ethical and socially responsible investments.

Asset allocation
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Investment management

Ecclesiastical Investment Management (EIM) has been a key 
recent success story for the Group. We have reaped the rewards 
of effective marketing campaigns, becoming a recognised presence 
on fund platforms and growing our funds under management at an 
impressive rate.  

Our funds have continued to receive numerous awards. In particular our 
Amity International Fund was named Best in Sector over 5 years, 
Best Global Large-Cap Equity Fund and Best Global Growth Fund. 

Although 2011 was a diffi cult year for asset managers, our sales 
achievements were impressive, with £128 million net new funds added 
to the Ecclesiastical Investment Funds (up from £110 million in the 
previous year), and an additional £14 million invested in our newly 
launched special charity investment vehicle. EIM’s fee and commission 
income grew by 32% to £9.6 million, including £7.4 million in respect 
of managing external funds and the EIF, and profi t increased from 
£0.5 million to £1.2 million.
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Long-term insurance

2011 was the fi rst full year in which our life insurance business was 
focused solely on providing Whole of Life policies to support the funeral 
planning products made available by business partners such as the 
National Association of Funeral Directors. This mutually benefi cial 
relationship continued to generate strong growth. 

We increased GWP by some 40% to £19 million, while managing our 
expense base within planned levels. The fi nancial security and 
transparency of our offering is well regarded in the market, and 
compares well to alternatives where funeral pre-payment funds are 
invested in funeral plan trusts. Investment conditions, however, continue 
to prove challenging. The signifi cant fall in yields on those index-linked 
bonds in which we are required to invest reduced the available profi t 
margin, and adversely affected performance. On the other hand, we 
benefi ted from a number of one-off technical factors that led to an 
improvement in the pre-tax result, to a profi t of £0.7m. We have 
agreed changes to our management fee structure that are designed 
to improve profi tability.

Broking

We continued to grow our owned brokers ahead of plans in a 
competitive environment. Good progress was made in defi ning 
strategies which promote their independent success. 

South Essex Insurance Brokers (SEIB) continued to provide a steady 
income stream and is successfully providing diversifi cation of Group 
earnings, confi rming the strategic rationale for the purchase of this 
business. Both commission and profi t increased over 2011 despite the 
low rating conditions prevalent across the market. SEIB continues to 
build on its relationships with key customers and to grow in its 
established specialisms. 

Our aim of continually improving effi ciency whilst providing exceptional 
service was recognised by an award for Customer Service Provider of 
the Year.   

Our immediate parent Ecclesiastical Insurance Group increased its 
stake in Lycetts during the year and now holds a controlling stake of 
this business (56.2%). It is envisaged that this stake will increase 
further over the coming years. Lycetts continued to grow organically, 
with the strongest percentage growth in rural and bloodstock, the two 
largest divisions of the business. It also acquired Farmers and 
Mercantile Insurance Brokers during the year, increasing the reach of 
the operation. 

Our owned brokers present further opportunities for the Group in the 
years ahead.

Advisory

Ecclesiastical Financial Advisory Services (EFAS) provides independent 
fi nancial planning support and advice to the clergy and their families as 
well as to the Church and associated customer groups. Work has 
continued on developing our fee-based advice model to replace 
commission income in the lead-up to implementation of the Retail 
Distribution Review (RDR) in January 2013. 

Fee income has grown by 33%, and now represents 23% of new 
business income. In the current climate of uncertainty, we have seen 
a dip in investor confi dence that has delayed investment decisions. 

Prior to the introduction of RDR, we have been working to ensure that 
our people gain the necessary adviser qualifi cations. We expect all 
advisers to become DipFA QCF Level 4 qualifi ed in 2012. 

Governance
Our ongoing objective is to make sure our governance matches rapidly 
changing best practice. Although we are not legally required to apply 
the UK Corporate Governance Code, we comply with it voluntarily. 
During the year we revised the Terms of Reference of all of our 
Committees and increased the remit of the Group Remuneration 
Committee to encompass the requirements of the FSA Remuneration 
Code, to which EIM is already subject. 

We also strengthened the role of the Group Risk Committee and its 
reporting to the Group Audit Committee. Our Non-Executive Directors 
played an active part in this process.

During the year an overarching policy framework was adopted by 
all Group companies. This aims to ensure that policies are applied 
consistently across all Group operations in accordance with the 
Risk Framework. 

We strengthened our approach to Enterprise Risk Management with 
the appointment of a new Group Risk and Actuarial Director, and to 
Group Internal Audit with a new Director of Group Internal Audit and 
Compliance. Our Three Lines of Defence approach is set out in more 
detail in our Corporate Governance and Risk reports.
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Our people
Our people continue to be the heart and soul of Ecclesiastical. In 2011, 
we continued to invest in their development and well-being and to 
support them at every stage of their career with us. Our professional 
academy programme, led by our sales academy, went from strength 
to strength. 

Our academy approach – which includes underwriting and claims as 
well as sales – gives our people the technical skills and support they 
need to provide the standard of service expected by our customers, 
whilst maintaining our core disciplines. We also continue to invest in 
Community Relations programmes, which are separately detailed in 
this document and on our website.

Over 300 of our people attended ‘bite-size’ learning courses which 
provide short, accessible training on topics such as time management. 
Our ‘discovery’ talent-spotting programme is designed to recognise 
employees with potential. We are supporting those with the highest 
potential to take on projects outside their area of work to stretch and 
develop them. 

We also re-launched our induction programme to ensure those people 
joining our organisation get the very best experience in their fi rst 
months with us. During the year we took a diffi cult decision and, in line 
with many other companies, limited the accrual of future benefi ts under 
our closed fi nal salary pension scheme.

In 2011, we welcomed several new senior members to our team, and 
said goodbye to several too. Nigel Gray joined as our Group Risk and 
Actuarial Director and Caroline Taplin as our HR Director, both have 
joined our Group Executive Team; and John Schofi eld joined as 
Director of Group Internal Audit and Compliance. David Lane was 
appointed Managing Director for Ireland in January 2012 and also joins 
the Group Executive Team. 

We said goodbye to Kevin Bogue, our Group Risk and Actuarial 
Director, who had been with Ecclesiastical for more than 30 years; 
Graham Johnson, our Transformation Director; and Ronan Foley, 
Managing Director of our Ireland business. I would personally like to 
thank each of them for their hard work and dedication and wish them 
the best for the future.
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Awards
Our awards span various areas of our business. 

We have already mentioned three investment awards for our Amity 
International Fund which were from Lipper, Morningstar UK and 
Money Observer. 

In addition, the Higher Income Fund won Best in Sector over 3, 5 
and 10 years for the fi fth consecutive year from Lipper, and was 
runner-up for the Best Direct Mail Pack Award at the prestigious 
Money Marketing Awards. 

EIM won the Moneyfacts Best Ethical Investment Provider award for 
the third year running, and an Ethical Investment Association 
Transparency award, which recognised our work in becoming a 
signatory to the European Transparency Code. 

SEIB was named Customer Service Provider of the Year at Insurance 
Age UK Broker Awards 2011, and our sales academy won Employer 
Partner of the Year in the University of Gloucestershire Enterprise 
Awards. Our Group Credit Management team has received an 
accreditation for Quality in Credit Management, becoming the fi rst 
insurer to do so, while our Casualty Claims team won the Training and 
Development award in the Manchester Insurance Awards. 

We were shortlisted or runner-up in a long list of further awards 
including the UK Claims Excellence Awards, British Insurance Awards, 
Risk Management Awards and Underwriting Service Awards organised 
by Post Magazine.  

Outlook
Looking forward, the rating environment is showing no widespread 
signs of hardening. However, we made signifi cant progress in 2011 in 
improving both our operations and our governance, and I am confi dent 
that the actions we have taken will stand us in good stead as we 
pursue our objective to provide excellent, specialist expertise and 
distinctive service to all our customers.

Michael Tripp
Group Chief Executive

Award winners: 
Group Credit 

Management team
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Our purpose is to deliver, over the long-term, a sustainable and growing 
fi nancial return in the form of charitable grants and capital growth to 
our ultimate shareholder, Allchurches Trust. We aim to achieve growth 
by becoming the fi rst choice for customers and business partners in 
specifi c markets that fi t with our values and where we can leverage our 
experience and expertise to deliver the required fi nancial return. We 
also aim to become the employer of choice for current and prospective 
staff, as we believe that this is the best way to ensure we deliver a 
sustainable, growing earnings stream.

Our goals:
■   First Choice for Customers and Business Partners

■   Best Place to Work

■   Top Company Donor

STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

Building on our 
core strengths
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Insurance solutions 
tailored to meet the 

needs of brokers 
and customers

Promoting our specialist tailored 
schemes at the British Insurance 

Brokers Association Exhibition 2011
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Our Strategy

Strategic intent Operating as a specialist 
insurer and managing our 
business portfolio to maximise 
shareholder value

Delivering an exceptional 
experience to customers and 
business partners, focusing on 
customer intimacy as our key 
differentiator

Improving profi tability 
through disciplined claims and 
underwriting

Areas of focus We continue to operate as a specialist 
insurance and fi nancial services group 
leveraging our expertise to achieve 
competitive advantage based on added 
value rather than being price driven.  

Whilst the provision of general insurance 
will remain the Group’s principal activity, 
we will grow our broking, advisory and 
investment management operations to 
diversify the Group’s earnings sources.  

We will continue to manage the business 
portfolio in a proactive manner, investing 
in those areas where there are profi table 
growth opportunities available, and taking 
corrective action where businesses are 
not delivering the required return. 

We will meet customers’ and business 
partners’ needs better than the 
competition through our knowledge of 
their business and the quality of our 
products, services and advice.  

We deliver service excellence by 
employing great people who provide an 
outstanding personal service through their 
skills and attitude.

Through our academy we continue to 
enhance the professional sales culture 
within the organisation.

We focus our marketing on brokers 
and customers with business in our 
specialisms.

We strive always to be on our customers’ 
side. 

We will remain focused on a select 
number of target markets including faith, 
charity, heritage, education, care and 
property investors where we can leverage 
our experience and expertise to deliver 
superior fi nancial returns.

We will continually review our pricing, 
exposure and risk appetite to ensure 
underwriting profi tability adheres to our 
long-term Group COR target of 98%.

We will maintain underwriting discipline 
in soft market conditions by closely 
managing the underwriting cycle.

We will continue to take a proactive 
approach to managing claims with robust 
controls to minimise claims leakage.

How we 
measure success

■ Growth in GWP
■ Profi t before tax 
■ Return on shareholders’ equity

■ Customer and business partner 
satisfaction surveys 

■ Ranking achieved in industry-wide 
benchmarking surveys

■ Gross and net claims ratios
■ Underwriting and claims leakage targets
■ Net COR

Our progress in 2011 ■ Launched new insurance proposition 
into the property investors market and 
achieved a number of high profi le wins

■ Grew general insurance GWP by 4% 
(excluding EUML run-off operation), 
achieving 8% growth in our UK and Irish 
general insurance markets and 16% 
growth in Canada

■ Achieved 75% GWP growth from the 
Charity and Care online commercial 
products

■ 7% and 141% growth in the profi t 
contributions of our insurance broking 
and investment management businesses 
respectively

■ Our subsidiary South Essex Insurance 
Brokers won Customer Service Provider 
of the Year at Insurance Age UK Broker 
Awards 2011

■ Introduced a new Business Process 
Management system to enhance 
customer service

■ Received Moneyfacts Best Ethical 
Investment Provider Award for the third 
year running

■ Reduction in claims leakage rate from 
3.7% to 2.2% within UK and Ireland 
general insurance operations

■ Completed profi t optimisation review 
of UK commercial and personal lines 
schemes business

■ Completed review of UK motor business
■ Our underlying COR was 97.5%  

excluding Australasia and related one-off 
catastrophe reinsurance costs

Our priorities for 2012 ■ Drive through profi tability improvement 
programme within the UK commercial 
and personal lines insurance portfolios

■ Improve the fi nancial returns from the 
Australasian business model

■ Launch an enhanced insurance solution 
for the UK charity and community market 

■ Expand the property investors proposition 
to selected regional brokers

■ Increase the number of staff participating 
in the claims and underwriting academies

■ Further improve Group underwriting 
and pricing capabilities and approach to 
reinsurance/insurance risk management
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Focusing on operational excellence Managing risk and capital across the 
Group to maximum effect

Creating a culture and environment 
that enables people to reach their 
full potential

We will review our existing operating and 
organisational models to ensure we meet 
customer and business partner needs in the most 
cost effective way.

We will invest in new technology which will allow 
us to work smarter and faster.

We will further develop our web and e-commerce 
platforms as part of our product distribution 
infrastructure and as the principal platforms for 
sales of simpler insurance products. 

We take a risk-based approach to managing 
capital, monitoring business unit performance 
to ensure capital is being deployed to optimise 
profi table growth in line with Group risk appetite.  

We will continue to hold suffi cient capital to 
maintain at least an ‘A’ rating with rating agencies 
and maintain ample liquidity to meet operational 
requirements.

In order to maintain our competitive edge, we will 
continue to invest in developing our leadership 
capability and managing the talent within the 
business, especially in the core disciplines of sales, 
underwriting and claims.

We will also continue to engender a modern, 
dynamic and performance-focused culture.

■ General insurance expense ratio
■ FTE headcount

■ Enhanced Capital Requirement coverage
■ Rating achieved from leading credit rating 

agencies

■ Quarterly staff surveys 
■ Rank achieved in national staff engagement 

surveys 

■ Completed an external benchmarking exercise 
that identifi ed opportunities for expense reduction

■ Signifi cant progress made in our application 
for internal model approval under Solvency II 
framework 

■ Coverage of our Enhanced Capital Requirement 
remains above 300%

■ A- rating from Standard & Poor’s and A from 
A. M. Best affi rmed in March 2011 and 
December 2011 respectively, both with a stable 
outlook

■ Completed external benchmarking exercise 
of senior leadership population to enhance 
leadership capability  

■ Launched talent programme for employees 
aspiring to managerial level 

■ Reduce the Group’s ongoing general insurance 
expense base by £2 million

■ Enhance the UK operating model to improve 
speed and quality of decision making and deliver 
our high quality service with greater consistency

■ Introduce new Group Risk Committee structure 
to further strengthen the Group risk framework

■ Continue to invest in preparing the business for 
Solvency II, including embedding our Own Risk 
and Solvency Assessment (ORSA) process and 
further developing our internal capital model 
through the FSA’s Internal Model Approval 
Process (IMAP) 

■ Launch and embed new behavioural competency 
framework for all employees  

■ Further investment in attracting and developing 
talent throughout the Group
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

Making a difference for 125 years
A sense of community has always been important at Ecclesiastical – 
even more so as we move into our 125th anniversary year. 

At Ecclesiastical ‘community’ means:
■  the part we play in the communities local to our offi ces around the 

globe - through volunteering, fundraising and in-kind support;
■   how we monitor and manage the environmental impact we have in our 

communities - the efforts we make to reduce the impact our business 
has, whilst supporting our people to reduce their impact too;

■   the network of suppliers we build up through long-term relationships 
- how we work with them to raise the standards of their business 
practices; and

■   the sense of belonging and commitment our people feel - how we 
support them to grow and develop, and how we engage them in the 
future of our business.

So our ‘community commitment’ is about our:
■   local communities; 
■   environment;
■   suppliers; and
■   workplace.

And of course our customers are the ultimate benefi ciary of this 
commitment to communities:

■    When we volunteer to help a variety of worthy charitable causes, this 
includes providing direct practical support to our customers; 
volunteering also leads to the self-development of people in terms of 
skills and customer knowledge. 

■    Better management of our environmental impact means we reduce 
cost and risk for the business, whilst also helping to improve the 
environment for our customers and helping them manage the risks 
and issues associated with climate change.

■    Developing and supporting our people in the right way means we’re 
better placed to deliver the service our customers expect.

■    Requiring our suppliers to maintain higher standards means our 
customers can be confi dent of responsible business practices through 
every aspect of our engagement.

In 2012, we plan to do even more to support our communities and to 
have a more integrated approach to our Corporate Responsibility (CR) 
activities. So we’re launching ‘Our Stronger Communities plan’. This 
initiative covers every area of our CR, and although it starts now, it’s 
about our long-term plans for improvement. 

This report outlines our achievements in 2011 and our future plans. 
For the latest update on Our Stronger Communities plan, please 
visit: www.ecclesiastical.com/ourstrongercommunitiesplan  

One of the top corporate 
donors to charity in the UK



23Ecclesiastical Insurance Offi ce plc

P
E

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E

 R
E

V
IE

W

Group metrics 2011 2010

Charitable giving (£m) 11.7 10.6

Special grant to Allchurches Trust (£m) - 10.0

Donated hours 1,906 2,016

Making a difference in the UK
Engaging and working with others

In 2011, we raised over £18,000 for local partners across our UK 
business, £9,000 for national appeals including Children in Need 
and a total of £100,000 for charity.

We participated in the Business in the Community Corporate 
Responsibility Index, the UK’s leading voluntary benchmark of CR, the 
results of which were published in early 2011. We scored 62% which is 
a good score for a fi rst-time entrant and has given us a platform to 
create a plan for further developing our CR programme.

We intend to establish a clearer approach to measuring our community 
impact and to put in place a mechanism for community partners to 
provide feedback. We can then raise our game, expect more of 
ourselves and others, and support our business partners, staff and 
customers to deliver to a better standard too.

We have also continued our journey towards a greater understanding 
of our environmental impacts. We continue to be a member of 
ClimateWise, the insurance industry’s collaborative response to the 
risks and issues associated with climate change. We achieved a 94% 
compliance score in the annual report which measures our activity 
against the ClimateWise principles:

■   Lead in risk analysis;
■   Inform public policy making;
■   Support climate awareness amongst our customers;
■   Incorporate climate change into our investment strategies;
■   Reduce the environmental impact of our business; and
■   Report and be accountable.

This is an improvement of 11% on 2010. We are now ranked 12th out 
of 26 members on compliance - the second highest improvement of all 
members in 2011.

We support the training of 
young stonemasons through the 
Cathedrals Workshop Fellowship P
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94% compliance 
against ClimateWise 

principles
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Our achievements

Some of our recent CR achievements in key areas are detailed below, together with the objectives we have set ourselves for the future.

Area of focus

Community

Social issues facing our communities in the countries in which we are based

Helping our community partners to become more sustainable, enabling them to concentrate more of their time and effort on the 
core services they provide to the community

Community volunteering, helping employees achieve a sense of satisfaction, pride, personal learning and growth

Environment

Assessing the effectiveness of our environmental management system through the ISO14001 process

Responding positively to the impacts of climate change in support of our customers, business partners, suppliers and communities

Reducing our own carbon footprint

Workplace

Promoting and supporting employee well-being

Developing and supporting our people to reach their full potential

Developing a performance culture

Supplier

Work with suppliers to improve performance, raise standards and introduce a stronger vetting process
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Our achievements in 2011 Our objectives for 2012

■  Maintained key partnerships with a range of charity partners 
who are dedicated to addressing key social issues.

■  Publicise a policy for the support we offer. 

■  Raised over £18,000 for our community partners through 
fundraising as well as supporting them by sharing our business 
expertise through volunteering.

■  Launch a new national charity partnership aligned to the nature 
of the business we are in. Create a community foundation to 
manage grant-giving.

■  Provided over 1,300 volunteering hours through our employee 
volunteering programme.

■  Focus on employee volunteering to help our employees learn 
and develop, including sharing of professional expertise.

■  Developing a system to monitor and measure our environmental 
impacts.

■  Understand our environmental impact and continue to monitor 
and measure it.

■  Helping our employees measure their own impact.

■  Improved score against the ClimateWise principles.

■  Embed environmental considerations into business as usual.

■  Created a carbon reduction plan. ■  Implement our carbon reduction plan.

■  Created a ‘Well-being Plan’ to help employees maintain a 
healthy work-life balance.  

■  Well-being initiatives included fl u jabs and exercise classes. 

■  Continued support provided through the Employee Assistance 
Programme, a 24/7 helpline.  

■  Continue well-being programme including free health checks. 

■  Launched a new induction process to inspire new starters.

■  Continued investment in our academy training programmes.

■  Launched a talent-spotting programme ‘Discovery’ to recognise 
high potential employees.

■  Invested in more ‘Bite-size’ short training courses.

■  Benchmarked our senior managers against the best in the 
market. 

■  Continue development of our academies in the core disciplines 
of our business – claims, underwriting and sales.

■  Continue investment in developing capability at all levels.

■  Launched a ‘People Charter’ to make expectations of managers 
and individuals clearer. 

■  Researched and developed a new behavioural competencies 
model.

■  Roll-out and launch of the new behavioural competencies 
model.

■  New process to make performance management clearer. 

■  Continued development of supplier standards and vetting 
process.

■  Implement supplier standards and vetting process.
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Our year in numbers (UK-only metrics)

2011 2010

£000 £000

Employee fundraising total 100 165

Donations through payroll 
giving

56 55

£ £

Fundraising per employee 166 275

Hours Hours

Employee time donated (normal 
working hours) towards 
community partner projects

1,376 1,335

% %

Proportion of UK employees 
volunteering time for our charity 
partners during working hours 
(excluding fundraising activities)

30 30

Here we focus on some key 
stories and fi gures that bring 

our CR programme to life and 
demonstrate the difference we 

have been proud to make at 
Ecclesiastical during the past year

3,605 tonnes 
- our fi rst carbon footprint covered the year 

to December 2009; since then we have 
developed and started to implement a carbon 

reduction plan

4.4 tonnes 
- the annual individual target we have set our 

employees outside the workplace as part of the 
carbon footprint calculator tool we introduced 

to them this year
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UK case studies

Prevention is better than cure

St Basils is our local charity partner in Birmingham. Its aim is to prevent 
youth homelessness.  

The Trentham House centre provides accommodation and support to 
young mothers with babies and pregnant young women, to enable them 
to cope with the fi rst-time experience of motherhood. 

The project of rejuvenating the garden was chosen after liaison 
with St Basils regarding what support was required.  Green-fi ngered 
colleagues identifi ed what would be required for the day and engaged 
with three local businesses to support with equipment, transport 
and supplies.

Staff raised money for the project, raising £800 by holding a sweet and 
savoury day where everyone contributed through organising, cooking, 
delivering and selling. 

The team arrived to a neglected, bland garden with empty fl ower beds, 
dead ivy and rubbish in the hedges. In addition there was an area on 
the lawn where there were exposed bricks, sharp slate and broken 
glass - not the environment for toddlers! By the end of the day we had 
achieved our objective of providing a suitable and safer environment for 
children to play in and an area for the young mums to relax.

Caring and professional

When Carers Gloucestershire, a local partner for the past year, 
announced it was opening its fi rst-ever charity shop, staff in IT, Creative 
Services and Product Development stepped up straight away to assist. 
They helped design a new brand and create a logo, they acquired shop 
fi ttings and fi xtures and designed a look and feel for the interior. 
The teams plan to help set up the shop ready for opening in 2012, 
including labelling and pricing up goods.

‘It’s been a wonderful chance for the teams to work together as well as 
share our professional skills and expertise.’
Lisa Collier, Team Leader, Creative Services

Senior Manager of Ecclesiastical’s Ansvar Insurance business 
division, Cathy Taylor became interim Chief Executive of 
Gloucestershire charity Cotswold Care Hospice. 

The charity, based in Minchinhampton, provides care for people with 
life-limiting illnesses.

The charity has started the recruitment process for a new chief 
executive. Cathy’s role is to support the hospice’s senior management, 
raise awareness of the charity and ensure they continue to provide vital 
services to those who need their help.
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“We very much 
appreciate the 
invaluable time 
and effort that 
volunteers can 

offer a charitable 
organisation such 

as ourselves.”
Lucy Hackett - 

Head of Fundraising and 
Corporate Partnerships, 

St Basils
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Making a difference overseas
Ireland

We have supported Barnardos children’s charity in Ireland for the past 
four years raising in excess of €30,000 for them.

We support the local community in the Dublin Docklands area where 
our offi ce is based, working with the St Andrew’s parish which does a 
lot of work with the community itself.

We recently formed a relationship with an organisation called Jobcare. 
They are committed to providing jobseekers with the necessary tools to 
fi nd employment. Some of our staff are becoming mentors for the 
unemployed, coaching them on best practice when applying for a 
position and providing them with interview tips and networking contacts. 
More recently we have been conducting mock interviews for 
candidates, putting them through the formality of a job interview for the 
purpose of gaining the necessary experience so that when they go for 
real interviews they are fully prepared.

Canada

Our Business Interns continued to provide their time and business skills 
to community and not-for-profi t organisations during the year as part of 
our Business Intern Program customer development placement. During 
the year, we placed interns at the Canadian Council of Churches and 
Flemingdon Park Ministry.

During 2011, our employees volunteered their time in support of a 
variety of charitable and community causes including: the World 
Partnership Walk; the Purina Dog Walk for Dog Guides; Easter Seals; 
and volunteering at educational and residential care facilities. 

In total, Ecclesiastical Canada employees have volunteered 530 hours 
during 2011.

We partnered with the Yonge Street Mission’s Connecting-Youth-To-
Work programme. This three-part programme provides ‘at-risk’ youths 
with the opportunity to develop their employability skills through 
pre-placement workshops, then gain practical on-the-job work 
experience through a job placement. We were pleased to further our 
support of the Yonge Street Mission by providing an at-risk youth with 
an eight-week job placement. 

Australia

In 2011, Ansvar Insurance Limited (Australia) committed over 
A$700,000 to Community Education Program Grants, with 37 
successful recipients.

Doxa Youth Foundation’s Cadetship programme was a successful 
grant recipient. 

The Doxa Cadetship programme assists talented young people from 
socially and fi nancially disadvantaged backgrounds who have 
demonstrated leadership qualities and academic capability during their 
year 12 studies and who aspire to complete a tertiary education. 
Students applying are in their fi nal year of studies and plan to go on to 
university the following year. The programme provides students with an 
annual book allowance, a corporate partner organisation relevant to 
their degree, eight weeks real work experience per year and a 
workplace mentor, a suit, professional and personal development, 
tutoring and counselling support if required.

Sixteen employees attended the Red Dust Role Model programme in 
the Tiwi Islands north of Australia for one week. They left their inner-city 
surrounds and undertook a fi ve-day mentoring programme for 
indigenous young people in outback Australia. They found this an 
emotional and humbling experience and a few plan to return and 
volunteer out of their own time.

The not-for-profi t organisation, Red Dust, is a health promotion charity 
that works with indigenous youths in remote communities. Red Dust 
programmes are based around healthy lifestyle topics such as nutrition, 
exercise or hygiene, depending on what the community wishes, in 
consultation with the organisers.

“We promote positive health choices for youth, aged from eight to 
eighteen, in those locations. We take role models on fi eld trips – 
whether in the fi eld of music, sport, art or dance – to help engage youth 
and to run those programmes,” said Darren Smith, the Chief Executive 
Offi cer of Red Dust.

Two of the sixteen staff volunteers randomly selected to visit the Tiwi 
Islands to get actively involved with the Red Dust corporate programme.

Lions Foundation of Canada: Purina Walk for Dog Guides. This is a 
national event which has raised over C$7 million since it began.
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GOVERNANCE 2
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W. M. Samuel*
Chairman
Appointed to the Board in January 2006 and became Chairman in 
June 2009. He is a Senior Adviser to Lazard & Co, a Director of 
Edinburgh Investment Trust, the Chairman of Howden Joinery 
Group plc (formerly Galliform plc), Director of International Alert, 
and Deputy Chairman and Senior Independent Non-Executive 
Director of Inchcape plc. He was previously Co-Chief Executive 
Offi cer of Schroder Salomon Smith Barney and Vice Chairman of 
Investment Banking at Citigroup Europe.
Aged 60

Sir Philip J. C. Mawer* 
Deputy Chairman and Senior Independent Director
Re-appointed to the Board in February 2008 (having served 
previously from 1996-2002), he became Deputy Chairman in 
February 2010 and Senior Independent Director from November 
2010. Formerly Secretary General of the General Synod of the 
Church of England (1990-2002) and of the Archbishops’ Council; 
Parliamentary Commissioner for Standards (2002-2007), and the 
Prime Minister’s Independent Advisor on Ministers’ Interests 
(2008-2011). He is currently lay Chairman of the Professional 
Regulation Executive Committee of the UK Actuarial Profession 
and a patron or trustee of various charities.
Aged 64

D. Christie* 
Appointed to the Board in 2001. He retired as Warden of St 
Edward’s School, Oxford in 2004. Previously he taught and 
researched in economics in schools and universities in the UK and 
Europe and has been a trustee to a number of other charities.
Aged 70

M. D. Couve* 
Appointed to the Board in June 2006. Consultant with Speechly 
Bircham LLP and a former senior partner of that fi rm. He is a 
Director of Shires Income plc and a Trustee of the English National 
Opera Trust.
Aged 64

M. C. J. Hews 
Chief Financial Offi cer
Appointed Chief Financial Offi cer in April 2009 and appointed to 
the Board in June 2009. Formerly a Director of HSBC Life and 
Chief Executive of Marks and Spencer Life. Prior to this he was 
Finance Director at Norwich Union Healthcare. He started his 
fi nancial career at Deloitte as a consultant and actuary.
Aged 42

J. F. Hylands* 
Appointed to the Board in September 2007. Until March 2007 he 
was an Executive Director of Standard Life plc. He is currently a 
Director of Alliance Trust PLC, Chairman of the trustees of the BOC 
and Standard Life pension schemes, a member of the Aviva UK 
Life With Profi ts Committee and a school governor.
Aged 60

BOARD OF DIRECTORSBOARD OF DIRECTORS
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A. P. Latham* 
Appointed to the Board in March 2008. Until December 2007, he 
was a member of the Group Executive of RSA Group plc. He is 
Chairman of Pool Reinsurance Limited, a Director of Codan A/s 
and of Flagstone Reinsurance SA. 
Aged 61

The Rt. Revd. Dr. N. Peyton* 
Bishop of Brechin
Appointed to the Board in November 2005. He served in parochial 
ministry and as diocesan ministry development advisor. He was 
Archdeacon of Newark in the Diocese of Southwell and 
Nottingham (1999-2011), and in October 2011 he was elected 
Bishop of Brechin in the Scottish Episcopal Church. A Nottingham 
magistrate until 2003 and a member of the General Synod of the 
Church of England (1995-2010), he is an honorary teaching fellow 
at Lancaster University Management School.
Aged 61

M. H. Tripp 
Group Chief Executive
Appointed Group Chief Executive in January 2007. Previously 
Partner of Ernst & Young and Watson Wyatt, before that with 
Guardian Royal Exchange. He is a Director of Mapfre Re.
Aged 56

Ms. D. P. Wilson*
Director of the Friend’s Board of the Royal Academy of Arts, a 
Trustee of Kids In Need of Education and member of the Davies 
Steering Group for Women on Boards. She is a Modern Languages 
graduate and Fellow of the Chartered Insurance Institute. In an 
executive capacity at National Grid she ran a division serving 12 
million customers, headed up Shared Services, their Global 
Transformation programme and was Global Head of Audit. 
Previously she worked for BG Group as Head of Investor Relations 
and Global Head of Insurance and Risk Management, and for Royal 
Sun Alliance as an underwriter.
Aged 53

S. A. Wood
Managing Director, UK
Joined the Group in September 2005 and appointed to the Board 
in January 2006. Previously Managing Director of FirstAssist 
Group, and before that with Royal SunAlliance. Presently The 
Prince of Wales’ Ambassador for Business in the Community in the 
South West of England.
Aged 51

* Non-Executive Directors
The Group Executive Team can be found on page 120.

W. M. Samuel M. C. J. Hews

Sir Philip J. C. Mawer

S. A. Wood

M. H. Tripp

A. P. Latham

The Rt. Revd. Dr. N. Peyton

Ms. D. P. Wilson
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Principal activity
The Group operates principally as a provider of general insurance in 
addition to offering a range of fi nancial services, with offi ces in the 
UK, Ireland, Canada, Australia and New Zealand. A list of the 
Company’s main subsidiary undertakings is given on page 123 and 
details of international branches are shown on page 122.

Ownership
At the date of this report the entire issued Ordinary share capital 
of the Company and 5.6% of the issued 8.625% Non-cumulative 
Irredeemable Preference Shares were owned by Ecclesiastical 
Insurance Group plc. In turn, the entire equity capital of 
Ecclesiastical Insurance Group plc was owned by Allchurches 
Trust Limited. 

Board of Directors
The Directors of the Company throughout the year and at the date 
of this report are stated on pages 30 and 31.

In line with the UK Corporate Governance Code the Board has 
voluntarily chosen to comply with the recommended annual 
re-election of Directors. All Directors who have served at the last 
annual general meeting (AGM) will be proposed for re-election at 
the forthcoming AGM, following a recommendation from the Group 
Nominations Committee, excluding Mr. M.D. Couve and The Rt. Revd. 
Dr. N. Peyton who will retire at the forthcoming AGM and will not 
offer themselves for re-election. The Directors wish to convey their 
gratitude for the signifi cant contribution made by both Directors.

The Group has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for 
the benefi t of its Directors, which were in place throughout the year 
and remain in force at the date of this report.

Neither the Directors nor their connected persons held any 
benefi cial interest in any Ordinary shares of the Group during the 
year ended 31 December 2011. There has been no change in these 
interests since the end of the fi nancial year to the date of this report. 

During the prior year, the Company placed £40 million additional 
Non-cumulative Irredeemable Preference Shares. The following 
Directors of the Company acquired the number of Shares stated 
below at 102 pence per Share on 16 December 2010:

Director
Nature of 
interest

Number of 
Non-cumulative 

Irredeemable Preference 
Shares held:

31.12.2011 31.12.2010

D. Christie Director 11,079 11,079

M.D. Couve Director 19,000 19,000

M.C.J. Hews Connected 
person

75,342 75,342

The Rt. Revd. 
Dr. N. Peyton

Director   3,800   3,800

W.M. Samuel Director 151,000 151,000

There has been no change in these interests since the end of the 
fi nancial year to the date of this report.

No contract of signifi cance subsisted during or at the end of the 
fi nancial year in which a Director was or is materially interested.

On 20 March 2012, the Directors approved a proposal for all of the 
issued Ordinary shares of 10p each to be sub-divided into 2.5 
Ordinary shares of 4p each, for which a resolution will be put to the 
forthcoming AGM for approval.

Dividends 
Dividends paid on the Non-cumulative Irredeemable Preference 
Shares were £9,181,000 (2010: £5,731,000).   

The Directors do not recommend a fi nal dividend on the Ordinary 
shares (2010: £nil), and no interim dividend was made in respect of 
either the current or prior year.

Charitable and political donations
Charitable donations paid and provided for by the Group in the year 
amounted to £11.7 million (2010: £20.6 million).

During the last ten years, a total of £92.9 million (2010: £85.5 
million) has been provided by Group companies for church and 
charitable purposes.

It is the Group’s policy not to make political donations.

The Directors submit their annual report and accounts for Ecclesiastical Insurance 
Offi ce plc, together with the consolidated fi nancial statements of the Group for the 
year ended 31 December 2011. The Review of Group Operations, Strategic 
Overview, Corporate Responsibility Report, Risk Report and Directors’ Remuneration 
Report are incorporated by reference into this Directors’ Report.  

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Employees
The Group recognises the importance of employee communication and 
aims to keep employees informed about its affairs through the use of 
briefi ng groups, Group newsletters and the publication of fi nancial 
reports. Regular meetings are held between management and other 
employees and discussion encouraged. It is the Group’s policy to give 
full consideration to applications for employment by disabled persons. 
Appropriate training is arranged for disabled persons, including 
retraining for alternative work of employees who become disabled, to 
promote their career development within the organisation.

The Group considers a number of key performance indicators in the 
assessment of its people strategy. In addition to numeric measures, 
such as staff turnover and absenteeism, the Group pays particular 
attention to the outcome of quarterly staff surveys; the rank achieved in 
national annual staff engagement surveys; and has developed 
measures for assessing the success of its leadership and succession 
planning programmes.

Policy on payment of creditors
It is the Group’s policy to pay creditors promptly and fully, in accordance 
with the terms of their contracts. The Group has not adopted any 
particular external code. The number of days’ purchases represented by 
the amounts due to trade creditors of the Group at 31 December 2011 
was 19 days (2010: 30 days).

Principal risks and uncertainties
The principal risks and uncertainties, together with details of the 
fi nancial risk management objectives and policies of the Group and 
Company, are disclosed in the Risk Report and notes 3 and 4 to the 
fi nancial statements. 

Going concern
A review of the Group’s business activities is provided in the Review of 
Group Operations. In addition, the Risk Report and notes 3 and 4 to the 
fi nancial statements disclose the Group’s principal risks and 
uncertainties, including exposures to insurance and fi nancial risk and 
the Group’s objectives for managing capital.

The Group has considerable fi nancial resources and, as a consequence, 
the Directors believe the Group is well placed to manage its business 
risks successfully and continue in operational existence for the 
foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going 
concern basis in preparing the annual report and accounts.

Auditor and the disclosure of information 
to auditor
So far as each person who was a Director at the date of approving this 
report is aware, there is no relevant audit information, being information 
needed by the auditor in connection with preparing its report, of which 
the auditor is unaware. Having made enquiries of fellow Directors and 
the Company’s auditor, each Director has taken all the steps that they 
ought to have taken as a Director in order to make themselves aware 
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is 
aware of that information.

This confi rmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.

The Group Audit Committee reviews the appointment of the auditor, 
including the auditor’s effectiveness and independence. Further details 
are included in the Corporate Governance Report.

In accordance with Section 489 of the Companies Act 2006, a 
resolution proposing that Deloitte LLP be re-appointed as auditor of the 
Company will be put to the AGM.

By order of the Board

Mrs R.J. Hall
Secretary

20 March 2012
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The Board of Directors is committed to applying the highest standards of corporate 
governance and believes that the affairs of the Company should be conducted in 
accordance with best business practice. Accordingly, the Company has chosen 
voluntarily to comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s UK Corporate 
Governance Code (the ‘Code’) including both the Main Principles and Code 
Provisions, where relevant to the Company. The Company does not have any shares 
with a Premium Listing on the London Stock Exchange and is therefore not legally 
required to apply the Code.

The Board

Composition and independence

The Board comprises a Non-Executive 
Chairman, seven other Non-Executive 
Directors (NEDs) and three Executive 
Directors. The Company believes the size 
and composition of the Board gives it 
suffi cient independence, balance and wider 
experience to consider the issues of 
strategy, performance, resources and 
standards of conduct. The strong 
representation of NEDs on the Board 
demonstrates its independence.

The Chairman and 
Group Chief Executive

The roles of the Chairman and the Group 
Chief Executive are undertaken by separate 
individuals. The Chairman, Mr. W.M. Samuel, 
is responsible for leadership of the Board. 
The day-to-day management of the 
business is undertaken by the Group Chief 
Executive, Mr. M.H. Tripp, assisted by a 
Group Executive Team. 

Senior Independent Director

Sir Philip Mawer, Deputy Chairman, has 
been appointed as Senior Independent 
Director (SID). The SID supports and acts 
as a sounding board for the Chairman and 
is responsible for overseeing the 
governance practices of the Company and 
leading the Directors in their appraisal of 
the Chairman. Along with the Chairman, the 
SID is the primary contact for the 
shareholder and they meet regularly to 
share and understand views.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Re-election of Directors

In line with the UK Corporate Governance Code, the Board has 
voluntarily chosen to comply with the annual re-election of Directors. In 
accordance with the Code, NEDs who have served for more than six 
years will be subject to a rigorous annual review by the Group 
Nominations Committee before being put up for annual re-election.

In 2012, two NEDs, Mr. W.M. Samuel and Mr. D. Christie, who have both 
served for more than six years on the Board, will be proposed for 
re-election at the forthcoming AGM following satisfaction by the Group 
Nominations Committee, in the absence of those respective Directors, 
that their length of service has not affected their independence. 

A Confl icts Register is maintained by the Company Secretary to 
monitor and manage any potential confl icts of interest. Training was 
given to Directors on the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and 
Directors are reminded of their duties regularly. Any changes are 
declared at the fi rst Board meeting at which the Director becomes 
aware of a potential confl ict and are recorded in the Confl icts Register. 
Directors are required to review their interests as recorded in the 
Confl icts Register on an annual basis.  

Role of the Board

Great importance is placed on a well-informed and decisive Board, and 
Board meetings are scheduled and held regularly throughout the year. 
In 2011, six scheduled meetings and two additional meetings were 
held. In addition, two off-site strategy days were held and ad-hoc 
meetings and scheduled training sessions were arranged. A one-year 
rolling plan of business for discussion is reviewed and agreed by the 
Board annually to ensure that items considered are timely, relevant and 
suitable to the current business and fi nancial environment.  

The Board sets annual objectives for each year in addition to the 
Group’s strategic direction, which it implements through approval and 
regular monitoring of the business plan and strategy. At each Board 
meeting the Directors discuss strategic and business matters, fi nancial, 
operational and governance issues, along with other relevant business 
items that arise. The Board receives oral reports at Board meetings 
from the Chairmen of the Committees following a Committee meeting. 
All Directors receive papers and minutes for all meetings, unless 
restricted due to confl ict or sensitivity. Papers are generally circulated 
a week in advance of all scheduled meetings.

During 2011, the Board considered and made decisions on the 
following main business issues, together with routine administration 
matters:

Routine matters - Board’s annual objectives;
- Financial performance and statements;
- Risk - management, appetite, registers, reverse stress testing;
- Strategy - Group priorities, Business and Operating Model, change programme;
- Dividends, charitable donations and Gift Aid; 
- Corporate responsibility and ClimateWise reporting; 
- Best Place to Work initiative; and
- Committee reports and recommendations.

Operational matters - Performance and strategic and business plans for Group businesses;
- Underwriting arrangements; 
- Reinsurance arrangements;
- General insurance claims reserves; 
- Sales and claims; 
- Treating Customers Fairly;
- Expense management; 
- Review of staff pension arrangements; and
- HR strategy.

Projects – Streamlining the Group through consolidation of similar businesses and reducing the number of companies; 
– 125th anniversary plans; and
– Head Offi ce relocation.

Governance and 
regulatory matters

– Solvency II;
– Bribery Act;
– Improving Board effectiveness;
– Board Evaluation; and
– Reviewing NEDs’ fees.
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Attendance at meetings
Directors are required to attend all Board meetings and strategy days as well as Committee meetings. Below is a record of all Directors’ 
attendance for those meetings which they were required to attend during 2011:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Board attendance at meetings

Board and Committee 
composition and attendance

Board 
Meetings

Group
Nominations 
Committee

Group 
Audit 

Committee

Group 
Risk

 Committee

Group
Remuneration

Committee

Finance & 
Investment 
Committee

Total number of meetings 8 4 5 4 6 4

Executive Directors

M.H. Tripp 8 3

M.C.J. Hews 8 4

S.A. Wood 7

Non-Executive Directors

W.M. Samuel (Chairman) 8 4 
(Chairman)

4

Sir Philip Mawer (Deputy 
Chairman and Senior 
Independent Director) 

8 4 2*

D. Christie 8 4 4 
(Chairman)

M.D. Couve 8 5 6 
(Chairman)

J.F. Hylands 8 5 
(Chairman)

4

A.P. Latham 8 5 4 
(Chairman)

6 4

The Rt. Revd. Dr. N. Peyton 7 6

 D.P. Wilson 8 2* **

* Appointed part way through the year.

** Ms. D.P. Wilson was appointed to the Group Remuneration Committee on 1 December 2011, after which date no Committee meetings occurred prior to the end of the year.
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Board performance and evaluation
Induction

All Directors are required to undertake a formal and comprehensive 
induction to the Group upon joining the Board. The induction is 
a three-stage process and is undertaken by the Company 
Secretarial department.

On accepting a position on the Board, all Directors receive an induction 
pack. The pack includes the appointment letter and terms; latest 
audited report and accounts and recent monthly Executive Board 
Report results pack; constitutional documents; protocols on confl icts of 
interest, price-sensitive information, Directors’ duties, share dealing and 
Board procedures; the Code and the Stewardship Code; Board minutes 
for the past year; Board dates and Directors’ contact details.

After appointment, a two-day induction programme is provided where 
presentations are given by Company Secretarial, Group Compliance, 
Finance, Group Risk and Actuarial, Strategic Development, Group HR 
and Heads of the businesses. The programme is also offered to other 
Directors as a refresher every two years. New Directors meet 
individually with the Chairman of the ultimate parent company 
(Allchurches Trust Limited), the Company Chairman, the Deputy 
Chairman and SID, and each of the Executive Directors.

The third stage of the induction is participation in the Board’s 
continuing professional development (CPD) programme.

Training

Throughout the year, Directors participate in the CPD programme, 
which includes internal training on topical issues relevant to the 
Company’s commercial and regulatory environment; a business 
familiarisation schedule to ensure Directors spend time within the 
business on a rolling rota; and access to relevant external CPD 
opportunities, funded by the Company. In 2011, internal training was 
given on Solvency II - Role of the Board in risk management and Own 
Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA), fi nancial reporting and 
solvency calculations. The Directors visited Property Management, 
Business Consulting, and City Offi ce.

The Company Secretary maintains annual CPD records for Directors, 
which the Chairman reviews as part of their annual appraisal.

Performance evaluation

During the year the Chairman instigated an internal evaluation of the 
Board, its Committees and the Directors, assisted by the Company 
Secretary. All Directors were required to complete self-assessments 
which were discussed at their annual appraisals. The outcome of the 
evaluations was considered by the Group Nominations Committee and 
recommendations were considered and agreed by the Board. All 
recommendations were adopted and the Group Nominations 
Committee is monitoring their implementation.

In October 2011, Independent Audit Limited was engaged to undertake 
an external evaluation of the Board’s role in the formulation of strategy. 
Recommendations will be presented to the Board in early 2012. The

Group Nominations Committee intends to keep the need for an 
external evaluation process under regular review, with the expectation 
that it will be undertaken every two years.  

Internal controls
The Board is ultimately responsible for the systems of risk management 
and internal control maintained by the Group and reviews their 
appropriateness and effectiveness annually. The Board views the 
management of risk as a key management activity and believes that the 
Group maintains an adequate and effective system of risk management 
and internal control that complies with the UK Corporate Governance 
Code and, in addition, is well placed to comply with the expected 
requirements of Solvency II.

Systems of internal control are designed to manage, rather than 
eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can 
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as to the prevention 
and detection of material fi nancial misstatements, errors, fraud or 
violation of law or regulations.

The Group embeds risk management into its strategic and business 
planning activities whereby major risks that could affect the business 
are identifi ed by responsible management together with an assessment 
of the effectiveness of the processes and controls in place to manage 
and mitigate these risks. 

The key features of the Group’s systems of internal control are 
as follows:

■  The Board approves fi nancial, business and investment strategies 
and plans, reviews exposure limits and then monitors the results on a 
regular basis.

■  The Group operates a comprehensive annual budgetary control 
system which monitors fi nancial results against business plans, and 
reports these to the Board on a monthly basis. Business and 
investment reports are also submitted regularly to the Board.

■  Clearly defi ned lines of accountability and delegation of authority are 
in place.

■  Operating risk is minimised by ensuring that the appropriate 
infrastructure, controls, systems and people are in place throughout 
the business.

■  An organisational design is in place that supports business goals and 
enables staff to be successful in their roles.

■  Treasury operations manage the investment of cash balances and 
exposure to currency transaction risks through treasury policies, risk 
limits and monitoring procedures.

Assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control 
systems is obtained through management reviews, control, self-
assessment, internal audits and testing of certain aspects of the 
internal fi nancial control systems by the external auditor during the 
course of their annual audit.
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Financial control framework
Internal control over fi nancial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding the reliability of 
management and fi nancial reporting in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. Controls over fi nancial reporting 
policies and procedures include controls to ensure that:

■  Through clearly defi ned role profi les and fi nancial mandates, there is 
effective delegation of authority;

■  There is adequate segregation of duties in respect of all fi nancial 
transactions;

■  Commitments and expenditures are appropriately authorised 
by management;

■  Records are maintained which accurately and fairly refl ect 
transactions;

■  Any unauthorised acquisition, use or disposal of the Group’s assets 
that could have a material effect on the fi nancial statements is either 
prevented or should be detected on a timely basis;

■  Transactions are recorded as required to permit the preparation of 
fi nancial statements; and

■  The Group is able to report its fi nancial statements in compliance 
with IFRS.

Board Committees
The Company has fi ve Board Committees: a Finance and Investment 
Committee; a Group Audit Committee; a Group Nominations 
Committee; a Group Remuneration Committee and a Group Risk 
Committee. Details of the Group Remuneration Committee are 
disclosed in the Remuneration Report on page 42, and of the Group 
Risk Committee in the Risk Report on page 48.  

Terms of reference for all committees can be obtained from 
the Company’s registered offi ce address or the website at 
www.ecclesiastical.com/general/investorrelations/
corporategovernance/termsofreferenceofcommittees.

Finance and Investment Committee

The Committee comprises the following four members:

D. Christie (Chairman)

A.P. Latham  

W.M. Samuel   

M.H. Tripp

The Committee had four scheduled meetings throughout the year. The 
remit of the Committee within agreed fi nancial limits in line with its 
terms of reference is as follows: 

■  Consider and review treasury and tax strategies and policies;

■  Consider and review capital management taking into consideration 
the Individual Capital Assessment (ICA) and risk appetite; 

■  Consider and review major capital projects and contracts;

■  Consider and review major investments including the acquisition or 
disposal of interests of more than 5% in the voting shares of any 
listed company;

■  Consider and review acquisitions and disposal of investment property 
or businesses by the Group, and enter into formal discussions with 
the intention of making a takeover offer;

■  Consider and review borrowing monies, committing the Company to 
a guarantee or indemnity for the performance of a subsidiary, or 
authorising a mortgage or a charge over the whole or any part of the 
Group’s undertaking;

■  Consider and review circulars to shareholders and listing particulars;

■  Provide broad strategy and set specifi c investment parameters for 
portfolio investment matters within the context of the Board’s 
assessment of overall risk to the business;

■  Consider monthly investment reports and review investment against 
benchmark levels; and

■  Oversee and review performance of delegated funds.

The principal activities of the Committee during the year were in line 
with its duties (above). 

Group Audit Committee

The Committee’s terms of reference include all matters indicated by the 
Disclosure Rules and Transparency Rules, the UKLA Listing Rules and 
the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code. The terms of 
reference are considered annually by the Group Audit Committee 
(GAC) and referred to the Board for approval. 

The GAC comprises the following NEDs, appointed by the Board:

J.F. Hylands (Chairman)  

A.P. Latham 

M.D. Couve 

Ms. D.P. Wilson

In accordance with the Code, the Board considers that Mr. J.F. Hylands 
has recent and relevant fi nancial experience. The qualifi cations of each 
committee member are shown on page 120.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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The Committee had fi ve scheduled meetings during the year. In addition 
to the members, other attendees at Committee meetings included the 
Chairman of the Board, the Company Secretary, the Director of Group 
Internal Audit and Compliance, the Chief Risk Offi cer, and the external 
auditor.

The Committee also meets with the Director of Group Internal Audit on 
an annual basis without management present to discuss the Group 
Internal Audit function and any issues arising from its activity. In 
addition, the Committee meets with the external auditor on an annual 
basis without management present to discuss the external audit and 
any issues arising from it.

The Committee assists the Board in fulfi lling its responsibilities in 
respect of:

■  Monitoring the integrity of the fi nancial statements of the Group, the 
Annual Financial Report Announcement and any other formal 
announcement relating to its fi nancial performance and the issues 
and judgements contained therein; 

■  Reviewing and challenging the effectiveness of the Group’s internal 
controls and risk management processes; 

■  Reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s systems and processes 
to ensure compliance with the FSA regulatory regime;

■  Overseeing, monitoring and reviewing the operation and 
effectiveness of Group Internal Audit, including the approval of the 
Group Internal Audit Charter and the plan for the upcoming year’s 
activities; 

■  Requesting, receiving and reviewing reports from management on 
actions taken to address areas of risk or control defi ciency identifi ed 
by management and the internal audit and compliance monitoring 
processes;

■  Reporting to the Board after each meeting, making appropriate 
recommendations within its duties and responsibilities; and

■  Overseeing the relationship and arrangements with the external 
auditor, to meet with them regularly, to review and approve their work 
plans, monitor adherence to policies, review audit fi ndings and 
recommend the appointment or reappointment of auditors and their 
remuneration.

The principal activities of the Committee during 2011 included:

■  Reviewing and considering the 2010 fi nancial results and fi nancial 
statements;

■  Reviewing and considering the 2011 half-yearly fi nancial report;

■  Reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s systems of 
internal control and risk management;

■  Monitoring and considering key legal and regulatory developments;

■  Consideration of subsidiary company audits;

■  Reviewing the Company’s whistleblowing policy and any whistle-
blowing activity;

■  Consideration of breaches reported and actions to be undertaken;

■  Consideration of the effectiveness of the external audit;

■  Consideration of internal audit reports;

■  Consideration of compliance reports; and

■  Consideration of the adequacy and effectiveness of actions taken by 
management to address areas of risk or control defi ciency identifi ed 
by management and the internal audit process.

Given the highly regulated nature of the Group’s business and the need 
for robust assurance around the extent to which regulatory risks are 
managed, in 2011 the Committee also reviewed and approved the 
creation of a new role, Director of Group Internal Audit and Compliance, 
to provide additional strength and depth to the existing functions. To 
enable the Director of Group Internal Audit and Compliance to remain 
independent and objective, the Group Internal Audit and Group 
Compliance functions will each be subject to periodic reviews by an 
external independent fi rm, which will report its fi ndings directly to the 
GAC and Group Chief Executive respectively.

Group Internal Audit

Group Internal Audit (GIA) receives its authority from the GAC and 
provides independent, objective assurance to the Board that the 
governance processes, management of risk and systems of internal 
control are adequate and effective to mitigate the most signifi cant risks 
to the Group.   

To provide for the independence of GIA, the Director of Group Internal 
Audit is accountable to the GAC Chairman, reports administratively to 
the Chief Financial Offi cer and has access to the Chairman of the 
Board. Financial independence, essential to the effectiveness of 
internal auditing, is provided by the GAC approving a budget to allow 
GIA to meet the requirements of the Group Internal Audit Charter.

GIA is also functionally independent from the activities audited and the 
day-to-day internal control processes of the organisation. It conducts 
assignments on its own initiative, with free and unfettered access to 
people and information, in respect of any relevant department, 
establishment or function of the organisation, including the activities of 
branches and subsidiaries and outsourced activities. There are no areas 
of the Group that fall outside the remit and scope of GIA and members 
of GIA do not audit any activity for which they may have previously held 
any responsibility or accountability.  

GIA’s annual programme of work is risk based and designed to cover 
areas of higher risk or specifi c focus across the Group. The plan is 
approved annually by the GAC and is reviewed regularly to 
accommodate changes required as a consequence of the Group’s 
changing risk profi le. All proposed changes to the plan are reviewed, 
challenged and approved by the GAC. 

As part of their risk-based programme of work, GIA, through a 
combination of audit testing and validation, interviews and business 
attestation, provide the Board with assurance that internal strategies 
and polices are adhered to. Throughout the year, GIA submit quarterly 
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reports to the GAC summarising fi ndings from their work, and the 
responses from and action plans established by management. The GAC 
monitor the progress of the most signifi cant action plans to ensure that 
these are completed in a timely manner and to a satisfactory standard.  

Group Compliance 

Group Compliance provide assurance to the Board that the Group 
remains compliant with its obligations under the regulatory system and 
for countering the risk that the fi rm might be used to further fi nancial 
crime. In addition, it also ensures that appropriate mechanisms exist to 
identify, assess and act upon new and emerging regulatory obligations 
and compliance risks that may impact on the Group by:

■  Identifying and evaluating current and future compliance risks facing 
the Group;

■  Monitoring the adequacy and effectiveness of controls in place to 
detect and mitigate compliance risks; and

■  Working with business units to advise on the design, implementation 
and enhancement of controls to manage compliance risks.

Group Compliance is also responsible for promoting good governance 
and ensuring that the highest standards of integrity are applied 
throughout the Group. It does this by:

■  Identifying and assessing compliance risks associated with the 
Group’s current and proposed future business activities (including 
new products, business relationships and any extension of operations 
both within the UK and overseas);

■  Advising management on applicable regulations, associated rules 
and standards, and informing them of developments in these areas;

■  Establishing written guidelines to staff and third party service 
providers on the appropriate implementation of regulations, rules and 
standards via policies and procedures; 

■  Assessing and monitoring the appropriateness of and compliance 
with internal regulatory policies, procedures and guidelines, and 
where appropriate, making recommendations for improvement;

■  Maintaining a central record of material compliance failings and 
breaches occurring across the Group and escalating these as 
necessary to the Board and regulators;

■  Educating staff across the Group, by way of training courses and 
ad-hoc guidance on all key regulations, rules and standards; and

■  Liaising with relevant external bodies and regulators on all 
compliance matters.

In fulfi lling these responsibilities, Group Compliance has the support of 
the Board, who are ultimately responsible for the establishment and 
governance of regulatory compliance within and across the Group, and 
the Executive Management of the Company and its subsidiaries, who 
are responsible for the implementation and ongoing management of 
compliance.  

External auditor

Deloitte LLP has been the external auditor of the Company since 
1998. The Committee annually consider the need to re-tender the 
external audit service.

The effectiveness of the auditor has been evaluated through its reports 
to the Committee, questioning during Committee meetings, and 
feedback following internal meetings on auditor effectiveness.

Annually, the Committee reviews a formal letter from the auditor on its 
own policies and procedures in relation to independence and quality 
control, including the auditor’s arrangements to identify, report and 
manage any confl icts of interest.

The Committee is responsible for the development, implementation 
and monitoring of the Group’s policy on the provision of non-audit 
services by the external auditor, which is regularly reviewed to ensure 
alignment with the latest standards on auditor objectivity and 
independence. The policy covers a number of areas including: 

■  The Group’s procedures for the engagement of the auditor on 
non-audit-related assignments;

■  The Group’s requirements for the pre-approval and reporting of fees 
for non-audit services;

■  The appointment of former audit employees to the Group; and

■  The requirement to keep a register of all former employees of the 
current auditor employed by the Group.

The Company does not impose an automatic ban on the auditor 
undertaking non-audit work. The Group’s aim is to identify appropriate 
service providers and ensure that any non-audit work is carried out by 
the most appropriate provider and in a manner that affords fullest value 
for money. Auditors of the Company are only permitted to perform 
audit-related and non-audit work if, in the opinion of the Committee, it is 
appropriate for them to do so and there are no actual or perceived 
confl icts of interest. 

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group paid £569,000 to 
Deloitte LLP for audit services. The fees for other services amounted to 
£23,000, making total fees paid to Deloitte LLP of £592,000. None of 
the non-audit services provided during the year were signifi cant 
engagements.   

The Committee has noted that there are no contractual obligations to 
restrict the choice of external auditor, and following the assessment of 
external auditor effectiveness, the Committee has recommended to the 
Board that Deloitte LLP be re-appointed as auditor of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Group Nominations Committee

The Committee comprises the following NEDs, appointed by the Board:

W.M. Samuel (Chairman)

Sir Philip Mawer

D. Christie

The Committee had four meetings during the year. The remit of the 
Committee in line with its terms of reference is as follows:

■  Review the structure, size and composition of the Board;

■  Assess and monitor Directors’ skills, knowledge and experience;

■  Monitor and develop an appropriate balance in the Board, which fully 
meets the Company’s leadership needs; 

■  Undertake a selection process to appoint new Directors to the Board 
utilising external search consultancy as appropriate; and

■  Ensure succession planning in the Group.

The principal activities of the Committee during the year included:

■  Reviewing the composition of the Board;

■  Reviewing Succession Plans for the Board and Senior Management;

■  Monitoring the implementation of the actions recommended 
following the internal evaluation of the Board and Committees;

■  Reviewing and agreeing a matrix of the leadership skills and 
technical skills required in order to ensure a fully effective Board; 

■  Reviewing the CPD programme for Directors;

■  Reviewing the appraisals of Directors;

■  Instigating a new external Board evaluation to be fi nalised in 2012;

■  Commencing the selection process for a new NED; and 

■  Reviewing the Board training programme.

Executive Directors’ other commitments
External directorships are considered to be valuable in terms of 
broadening the experience and knowledge of Executive Directors, 
provided there is no confl ict of interest and the commitment required is 
not excessive. Such appointments are subject to the approval of the 
Board and a confl icts register is maintained by the Company in 
accordance with its policy to monitor any interests. Any monetary 
payments received by Executive Directors from outside directorships 
are paid over to and retained by the Company.  

Non-Executive Directors’ commitment
The Board believes that the NEDs were independent throughout 2011. 
Independence is considered through each Director’s annual appraisal 
and agreed by the Board annually. The Board has determined that, even 
though Mr. D. Christie has served as a Director for more than ten years, 
he should be regarded as an independent NED as he remains 
independent in character and judgement.  

The Chairman evaluates the time NEDs spend on the Company’s 
business annually and is satisfi ed that in 2011 the NEDs continued to 
be effective and fulfi lled their time commitment as stated in their letters 
of appointment. Accordingly, each NED is recommended for re-election 
at the AGM, excluding Mr. M.D. Couve and The Rt. Revd. Dr. N. Peyton 
who will retire at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board

Mrs R.J. Hall
Secretary

20 March 2012
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The Company has voluntarily chosen to provide a remuneration report in the 
interests of best governance practice. The Company does not have listed equity 
shares and is therefore not legally required to apply the following disclosures. 

As a guideline for remuneration disclosure, the Company has used the disclosure requirements set out in Schedule 8 of the Large and 
Medium-Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008, the UK Corporate Governance Code and the FSA’s 
Policy Statement on Effectiveness of Corporate Governance and their Remuneration Code (‘FSA Code’). This report covers the year to 
December 2011.

Unaudited information
Group Remuneration Committee

The Group Remuneration Committee comprises the following NEDs, 
appointed by the Board:

M.D. Couve (Chairman) 

A.P. Latham

The Right Revd. Dr. N. Peyton

Sir Philip Mawer

Ms. D.P. Wilson

The Committee was assisted in its deliberations by the Chairman and 
Group Chief Executive. Ms. D.P. Wilson was appointed to the 
Committee on 1 December 2011, after which date no Committee 
meetings occurred prior to the end of the year.

The Committee held six meetings during the year. It determines the 
conditions of employment and pay and benefi ts of the Chairman, 
each of the Executive Directors and the Group Executive Team. 
During the year the FSA confi rmed that the subsidiary company 
Ecclesiastical Investment Management Limited (EIM) is a Tier 4 fi rm 
in relation to the FSA Code. The Group believes that it complies with 
all the requirements of the FSA Code. The Committee also serves as 
the EIM Remuneration Committee for the purposes of the FSA 
Code.

The remit of the Committee in line with its terms of reference is as 
follows:

■  Determine the framework or broad policy for the remuneration of 
the Group Chief Executive, Chairman, the Executive Directors and 
other signifi cant infl uence employees, and monitor the outcome of 
such policies for such employees. No Directors or managers are 
involved in decisions regarding their own remuneration;

■  Consideration of all factors to ensure that members of the 
executive management of the Company are provided with 
appropriate incentives;

■  Set the overarching principles and parameters of remuneration 
policy on a Group-wide basis;

■  Approve the design of, and determine targets for, any 
performance-related pay schemes and approve the total annual 
payments made under such schemes;

■  Review the design of all share incentive plans for approval by the 
Board and shareholders;

■  Determine the policy of pension arrangements for each Executive 
Director and other signifi cant infl uence employees;

■  Ensure that contractual terms on termination, and any payments 
made, are fair to the individual, and the Company, that failure is not 
rewarded and that the duty to mitigate loss is fully recognised;

■  In consultation with the Chairman and/or Group Chief Executive 
as appropriate, determine the total individual remuneration 
package of each Executive Director and other signifi cant infl uence 
employees;

■  Consider relevant legal requirements, the provisions and 
recommendations in the UK Corporate Governance Code, the FSA 
Code and associated guidance;

■  Monitor and confi rm compliance with the Remuneration Code;

■  Annually review the remuneration trends across the Company and 
Group;

■  Oversee any major changes in employee benefi ts structures 
throughout the Company and Group;

■  Agree the policy for authorising claims for expenses from the 
Group Chief Executive and Chairman;

■  Ensure disclosure of remuneration (including pensions), including 
the Group Remuneration Committee Report, are fulfi lled; 

■  Take exclusive responsibility for establishing the selection criteria, 
selecting, appointing and setting the terms of reference for any 
remuneration consultants who advise the Committee, ensuring that 
any such consultants adhere to the Remuneration Consultants 
Code of Conduct; and 

■  Obtain reliable, up-to-date information about remuneration in 
comparable companies. 

REMUNERATION REPORT
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The principal activities of the Committee during the year were in line with its duties (above). As this was the fi rst year the FSA Code applied to EIM, 
during the year the Committee reviewed the measures taken by EIM to implement and comply with the new requirements.

During the year external professional advice has been sought from Hewitt New Bridge Street (HNBS) when determining appropriate remuneration 
packages for Executive Directors and those holding signifi cant infl uence functions. HNBS is a co-founding signatory of the Code of Conduct 
applying to UK remuneration consultants and was engaged by the Committee in the year. It has no other advisory engagement with the Company. 
The Committee also has access to benchmarking reports from Towers Watson and McLagan, which provide data for determining pay conditions in 
the Group.

Details of Executive Directors’ contractual notice periods are contained in the following table. Executive Directors have no contractual entitlement 
to termination payments other than (i) in relation to payment in lieu of salary (excluding bonuses) and contractual benefi ts during the notice periods 
set out below where notice is not worked and (ii) in relation to compensation under the Group’s redundancy policy should a redundancy situation 
arise. Where an Executive Director is eligible to retire early, the pension entitlement will be calculated subject to the scheme rules and no enhanced 
early retirement terms other than those applicable in general under the scheme rules will apply.

Director Effective date of Ecclesiastical contract Unexpired term & notice period

M.H. Tripp 18-Dec-06 12 months

S.A. Wood 01-Sep-05 9 months

M.C.J. Hews 01-Apr-09 6 months

Remuneration policy 

The Group’s objective is to provide competitive remuneration packages, refl ective of the markets in which it operates, consistent with regulatory 
requirements and overall company performance in order to attract and retain high calibre employees and to encourage and reward superior 
performance. 

The Group’s policies are aimed at meeting those objectives and ensuring that all employees are rewarded fairly for their individual contributions to 
its performance.

Performance graph

As Ecclesiastical Insurance Offi ce plc does not have publicly traded equity shares, total Group equity shareholders’ funds growth over time (plus the 
charitable grant to the ultimate parent company, Allchurches Trust) has been used in the performance graph compared with the FTSE 250. Total 
Group equity excludes preference shareholders’ capital since this is not attributable to Allchurches Trust. 
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TSR – Total Shareholder Return refl ects the change in value of Ordinary shares in a company over time, as represented by the evolution of a notional initial investment of £100 in the shares 
and including distributions

Ecclesiastical Insurance Offi ce plc 5-year to 2011 TSR performance against the FTSE 250
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Remuneration
The remuneration of the Executive Directors and Group Executive 
Team comprises basic salary, pension contributions, an annual cash 
incentive,  a long-term performance-related cash incentive that rolls 
over three-year periods, and benefi ts in kind. There are no other 
incentive or share option schemes because of the Group ownership 
structure and current HMRC guidelines which do not make it possible 
to facilitate employee holdings of shares, the price of which refl ect 
Group performance. 

Base salary

Base salaries are reviewed annually. The Group Remuneration 
Committee takes into account market data provided by remuneration 
consultants HNBS, Towers Watson and McLagan, and the competitive 
position of salaries. Individual salaries are set taking into account the 
market data and individual performance. In 2011, Executive Directors’ 
salaries increased by 4.5% overall (2010: 4.1%).

Benefi ts

Benefi ts received by Executive Directors refl ect market practice and 
benefi ts receivable by other employees. They include life assurance, 
health insurance, a company car or car allowance, and income 
protection.

Pensions

The Ecclesiastical defi ned benefi t scheme was closed to new members 
in 2006 and a defi ned contribution scheme was introduced.  

One Executive Director, Mr. S.A. Wood, was a member of the Group’s 
defi ned benefi t scheme during 2011. The scheme underwent 
signifi cant changes during 2011. For pensionable service prior to the 
date of change (1 August 2011), in accordance with the Scheme rules, 
a common retirement age of 63 applies to all members and 
pensionable service accrues at a rate of one-eightieth of pensionable 
salary for each year of service up to a maximum of 40 years. Following 
the change, a common retirement age of 65 applies to all members for 
pensionable service after 1 August 2011 and pension accrues on a 
Career Related Average Earnings basis. No pension benefi ts are 
accrued on bonuses or other benefi ts. Pension benefi ts for Executive 
Directors employed after June 1989 are subject to a scheme-specifi c 
earnings cap and a cash allowance of 17% of salary above the cap is 
paid in lieu of pension contributions.

Two Executive Directors (2010: two), Mr. M.H. Tripp and Mr. M.C.J. 
Hews, were members of the Group’s defi ned contribution scheme 
which is operated by Engage Mutual. 

Annual cash incentive

The Group operates an annual cash incentive plan for Executive 
Directors and employees, designed to align Directors’ and employees’ 
interests with those of the shareholder through variable rewards linked 
directly to Group and individual performance. Award of these incentives 
is ultimately at the discretion of the Board.

The annual cash incentive plan for 2011 is subject to performance 
conditions relating to the Group’s COR and individual performance 
targets. Payments under the 2011 plan are triggered when the Group’s 
COR is below 100% in respect of the Group performance condition 
and to the extent that individual performance targets are met in respect 
of the individual performance condition. Payments in respect of Group 
performance are subject to a requirement for the Group’s profi t before 
tax to exceed £10 million, and payments in respect of individual 
performance to a requirement for the Group COR to be below 104% 
and a requirement for leadership, risk and customer satisfaction 
requirements to be met. For Executive Directors the benefi t under the 
plan is up to 50% of relevant salaries. Based on 2011 performance, 
no payment was made under either the Group or individual 
performance conditions.

Leaders and employees within the Group benefi t from similarly 
structured annual cash incentives. In the UK, annual cash incentives for 
leaders and employees are subject to the same COR target and 
relevant individual performance conditions as above. Equivalent 
schemes operate in the Group’s other territories, and for specifi c 
functions such as sales and investment management, appropriate 
business-specifi c performance conditions apply.

The Company is reviewing the structure of its annual incentive plan 
for 2012. 

No Directors play a part in any discussion about their own 
remuneration.

Executive Directors’ cash incentives and Group COR

COR Average bonus 
as percentage of 

salary %

2010 102.0% 10.9%

2011 105.4% 0%

REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Long-term cash incentive

The Group additionally operates a long-term incentive cash plan for 
Executive Directors and senior executives designed to align their 
interests with the long-term success of the Group and the interests of 
the shareholder. For Executive Directors, the benefi t under the plan is 
up to 30% of relevant salaries.  

Performance conditions for the 2009-2011 long-term incentive plan 
are as follows:

■  10% of the award vests if the Group achieves an average COR over 
the three-year performance period of 101% and a further 10% vests 
if a cumulative profi t before tax of £75 million is achieved over the 
three-year performance period;

■  25% of the award vests if the Group achieves an average COR over 
the three-year performance period of 96.3% and a further 25% 
vests if a cumulative profi t before tax of £155.4 million is achieved 
over the three-year performance period;

■  50% of the award vests if the Group achieves an average COR over 
the three-year performance period of 90.3% and a further 50% 
vests if a cumulative profi t before tax of £235 million is achieved 
over the three-year performance period;

■  vesting occurs on a straight-line basis between these points.

The Group Remuneration Committee believes that using COR and 
profi t before tax as the long-term performance conditions better aligns 
the interests of Executive Directors with the shareholder as COR 
encompasses the majority of aspects of the Group’s underwriting 
performance and profi t before tax incentivises overall profi tability. It 
believes that taking an average COR and a cumulative profi t before tax 
over a three-year period smoothes out cyclical insurance and stock 
market variations and ensures that, over a given period, the shareholder 
will receive a minimum underwriting return and profi t before tax before 
awards granted to Executive Directors vest.

COR has been calculated as the sum of the Group’s general insurance 
incurred losses and expenses divided by earned premiums for each 
fi nancial year, with the long-term incentive performance condition being 
the sum of the COR of the Group for each fi nancial year in the 
performance period divided by the number of fi nancial years in the 
performance period. Cumulative profi t before tax has been calculated 
as the cumulative consolidated profi t (including interest, expenses and 
operating expenses) before tax of the Group for the fi nancial years in 
the performance period.

Executive Director Reward

The Group Remuneration Committee considers the pay and 
employment conditions applicable to leaders and employees in the rest 
of the Group when determining incentive and base salary awards for 
Executive Directors. The same performance conditions apply to 
employees as to Executive Directors in respect of the annual cash 
incentive plan, and for both senior leaders and Executive Directors in 
respect of the long-term cash incentive plan.  Base salary awards for 
Executive Directors are based upon the same salary guidelines that 
apply to other employees. G
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REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED)

Audited information
The actual total cash compensation paid to Executive Directors in 2011 is outlined in the tables below:  

Remuneration of Executive Directors

Director  Base Salary & 
Allowances

Benefi ts Annual cash 
incentive*

 Long-term 
incentive

2011 
Total

2010
Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

M.H. Tripp 337   1 36 21 395   482

S.A. Wood 267 13 25 18 323   385

M.C.J. Hews 232   1 23   9 265   341

TOTAL 836 15 84 48 983 1,208

* Annual cash incentive represents the amounts paid in the year, which are in respect of the Group’s performance in the prior year.

In addition, a payment of £9,200 was made to a past Executive Director in 2011 in relation to entitlements under the long-term incentive plan (2010: payments of £1,200 and 
£14,700 to two former Executive Directors). During 2010 there was also a £53,000 annual cash incentive payment to a past Executive Director in respect of the Group’s 

performance in 2009. 

Pensions

The following pension benefi ts were accrued in 2011 by the Executive Director participating in the defi ned benefi t pension scheme:

Director Increase 
in accrued 
pension 
during 2011

Increase 
in accrued 
lump sum 
during 2011

Total 
accrued 
annual 
pension at 
31 Dec 11

Total 
accrued 
lump 
sum at 
31 Dec 11

Transfer 
value of 
accrued 
pension + 
lump sum 
at 1 Jan 11

Transfer 
value of 
accrued 
pension + 
lump sum at 
31 Dec 11

Increase in transfer 
value of accrued 
benefi t during 
the year (excl 
Directors’ own 
contributions) 2

£000 pa £000 £000 pa £000 £000 £000 £000

S.A. Wood1 1.65 4.95 10.45 31.35 120.40 121.10 0.70

1 Changes in accrued pension benefi ts disclosed above are as required by Regulation II and Schedule 8 to the Large and Medium-Sized Companies and Group (Accounts and 
Reports) Regulations 2008. For the purposes of the Listing Rules disclosure, the increases in accrued pension and accrued lump sum excluding the effects of infl ation were 
£1.22k p.a and £3.66k p.a respectively. The transfer value of these increases less individual contributions was £12.80k at 31 December 2011.

2 The increase in transfer value shown in the table above refl ects the difference between the two transfer values calculated using relevant information on the respective dates. 
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The following employer pension contributions were made by the 
Company in respect of the following Executive Directors participating in 
the defi ned contribution pension scheme.  

Director Employer contribution

2011 2010

£000 £000

M.H. Tripp 45 47

M.C.J. Hews 33 31

Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors

NED fees are normally reviewed on a biennial basis and are a matter 
for the Chairman and the Executive Directors. No Directors are involved 
in any decisions regarding their own remuneration. With effect from 
1 January 2010, the structure of NED fees was amended such that 
NEDs received an annual fee in respect of their Board appointments, 
inclusive of all Committees, and where applicable, additional fees for 
chairing Committees. The Chairman’s and Deputy Chairman’s fees 
remained all inclusive. NED fees were last adjusted with effect from 
1 January 2010 in light of market benchmark movements and the 
increased responsibilities of NED roles.

NEDs do not have service contracts and are not eligible for pensions or 
other benefi ts or for annual or long-term cash incentive plans. No other 
signifi cant awards have been made to past or present NEDs in 2011.

The fees in relation to the Company for the year were:

Director 2011 2010

£000 £000

W.M. Samuel 68.0 68.0 

Sir Philip Mawer 42.0 41.0 

The Rt. Revd. N. Baines* - 15.0

D. Christie 36.0 36.0 

M.D. Couve 34.0 34.0 

J.F. Hylands 38.0 38.0 

A.P. Latham 38.0 38.0 

The Rt. Revd. Dr. N. Peyton 35.0 35.0 

Ms. D.P. Wilson** 30.0 2.8 

TOTAL 321.0 307.8

*  The Rt. Revd. N. Baines retired as a Director at the AGM on 23 June 2010.

** Ms. D.P. Wilson was appointed as a Director on 16 December 2010.

By order of the Board

M.D. Couve
Chairman of the Group Remuneration Committee

20 March 2012
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The Group has voluntarily chosen to include a Risk Report in the annual report of 
the Company.

Group Risk Committee
The Group Risk Committee comprises the following Directors 
appointed by the Board:

A.P. Latham (Chairman)

M.C.J. Hews

J.F. Hylands

The Group Risk and Actuarial Director (a member of the Group 
Executive Team) is the Chief Risk Offi cer. He reports directly to the 
Committee and has direct access to the Chairman and NEDs. His 
remuneration is approved by the Group Remuneration Committee 
and by the Board.

The Committee meets quarterly, and held four meetings during the 
year. The remit of the Committee in line with its terms of reference 
is as follows:

■  Determine and monitor the Group’s overall risk appetite, 
tolerance and strategy;

■  Recommend the Group’s strategy, policy and processes for risk 
management;

■  Monitor the operational effectiveness of risk policies and 
systems;

■  Receive and review risk-based management information and 
bi-monthly risk management reports and make recommendations 
for change as and when appropriate;

■  Consider the effect on the risks of the Group of material fi ndings 
of compliance reports, as well as reported breaches and any 
proposed regulatory changes;

■  Consider the effect on the risks of the Group of the material 
fi ndings of internal audit reports carried out for the GAC;

■  Review annual ICA updates and recommend acceptance to the 
Board;

■  Ensure a risk management culture is embedded in the Group; 

■  Meet with the Chief Risk Offi cer at least once a year without the 
Executive Director present;

■  Advise the Group Remuneration Committee on the risk impact of 
remuneration proposals; and

■  Ensure appropriate liaison with other Board Committees e.g. 
Group Remuneration Committee and GAC.

Ecclesiastical has adopted the Three Lines of Defence Model to 
manage its business and related risks:

■  1st Line: Business Management is responsible for ownership of 
the risk within the business, setting strategy and performance 
measurement and establishing and maintaining internal control 
and risk management systems. 

■  2nd Line: Risk Management is responsible for providing a 
consistent framework across the Group, providing adequate 
training and support to the management and establishing 
minimum standards. Oversight and challenge are provided by 
the Board Risk Committee, supported by the Management Risk 
Committees.

■  3rd Line: Group Internal Audit and the GAC provide independent 
and objective assurance of the effectiveness of the Group’s 
systems of internal control.

The principal activities of the Committee during the year included:

■  Consideration of all risk matters relative to the business including 
emerging risks and risk appetite;

■  Consideration of risks related to the New Zealand earthquake 
events and the management of these at Group level;

■  Review of applicable legal and regulatory matters with particular 
focus on Solvency II and the IMAP;

■  Development of a rolling annual reporting framework;

■  Review of Group overarching risk policies in relation to Insurance 
operations, Investment Risk, IT, Human Resources, Data 
Protection and Financial Crimes, Corporate Responsibility and 
Reputation;

■  Establishment of stronger governance framework, with three 
Management Risk Committees and a formalised risk escalation 
process;

■  Strengthening of the scenario and reverse stress testing 
framework; and

■  Establishment of the ORSA process at Group level to be 
implemented in 2012.

RISK REPORT
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Enterprise Risk Management
The Group has adopted the following high-level defi nition:

Enterprise Risk Management: “The proactive enterprise-wide strategic 
process designed to identify and manage all the individual and 
aggregated risks that could impact the organisation’s ability to deliver 
its objectives.” 

It deals with both managing downside risks (threats) and supporting 
upside risks (opportunities). Risk arises as much from missed 
opportunities as it does from possible threats. 

The Group follows the Risk Management Standard as published by the 
Institute of Risk Management. Risk Management is a central part of the 
Group’s strategic management. It is the process whereby the Group 
methodically and consistently addresses the risks attaching to its 
activities with the aim of achieving sustained benefi t within each activity 
and across the portfolio of all activities. The benefi ts and opportunities 
should be viewed not just in the context of the Group itself but in 
relation to the many and varied stakeholders who can be affected.

The focus of good risk management is the identifi cation and treatment 
of these risks. 

It is a continuous and evolving process which runs throughout the 
Group’s strategy and the implementation of that strategy. It addresses 
all the risks surrounding the Group’s activities past, present and, in 
particular, future on an enterprise-wide basis. 

It is integrated into the culture of the Group with an effective policy and 
a programme led by the Group Executive Team. It assigns responsibility 
throughout the organisation with each manager and employee 
responsible for the management of risk as part of their job description. 
It supports accountability, performance measurement and reward, thus 
promoting operational effi ciency at all levels. 

Management of key risks and uncertainties

Each year the Board assesses the Group risks and action plans are 
drawn up to manage these risks to the target level defi ned by the 
Board. The key material risks identifi ed are summarised below.

Insurance risks and uncertainties
Pricing risk

Pricing risk is described as the risk of failing to price adequately for 
claims costs, expenses, cost of capital and profi t requirements; failure 
to manage portfolio risk; failure to manage the underwriting cycle; and 
failure to establish appropriate underwriting disciplines.

Disciplined underwriting and pricing is central to the business and key 
to the success of the Group. Since 2010, we have established sales, 
claims and underwriting academies to support these activities and to 
ensure the correct skill set is maintained and developed. Benchmarking 
of actuarial pricing techniques together with the high level of 
underwriting expertise and market knowledge underpinned by technical 
audits allows the Group to manage this risk.

A clear focus on being a specialist and a strategy of diversifi cation 
within the type of business underwritten and between territories helps 
to manage the underwriting cycle and reduce the variability of the 
expected outcome.

Reinsurance risk 

Reinsurance risk is defi ned as the risk of failing to access and manage 
reinsurance capacity to support the overall capital management 
strategy.

A strong reinsurance programme is a key part of the Group’s business 
model. It has enabled the Group to accept and grow the insurance 
business. Its appetite for this exposure to the reinsurance market has 
therefore always been accepted as high, and a robust mitigation 
framework is in place to manage the risk. The reinsurance strategy is 
long-term and is based on achieving objectives through establishing 
long-term relationships rather than opportunistic purchases.

The capital management strategy helps pull together all risks to the 
capital position (including reinsurance and investment risks) in an 
integrated way.

Claims reserving risk

Claims reserving risk is defi ned as the risk of actual claims and benefi t 
payments exceeding the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities.

The Group’s careful selection of risks starts with the strategy to 
underwrite primarily property business, with longer tail liability business 
only underwritten as part of a comprehensive package. This helps 
reduce the average time to receiving and paying out claims and hence 
the uncertainty surrounding claims reserving. 

Claims development and reserving levels are closely monitored. To 
ensure that prudent provisions are made an addition is made to the 
most likely outcome. This approach generally results in a favourable 
release of provisions in the current fi nancial year, arising from the 
settlement of claims from previous fi nancial years. Claims reserves are 
reviewed and signed off by an Executive Reserve Sign-Off 
Management Committee and the Board, acting on the advice and 
recommendations of a suitably qualifi ed and experienced internal 
actuarial team.

More information on pricing, reinsurance and claims reserving 
uncertainties can be found in notes 3 and 29 to the fi nancial 
statements.

Competition and distribution risk

Competition and distribution risk is described as the risk of failing to 
recognise and address changes in a competitive market, particularly 
competitors’ actions within the niches the Group operates in, as well as 
the impact on resources including talent management both from a local 
and global perspective. 

From a distribution and concentration risk perspective, this includes an 
imbalance of bargaining power with major distributors plus customer 
concentration with a small number of distributors.
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The Group Executive Team is aware of the Group’s key competitors. 
They are monitored and their impact on our markets is managed. There 
is a strong focus on delivering excellent customer service through our 
chains of distribution. Having a number of distribution channels helps 
diversify the distribution risk as does transacting business with a broker 
panel which is well diversifi ed to avoid concentration risk.

Market, credit and liquidity risks and 
uncertainties
Market risk includes uncertainty around investment performance (e.g. 
interest rate movements and falls in the values of equities) and 
currency risks (exchange rate movements). 

A robust management framework is in place to mitigate the impact to 
the Group of falls in the value of equities and changes in interest rates. 
The Investment function manages the portfolio in accordance with the 
investment strategy and guidelines agreed by the Finance and 
Investment Committee of the Board. Large equity falls have been 
experienced in recent years and, although signifi cant for the Group, the 
coverage of risk-based capital requirements has been maintained at a 
strong level. The equity portfolio typically has a beta of around 1. 
Currency risk is appropriately monitored and controlled with oversight 
by the Finance function.

Key elements of credit risk are exposure to counterparty risk through 
investments and the purchase of reinsurance. Investment counterparty 
risk is controlled by the investment strategy and guidelines. Reinsurer 
credit risk is controlled by the Reinsurance Security Committee through 
careful selection and monitoring of reinsurance partners with 
appropriate fi nancial strength. Liquidity risk arises from mismatching 
between liabilities and assets (both by timing and nature).

Increases in reinsurance balances due to catastrophe events in 
Australia and New Zealand increase the credit risk and liquidity risk for 
the Group. These territories operate regional reinsurance programmes 
with extra protection provided by the Group’s global catastrophe 
reinsurance. Substantially all of the Group’s reinsurance assets are due 
from reinsurers rated A or above.

More information on market, credit and liquidity risks can be found in 
note 4 to the fi nancial statements.

Operational risks and uncertainties
Business intelligence risk

Business intelligence risk is described as the risk of shortfalls in the 
quality or availability of management information for decision making.

Over the last two years there has been an extensive programme 
focusing on accuracy, completeness and appropriateness of data and 
effi ciency of producing information through the development of a new 
data warehouse and local activity. 

Regulatory and legal risk

Regulatory and legal risk is described as the risk of non-adherence to 
current regulations due to incorrect interpretation or purposely ignoring 

it. It also includes proposed legal and regulatory changes and inability to 
identify them in a timely manner. 

In 2011, we have strengthened our compliance and legal teams and 
the reporting framework as well as developing a legal and regulatory 
training package for all staff. 

When we assess these risks, their interactions and the effect of 
management actions are considered.

Risk management
The Group Executive Team is responsible for managing the above risks 
and for ensuring that a strong control framework is in place in all areas 
of the business. Each Group Executive member assesses the strategic 
risks identifi ed by the Board in relation to the specifi c areas they 
manage on an annual basis or when a major change affects their area. 

In addition to this, each operational manager is responsible for 
identifying and managing the operational risks in their own area 
formally at least on a bi-annual basis, and to undertake the necessary 
actions to ensure the risks are managed to the level consistent with the 
Board risk limits set in the risk appetite.

All actions are regularly reviewed and progress is monitored and 
reported to the Group Risk Committee at strategic level and to the 
Management Risk Committees at operational level through a bi-
monthly report. 

The GAC provides independent assurance of the strength and 
effectiveness of the Group’s internal systems of control through the 
activities of the Group Internal Audit and Group Compliance functions 
as well as the external auditor.

Risk appetite
The Group has a mature risk appetite framework which sets the risk 
limits and tolerances the Board is willing to accept in the following 
categories: Capital, Profi t and Corporate Responsibilities. These limits 
are linked directly to the level of economic capital the Board requires to 
protect its customers and owners in the long and short-term.

The level of risks is monitored regularly against the appetite and 
strategic decisions are made with appropriate reference to it.

Stress testing framework
A comprehensive scenario and stress testing framework is continuing 
to be developed to expand the existing fi nancial risks stress testing 
assessment part of the planning process, and the operational risk 
scenario testing. The aim is to integrate the two processes together 
with the reverse stress testing to deliver a true Enterprise Risk 
reporting framework. 

By order of the Board

A.P. Latham
Chairman of the Group Risk Committee

20 March 2012

RISK REPORT (CONTINUED)
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The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the fi nancial 
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Directors’ responsibilities
Company law requires the Directors to prepare fi nancial statements 
for each fi nancial year. Under that law the Directors are required to 
prepare the Group fi nancial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by 
the European Union and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and have 
also chosen to prepare the parent company fi nancial statements 
under IFRSs as adopted by the European Union. Under company 
law the Directors must not approve the accounts unless they are 
satisfi ed that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the Company and of the profi t or loss of the Company for that 
period. In preparing these fi nancial statements, International 
Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors:

■  properly select and apply accounting policies;

■  present information, including accounting policies, in a manner 
that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable 
information; 

■  provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specifi c 
requirements in IFRSs are insuffi cient to enable users to 
understand the impact of particular transactions, other events 
and conditions on the Company’s fi nancial position and fi nancial 
performance; and

■  make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting 
records that are suffi cient to show and explain the Company’s 
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the 
fi nancial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that 
the fi nancial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. 
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention 
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of 
the corporate and fi nancial information included on the Company’s 
website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the 
preparation and dissemination of fi nancial statements may differ 
from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Responsibility statement 
We confi rm that to the best of our knowledge:

■  the fi nancial statements, prepared in accordance with IFRS, give 
a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, fi nancial position and 
profi t or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in 
the consolidation taken as a whole; and

■  the Review of Group Operations and the Risk Report, which are 
incorporated into the Directors’ Report, include a fair review of 
the development and performance of the business and the 
position of the Company and the undertakings included in the 
consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the 
principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

By order of the Board

M.H. Tripp   M.C.J. Hews
Group Chief Executive  Chief Financial Offi cer 
20 March 2012   20 March 2012

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent auditor’s report to the members of 
Ecclesiastical Insurance Offi ce plc

We have audited the fi nancial statements of Ecclesiastical Insurance Offi ce plc 
for the year ended 31 December 2011 which comprise the consolidated income 
statement, the consolidated and parent company statement of comprehensive 
income, the consolidated and parent company statement of changes in equity, the 
consolidated and parent company statement of fi nancial position, the consolidated 
and parent company statement of cash fl ows and the related notes 1 to 37.
The fi nancial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is 
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted 
by the European Union and, as regards the parent company fi nancial statements, 
as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance 
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been 
undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we 
are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to 
anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our 
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
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Respective responsibilities of Directors 
and auditor
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, 
the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the fi nancial 
statements and for being satisfi ed that they give a true and fair 
view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the 
fi nancial statements in accordance with applicable law and 
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those 
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s 
Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the fi nancial 
statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the fi nancial statements suffi cient to give reasonable 
assurance that the fi nancial statements are free from material 
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an 
assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to 
the Group’s and the parent company’s circumstances and have 
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the 
reasonableness of signifi cant accounting estimates made by the 
Directors; and the overall presentation of the fi nancial statements. 
In addition, we read all the fi nancial and non-fi nancial information in 
the annual report to identify material inconsistencies with the 
audited fi nancial statements. If we become aware of any apparent 
material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the 
implications for our report.

Opinion on fi nancial statements
In our opinion:

■  the fi nancial statements give a true and fair view of the state of 
the Group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 
December 2011 and of the Group’s loss for the year then ended;

■  the Group fi nancial statements have been properly prepared in 
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;

■  the parent company fi nancial statements have been properly 
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European 
Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act 2006; and

■  the fi nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards 
the Group fi nancial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by 
the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the 
fi nancial year for which the fi nancial statements are prepared is 
consistent with the fi nancial statements.

Matters on which we are required to 
report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following:

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, 
in our opinion:

■  adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent 
company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been 
received from branches not visited by us; or

■  the parent company fi nancial statements are not in agreement 
with the accounting records and returns; or

■  certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specifi ed by law 
are not made; or

■  we have not received all the information and explanations we 
require for our audit.

Other matters
In our opinion the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be 
audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act 2006 that would have applied if 
the company had listed equity shares.

Colin Rawlings
(Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor 
London, United Kingdom
20 March 2012
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2011

   Notes 2011 2010
     £000   £000 

Revenue   
Gross written premiums     5, 6   484,205   487,927 
Outward reinsurance premiums    6  (172,679) (171,083)
Net change in provision for unearned premiums    6   5,897  (14,306)
Net earned premiums       317,423   302,538 

Fee and commission income     5   57,693   51,071 
Net investment return    7   21,559   86,070 
Total revenue     396,675   439,679 

Expenses   
Claims and change in insurance liabilities    8  (648,187) (374,473)
Reinsurance recoveries    8   424,852   163,398 
Fees, commissions and other acquisition costs    9  (112,707) (95,156)
Other operating and administrative expenses    (68,106) (69,797)
Change in net asset value attributable to unitholders       - (13,080)
Total operating expenses    (404,148) (389,108)

Operating (loss)/profi t    (7,473)  50,571 
Finance costs   14 (198) (128)
(Loss)/profi t before tax   5 (7,671)  50,443 
Tax credit/(expense)   15  4,443  (13,717)
(Loss)/profi t for the year from continuing operations   (3,228)  36,726 
Net loss attributable to discontinued operations   16   -  (2,281)
(Loss)/profi t for the year (attributable to equity holders of the parent) 10 (3,228)  34,445 
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CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2011

  2011  2010
  Group  Parent  Group  Parent 
  £000  £000  £000  £000 

Net fair value gains/(losses) on property   47  15 (56) 6
(Loss)/gain on currency translation differences (425)  (731) 10,124 2,597
Net (expense)/income recognised directly in equity (378) (716) 10,068 2,603

(Loss)/profi t for the year  (3,228) 27,958 34,445 34,841
Total comprehensive income attributable to equity
holders of the parent  (3,606) 27,242  44,513  37,444
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CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 December 2011
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 Share Share Equalisation Revaluation Translation Retained 

 capital premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Group        

At 1 January 2011  120,477   4,632   18,679   924   28,620   283,575   456,907 
Total comprehensive income attributable

to equity holders of the parent   -    -    -   47  (425) (3,228) (3,606)
Dividends   -    -    -    -    -  (9,181) (9,181)
Net charitable grant to ultimate parent   -    -    -    -    -  (7,534) (7,534)
Group tax relief in excess of standard rate   -    -    -    -    -  (502) (502)
Reserve transfers   -    -   4,040    -    -  (4,040)   - 
At 31 December 2011  120,477   4,632   22,719   971   28,195   259,090   436,084 
       

At 1 January 2010  80,477   4,632   21,674   980   18,496   266,561   392,820 
Total comprehensive income attributable

to equity holders of the parent   -    -    -  (56)  10,124   34,445   44,513 
Issue of share capital  40,000    -    -    -    -    -   40,000 
Dividends   -    -    -    -    -  (5,731) (5,731)
Net charitable grant to ultimate parent   -    -    -    -    -  (13,860) (13,860)
Group tax relief in excess of standard rate   -    -    -    -    -  (835) (835)
Reserve transfers   -    -  (2,995)   -    -   2,995    - 
At 31 December 2010  120,477   4,632   18,679   924   28,620   283,575   456,907 
       

Parent        

At 1 January 2011  120,477   4,632   17,494   453   10,820   219,199   373,075 
Total comprehensive income attributable

to equity holders   -    -    -   15  (731)  27,958   27,242 
Dividends   -    -    -    -    -  (9,181) (9,181)
Net charitable grant to ultimate parent   -    -    -    -    -  (7,534) (7,534)
Group tax relief in excess of standard rate   -    -    -    -    -  (1,899) (1,899)
Reserve transfers   -    -   5,225   293    -  (5,518)   - 
At 31 December 2011  120,477   4,632   22,719   761   10,089   223,025   381,703 
       

At 1 January 2010  80,477   4,632   20,709   447   8,223   203,132   317,620 

Total comprehensive income attributable

to equity holders   -    -    -   6   2,597   34,841   37,444 
Issue of share capital  40,000    -    -    -    -    -   40,000 
Dividends   -    -    -    -    -  (5,731) (5,731)
Net charitable grant to ultimate parent   -    -    -    -    -  (13,860) (13,860)
Group tax relief in excess of standard rate   -    -    -    -    -  (2,398) (2,398)
Reserve transfers   -    -  (3,215)   -    -   3,215    - 
At 31 December 2010  120,477   4,632   17,494   453   10,820   219,199   373,075 

The equalisation reserve is not distributable and must be kept in compliance with the insurance companies’ reserves regulations. The revaluation 

reserve represents cumulative net fair value gains on owner-occupied property. The translation reserve arises on consolidation of the Group’s and 

Parent’s foreign operations.
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CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
for the year ended 31 December 2011

 Notes  2011   2010
  Group  Parent  Group  Parent  
  £000  £000  £000  £000 

Assets     
Goodwill and other intangible assets 18  25,335   4,090   25,923   3,841 
Deferred acquisition costs 19  35,788   34,476   41,482   30,903 
Deferred tax assets 32  5,454   920   4,520   897 
Pension assets 20  33,713    33,713   30,185   28,061 
Property, plant and equipment 21  9,033   6,844   9,417   5,262 
Investment property 22  27,473   27,473   24,641   25,641 
Financial investments 23  829,921   660,959   834,163   630,341 
Reinsurers’ share of contract liabilities 29  541,050   142,778   286,194   159,191 
Current tax recoverable   3,882   3,879   110   110 
Other assets 25  147,030   114,618   136,661   102,560 
Cash and cash equivalents 26  155,024   116,239   164,805   125,237 
Total assets   1,813,703   1,145,989   1,558,101   1,112,044 
     
Equity     
Share capital 27  120,477   120,477   120,477   120,477 
Share premium account 28  4,632   4,632   4,632   4,632 
Retained earnings and other reserves   310,975   256,594   331,798   247,966 
Total shareholders’ equity   436,084   381,703   456,907   373,075 
     
Liabilities     
Insurance contract liabilities 29  1,249,625   659,905   965,309   633,669 
Finance lease obligations 30  1,886   1,886   1,898   1,898 
Provisions for other liabilities 31  8,717   8,202   11,227   9,745 
Retirement benefi t obligations 20  12,760   12,760   8,652   8,652 
Deferred tax liabilities 32  35,877   35,625   42,321   40,912 
Current tax liabilities   1,396   61   2,700   713 
Deferred income 33  17,557   14,341   20,562   13,842 
Other liabilities 34  49,801   31,506   48,525   29,538 
Total liabilities   1,377,619   764,286   1,101,194   738,969 
     
Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities   1,813,703   1,145,989   1,558,101   1,112,044 

The fi nancial statements of Ecclesiastical Insurance Offi ce plc, registered number 24869, on pages 55 to 118 were approved by the Board of 
Directors on 20 March 2012 and signed on its behalf by: 

W. M. Samuel: Chairman   M. H. Tripp: Group Chief Executive
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CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 December 2011

    2011      2010 
  Group  Parent  Group   Parent   
  £000   £000  £000   £000 

(Loss)/profi t before tax  (7,671)  23,341   50,443   43,196 
Adjustments for:      
Loss before tax on discontinued operations    -    -  (1,858)   - 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment   2,302   1,787   2,490   1,880 
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment   85   85   356   24 
Amortisation of intangible assets   2,101   1,347   2,050   1,208 
 Net fair value losses/(gains) on fi nancial instruments and
investment property   18,496   27,537  (44,048) (24,915)
Gain on distribution from subsidiary    -  (23,762)   -    - 
Dividend and interest income  (37,948) (27,435) (53,685) (28,292)
Finance and share issue expenses   198   198   501   477 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:       
Net increase/(decrease) in insurance contract liabilities  281,087  (10,983)  140,245   69,854 
Net (increase)/decrease in reinsurers’ share of contract
liabilities  (251,366)  28,089  (78,914) (20,836)
Net increase in investment contract liabilities    -    -   4,005    - 
 Net decrease/(increase) in deferred acquisition costs  5,555  (556) (2,561) (3,737)
Net increase in other assets  (13,452) (15,411) (18,787) (5,373)
Net (decrease)/increase in operating liabilities  (3,149) (1,385)  486  (2,214)
Net increase in other liabilities   1,595   1,638   113,968   245 
Cash (used)/generated by operations  (2,167)  4,490   114,691   31,517 
Dividends received   8,327   10,853   17,286   10,725 
Interest received   28,715   18,383   34,196   16,366 
Interest paid  (198) (198) (152) (128)
Tax paid  (4,724) (3,592) (9,085) (3,272)
Net cash from operating activities   29,953   29,936   156,936   55,208 
Cash fl ows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment  (1,458) (1,046)  (1,536) (559)
 Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment  8    -   42    - 
Purchases of intangible assets  (1,518) (1,487) (1,467) (1,297)
Investment in subsidiaries, net of cash acquired    -    -    -  (3,150)
Cash acquired on transfer of business    -   7,019    -    - 
Disposal of businesses, net of cash transferred    -    -  (587)  3,201 
Cash derecognised on deconsolidation of OEICs    -    -  (31,554)   - 
 Purchases of fi nancial instruments and investment property (365,815) (294,527) (333,903) (112,883)
 Sale of fi nancial instruments and investment property  349,223   273,293   168,538   39,495 
Net cash used by investing activities  (19,560) (16,748) (200,467) (75,193)
Cash fl ows from fi nancing activities      
Net proceeds from the issue of shares    -    -   39,827   39,827 
Payment of fi nance lease liabilities  (519) (584) (336) (339)
 Payment of group tax relief in excess of standard rate (909) (2,590) (111) (1,471)
Dividends paid to company’s shareholders  (9,181) (9,181) (5,731) (5,731)
Donations paid to ultimate parent undertaking  (10,250) (10,250) (23,750) (23,750)
Net cash (used by)/from fi nancing activities  (20,859) (22,605)  9,899   8,536 
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  (10,466) (9,417) (33,632) (11,449)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year   164,805   125,237   193,584   134,683 
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents   685   419   4,853   2,003 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year   155,024   116,239   164,805   125,237  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Accounting policies
Ecclesiastical Insurance Offi ce plc (hereafter referred to as the 
‘Company’, or ‘Parent’), a public limited company incorporated and 
domiciled in England, together with its subsidiaries (collectively, the 
‘Group’) operates principally as a provider of general insurance in 
addition to offering a range of fi nancial services, with offi ces in the UK, 
Ireland, Canada, Australia and New Zealand. The principal accounting 
policies adopted in preparing the Group’s International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) fi nancial statements are set out below. 

Basis of preparation

The Group’s consolidated fi nancial statements have been prepared 
using the following accounting policies, which are in accordance with 
IFRS applicable at 31 December 2011 issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board and endorsed by the European Union. The 
fi nancial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, 
except for the revaluation of properties and certain fi nancial 
instruments.

A review of the Group’s business activities is provided within the Review 
of Group Operations. In addition, notes 3 and 4 to the fi nancial 
statements disclose the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties, 
including exposures to insurance and fi nancial risk and the Group’s 
objectives for managing capital. The Group has considerable fi nancial 
resources and, as a consequence, the Directors believe the Group is 
well-placed to manage its business risks successfully and continue in 
operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they 
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual 
report and accounts.

In accordance with IFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, the Group has applied 
existing accounting practices for insurance and participating investment 
contracts, modifi ed as appropriate to comply with the IFRS framework 
and applicable standards.

Items included in the fi nancial statements of each of the Group’s 
entities are measured in the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which that entity operates (the ‘functional currency’). The 
consolidated fi nancial statements are stated in sterling, which is the 
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

In the current year, the Group has adopted IAS 24 (Revised), Related 

Party Disclosures and Improvements to IFRSs 2010. Neither of these 
had a signifi cant impact on the fi nancial statements.

At the date of authorisation of these fi nancial statements, the following 
Standards and Amendments which have not been applied in these 
fi nancial statements were in issue but not yet effective (and had not yet 
been adopted by the EU):

■  IAS 19 (Revised), Employee Benefi ts

■  IAS 27 (Revised), Separate Financial Statements

■  IAS 28 (Revised), Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

■  IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements

■  IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements

■  IFRS 12, Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities

■  IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement

■  Amendment to IAS 1 (Revised), Presentation of Financial Statements

■  Amendment to IAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation

■  Amendments to IFRS 7 and IFRS 9 (Revised), Financial Instruments

On adoption of IAS 19 (Revised), the expected return on plan assets 
will match the rate used to discount the defi ned benefi t obligation. The 
‘corridor method’ will be removed and any actuarial gains and losses 
arising will be recognised in full. On adoption of the amendment to 
IAS 1 (Revised), there will be a presentational change to the statement 
of comprehensive income. On adoption of the amendment to IFRS 7, 
there will be new disclosure requirements for fi nancial assets and 
liabilities that are offset in the statement of fi nancial position. The 
adoption of the other Standards and Amendments is not expected to 
signifi cantly impact the Group.

The Group has no transactions within the scope of other new or revised 
Standards or Interpretations which were effective or issued in the year.

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, a separate 
profi t and loss account for the Company is not presented. 

Use of estimates

The preparation of fi nancial statements requires the use of estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the fi nancial statements. Although these estimates are based 
on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual 
results ultimately may differ from those estimates.

Operating profi t or loss

Operating profi t or loss is stated before fi nance costs.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Group, directly or indirectly, 
has the power to govern the fi nancial and operating policies in order to 
gain economic benefi ts. The results and cash fl ows relating to 
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of in the year are included in the 
consolidated income statement and the consolidated statement of cash 
fl ows from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal. All 
inter-company transactions, balances and profi ts are eliminated.
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In the Parent statement of fi nancial position, subsidiaries are accounted 
for within fi nancial investments at cost, in accordance with IAS 27, 
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for 
business combinations. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the 
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities 
incurred or assumed at the acquisition date. Identifi able assets acquired 
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business 
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition 
date. Non-controlling interests are measured either at fair value or at a 
proportionate share of the identifi able net assets of the acquiree. 
Goodwill is measured as the excess of the aggregate of the 
consideration transferred, the non-controlling interests and, for an 
acquisition achieved in stages, the fair value of previously held equity 
interest, over the fair value of the identifi able net assets acquired. If the 
cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets acquired, 
the difference is recognised directly in the income statement.

For business combinations involving entities or businesses under 
common control, the cost of the acquisition equals the value of net 
assets transferred, as recognised by the transferor at the date of the 
transaction. No goodwill arises on such transactions.

Investment vehicles 

Investment vehicles such as mutual funds are consolidated when the 
Group has a controlling interest. The non-controlling interests in these 
vehicles are classifi ed as liabilities and appear as net asset value 
attributable to unitholders in the consolidated statement of fi nancial 
position.

Foreign currency translation

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated from their 
functional currencies into the Group’s presentation currency using year 
end exchange rates, and their income and expenses using average 
exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising from the 
translation of the net investment in foreign operations are taken to the 
currency translation reserve within equity. On disposal of a foreign 
operation, such exchange differences are transferred out of this reserve 
and are recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or loss 
on sale. 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency 
using exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. 
Exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such 
transactions, and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies, are recognised in the income 
statement.

Product classifi cation

Contracts under which the Group accepts signifi cant insurance risk 
from another party (the policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the 
policyholder or other benefi ciary if a specifi ed uncertain future event 
(the insured event) adversely affects the policyholder, are classifi ed as 
insurance contracts. Contracts that do not transfer signifi cant insurance 
risk are classifi ed as investment or service contracts. All of the Group’s 
long-term business contracts are classifi ed as insurance contracts.

Both insurance and investment contracts may contain a discretionary 
participating feature, which is defi ned as a contractual right to receive 
additional benefi ts as a supplement to guaranteed benefi ts. The Group 
does not have any such participating contracts (referred to as with-
profi t contracts). All of the company’s long-term business contracts are 
referred to as non-profi t contracts in the fi nancial statements.

Premium income

General insurance business

Premiums are shown gross of commission paid to intermediaries and 
accounted for in the period in which the risk commences. Estimates are 
included for premiums not notifi ed by the year end and provision is 
made for the anticipated lapse of renewals not yet confi rmed. Those 
proportions of premiums written in a year which relate to periods of risk 
extending beyond the end of the year are carried forward as unearned 
premiums.

Premiums written include adjustments to premiums written in prior 
periods and estimates for pipeline premiums and are shown net of 
insurance premium taxes.  Outward reinsurance premiums are 
accounted for in the same accounting period as the premiums for the 
related direct insurance or inwards reinsurance business.

Long-term business

Insurance contract premiums are recognised as revenue when the 
liabilities arising from them are created.

Revenue from investment contracts 

Fees charged for investment management services are recognised as 
revenue when the services are provided. Initial fees which exceed the 
level of recurring fees and relate to the future provision of services are 
deferred and amortised over the anticipated period in which services will 
be provided. Fees charged for investment management services for 
institutional and retail fund management are also recognised on this 
basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 Accounting policies (continued)

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income consists primarily of reinsurance 
commissions receivable in addition to income from the Group’s 
insurance broking activities, investment fund management fees, 
distribution fees from mutual funds and commission revenue from the 
sale of mutual fund shares. Reinsurance commissions receivable and 
other commission income is recognised on the trade date. Income 
generated from insurance placements are recognised at the inception 
date of the cover. Revenue from investment management fees and 
distribution fees is recognised when earned.

Net investment return

Net investment return consists of dividends, interest and rents 
receivable for the year, realised gains and losses, and unrealised gains 
and losses on fi nancial instruments and investment properties. 
Dividends on equity securities are recorded as revenue on the ex-
dividend date. Interest and rental income is recognised as it accrues. 

Unrealised gains and losses are calculated as the difference between 
carrying value and original cost, and the movement during the year is 
recognised in the income statement.  The value of realised gains and 
losses includes an adjustment for previously recognised unrealised 
gains or losses on investments disposed of in the accounting period.

Claims

Long-term insurance business claims and death claims are accounted 
for when notifi ed. 

General insurance claims incurred include all losses occurring during 
the year, whether reported or not, related handling costs, a reduction for 
the value of salvage and other recoveries, and any adjustments to 
claims outstanding from previous years.

Claims handling costs include all internal and external costs incurred in 
connection with the negotiation and settlement of claims.

Insurance contract liabilities

General insurance provisions 

(i) Outstanding claims provisions
General insurance outstanding claims provisions are based on the 
estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled at the year 
end date, whether reported or not, together with related claims handling 
costs. Signifi cant delays are experienced in the notifi cation and 
settlement of certain types of general insurance claims, particularly in 
respect of liability business, the ultimate cost of which cannot be known 
with certainty at the year end date. Any estimate represents a 
determination within a range of possible outcomes. Claims provisions 
are not discounted. 

(ii) Provision for unearned premiums 
The proportion of written premiums, gross of commission payable to 
intermediaries, attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as a 
provision for unearned premiums. The change in this provision is taken 
to the income statement in order that revenue is recognised over the 
period of risk.

(iii) Liability adequacy
At each reporting date, the Group reviews its unexpired risks and 
carries out a liability adequacy test for any overall excess of expected 
claims and deferred acquisition costs over unearned premiums, using 
the current estimates of future cash fl ows under its contracts.  
Unexpired risks are assessed separately for each class of business.  
Surpluses and defi cits are offset where business classes are 
considered to be managed together.

Long-term business provisions

Under current IFRS requirements, insurance contract liabilities are 
measured using accounting policies consistent with those adopted 
previously. Accounting for such contracts is determined in accordance 
with the Statement of Recommended Practice issued by the 
Association of British Insurers in December 2005.

The long-term business provision is determined using methods and 
assumptions approved by the Directors based on advice from the 
Actuarial Function Holder.  Initially it is calculated to comply with the 
reporting requirements under the Prudential Sourcebook for Insurers. 
This statutory solvency basis of valuation is then adjusted by eliminating 
or adjusting certain reserves advised under insurance companies’ 
regulations and general contingency reserves. This adjusted basis is 
referred to as the modifi ed statutory solvency basis.  The consequent 
long-term business provision is grossed up for the impact of 
reinsurance where applicable.

Reinsurance

The Group assumes and cedes reinsurance in the normal course of 
business, with retention limits varying by line of business. Premiums on 
reinsurance assumed are recognised as revenue in the same manner 
as direct business. Outwards reinsurance premiums are accounted for 
in the same accounting period as the related premiums for the direct or 
inwards reinsurance business being reinsured. The Group previously 
ceded reinsurance on the long-term business which was disposed of 
during the prior year and does not reinsure its existing long-term 
business.

Reinsurance assets primarily include balances due from both insurance 
and reinsurance companies for ceded insurance liabilities. Amounts 
recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with 
the outstanding claims provisions or settled claims associated with the 
reinsured policies and in accordance with the relevant reinsurance 
contract.
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Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the 
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifi able assets and liabilities of 
the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on 
acquisitions prior to 1 January 2004 (the date of transition to IFRS) is 
carried at book value (original cost less amortisation) on that date, less 
any subsequent impairment.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less 
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an 
entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Computer software 

Computer software is carried at historical cost less accumulated 
amortisation, and amortised over a useful life of between three and fi ve 
years, using the straight-line method. The amortisation charge for the 
period is included in the income statement within other operating and 
administrative expenses.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets consist of acquired customer and distribution 
relationships, and are carried at cost at acquisition less accumulated 
amortisation after acquisition. Amortisation is on a straight-line basis 
over the weighted average estimated useful life of intangible assets 
acquired. The amortisation charge for the period is included in the 
income statement within other operating and administrative expenses.

Property, plant and equipment

Owner-occupied properties are stated at open market value and 
movements are taken to a separate reserve within equity. When such 
properties are sold, the accumulated revaluation surpluses are 
transferred from this reserve to retained earnings. Valuations are carried 
out at least every three years by external qualifi ed surveyors. All other 
items classed as property, plant and equipment within the statement of 
fi nancial position are carried at historical cost less accumulated 
depreciation.

Land is not depreciated. No depreciation is provided on owner-occupied 
properties since such depreciation would be immaterial. Depreciation is 
calculated on the straight-line method to write down the cost of other 
assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as 
follows: 

   Computer equipment  3 - 5 years

   Motor vehicles   27% reducing balance or
     length of lease

    Fixtures, fi ttings and 
offi ce equipment  3 - 15 years

Where the carrying amount of an item carried at historical cost less 
accumulated depreciation is greater than its estimated recoverable 
amount, it is written down to its recoverable amount by way of an 
impairment charge to the income statement.

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during 
the fi nancial period in which they are incurred.

Investment property

Investment property comprises land and buildings which are held for 
long-term rental yields. It is carried at fair value with changes in fair 
value recognised in the income statement within net investment return. 
Investment property is valued annually by external qualifi ed surveyors at 
open market value.

Financial instruments 

IAS 39 requires the classifi cation of certain fi nancial assets and 
liabilities into separate categories for which the accounting 
requirements differ. 

The classifi cation depends on the nature and purpose of the fi nancial 
assets and liabilities, and is determined at the time of initial recognition. 
Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value. Their 
subsequent measurement depends on their classifi cation:

■  fi nancial instruments designated as at fair value through profi t or loss 
and those held for trading are subsequently carried at fair value. 
Changes in fair value are included in the income statement in the 
period in which they arise; and

■  all other fi nancial assets and liabilities are held at amortised cost, 
using the effective interest method (except for short-term receivables 
and payables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial).

The Directors consider that the carrying value of those fi nancial assets 
and liabilities not carried at fair value in the fi nancial statements 
approximates to their fair value.

Offset of fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in 
the statement of fi nancial position, when there is a legally enforceable 
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle 
on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Financial investments

The Group classifi es its fi nancial investments as either fi nancial assets 
at fair value through profi t or loss (designated as such or held for 
trading) or loans and receivables. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 Accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profi t or loss

Financial investments are classifi ed into this category if they are 
managed, and their performance evaluated, on a fair value basis. 
Purchases and sales of these investments are recognised on the trade 
date, which is the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the 
assets, at their fair value adjusted for transaction costs. Financial 
investments within this category are classifi ed as held for trading if they 
are derivatives or acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the 
near-term.

The fair values of investments are based on quoted bid prices. Where 
there is no active market, fair value is established using a valuation 
technique based on observable market data where available. There is 
no current intention to dispose of these investments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables, comprising mortgages and other loans, are 
recognised when cash is advanced to borrowers. These are carried at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. To the extent that a 
loan is uncollectable, it is written off as impaired. Subsequent recoveries 
are credited to the income statement.

Derivative fi nancial instruments

Derivative fi nancial instruments include fi nancial instruments that derive 
their value from underlying equity instruments or foreign exchange 
rates. For a variety of reasons, Group derivative transactions, while 
providing effective economic hedges under the Group’s risk 
management positions, do not qualify for hedge accounting under the 
specifi c IFRS rules and are therefore treated as derivatives held for 
trading. All derivatives are initially recognised in the statement of 
fi nancial position at their fair value, which usually represents their cost, 
including any premium paid. They are subsequently re-measured at their 
fair value with changes in the fair value recognised immediately in net 
investment return. All derivatives are carried as assets when the fair 
values are positive and as liabilities when the fair values are negative.

The notional or contractual amounts associated with derivative fi nancial 
instruments are not recorded as assets or liabilities on the statement of 
fi nancial position as they do not represent the fair value of these 
transactions. Collateral pledged by way of cash margins on futures 
contracts is recognised as an asset on the statement of fi nancial 
position within cash and cash equivalents.

Deferred acquisition costs

General insurance business

For general insurance business, a proportion of commission and other 
acquisition costs relating to unearned premiums is carried forward as 
deferred acquisition costs or, with regard to reinsurance outwards, as 
deferred income. Deferred acquisition costs are amortised over the 
period in which the related revenues are earned. The reinsurers’ share 
of deferred acquisition costs is amortised in the same manner as the 
underlying asset.

Long-term business

For insurance contracts, acquisition costs comprise direct costs such as 
initial commission and the indirect costs of obtaining and processing 
new business. Acquisition costs which are incurred during a fi nancial 
year are deferred and amortised over the period during which the costs 
are expected to be recoverable. No acquisition costs have been 
deferred on the Group’s existing long-term business.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call 
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts.

Insurance broking debtors and creditors

Where the Group acts as agent in placing the insurable risks of clients 
with insurers, debtors arising from such transactions are not included 
within the Group’s assets. When the Group receives cash in respect of 
resultant premiums or claims, a corresponding liability is established in 
other creditors in favour of the insurer or client. Where the Group 
provides premium fi nance facilities to clients, amounts due are included 
within other debtors, with the amount owing for onward transmission 
included in other creditors.

Leases

Leases where a signifi cant portion of the risks and rewards of 
ownership is retained by the lessor are classifi ed as operating leases. 
Payments made as lessees under operating leases are charged to the 
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. 
Rental income received as lessor under operating leases is credited to 
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the 
lease.

Leases where a signifi cant portion of the risks and rewards of 
ownership is transferred to the Group are classifi ed as fi nance leases. 
Assets obtained under fi nance lease contracts are capitalised as 
property, plant and equipment and are depreciated over the period of 
the lease. Obligations under such agreements are included within 
liabilities net of fi nance charges allocated to future periods. The interest 
element of the lease payments is charged to the income statement over 
the period of the lease.



65Ecclesiastical Insurance Offi ce plc

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or 
constructive obligation, as a result of past events, and it is probable that 
an outfl ow of resources, embodying economic benefi ts, will be required 
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the 
obligation can be made. Where the Group expects a provision to be 
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but 
only when the reimbursement is more probable than not.

The Group recognises a provision for onerous contracts when the 
expected benefi ts to be derived from a contract are less than the 
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed if the future obligation is probable 
but the amount cannot be reliably estimated.

Employee benefi ts

Pension obligations 

The Group operates a number of defi ned benefi t and defi ned 
contribution plans, the assets of which are held in separate trustee 
administered funds.

For defi ned benefi t plans, the pension costs are assessed using the 
projected unit credit method. Under this method, the cost of providing 
pensions is charged to the income statement so as to spread the 
regular cost over the service lives of employees, in accordance with the 
advice of qualifi ed actuaries. The pension obligation is measured as the 
present value of the estimated future cash outfl ows using a discount 
rate based on market yields for high quality corporate bonds. The 
resulting pension scheme surplus or defi cit appears as an asset or 
obligation in the consolidated and parent statements of fi nancial 
position. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past 
service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions 
in future employer contributions to the scheme.

In accordance with IAS 19, Employee Benefi ts, actuarial gains or losses 
are accounted for using the ‘corridor method’. Actuarial gains and losses 
are recognised in the income statement to the extent that they exceed 
10% of the greater of the fair value of the scheme assets or the 
present value of the gross defi ned benefi t obligations in the scheme. 
Actuarial gains and losses exceeding 10% are spread over the 
expected average remaining working lives of the employees 
participating in the scheme.

Contributions in respect of defi ned contribution schemes are 
recognised as an expense in the income statement as incurred.

Other post-employment obligations

Some Group companies provide post-employment healthcare benefi ts 
to their retirees. The expected costs of these benefi ts are accrued over 
the period of employment using an accounting methodology similar to 
that for defi ned benefi t pension plans. Actuarial gains and losses are 
recognised immediately in the income statement. Independent qualifi ed 
actuaries value these obligations annually.

Other benefi ts

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are 
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the 
estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave as a result of 
services rendered by employees up to the year end date.

Taxation       

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is 
recognised in the income statement except to the extent that it relates 
to items taken directly to equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable result for the 
period and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous 
periods.

Deferred tax is provided in full on temporary differences between the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for fi nancial reporting 
purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. Deferred tax is 
measured using tax rates expected to apply when the related deferred 
tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled based on tax 
rates and laws which have been enacted or substantively enacted at the 
year end date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that 
future taxable profi t will be available against which the temporary 
differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Appropriations

Dividends   

Dividends on Ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in 
which they are declared and, for the fi nal dividend, approved by 
shareholders. Dividends on Irredeemable Preference shares are 
recognised in the period in which they are declared and appropriately 
approved.

Charitable grant to ultimate parent undertaking

Payments are made via Gift Aid to the ultimate parent company, 
Allchurches Trust Limited, a registered charity. The Group does not 
regard these payments as being expenses of the business and, as such, 
recognises them net of tax in equity in the period in which they are 
approved. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Critical accounting estimates and 
judgements in applying accounting policies
The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next fi nancial year. Estimates 
and judgements are regularly reviewed and based on historical 
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events 
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(a)  The ultimate liability arising from claims made under general 
business insurance contracts 

The estimation of the ultimate liability arising from claims made under 
general business insurance contracts is a critical accounting estimate. 
There are various sources of uncertainty as to how much the Group will 
ultimately pay with respect to such contracts. There is uncertainty as to 
the total number of claims made on each class of business, the 
amounts that such claims will be settled for and the timings of any 
payments.

The uncertainties surrounding the estimates of claims payments for the 
various classes of business are discussed further in note 3. 

(b)  Estimate of future benefi t payments and premiums arising 
from long-term insurance contracts

The determination of the liabilities under long-term insurance contracts 
is dependent on estimates made by the Group. 

Estimates are made as to the expected number of deaths for each of 
the years in which the Group is exposed to risk. The Group bases these 
estimates on standard industry and national mortality tables that refl ect 
recent historical mortality experience, with allowance also being made 
for expected future mortality improvements. The estimated mortality 
rates profi le and infl ation rate for index-linked benefi ts determines the 
provisions for forecast benefi t payments net of forecast premium 
receipts.

Estimates are also made as to future investment income arising from 
the assets backing long-term insurance contracts. These estimates are 
based on current market returns as well as expectations about future 
economic and fi nancial developments. 

In addition to the best estimates of future deaths, infl ation, investment 
returns and administration expenses, a margin for risk and uncertainty is 
added to these assumptions in calculating the liabilties of long-term 
contracts. 

(c)  Pension and other post-employment benefi ts 

The cost of these benefi ts and the present value of the pension and 
other post-employment benefi t liabilities depend on factors that are 
determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The 
assumptions used in determining the charge in the income statement 
for these benefi ts include the expected long-term rate of return on the 
relevant plan assets, the discount rate and, in the case of the post-
employment medical benefi ts, expected medical costs infl ation. Any 
changes in these assumptions will impact the income statement charge 
and may affect planned funding of the pension plans. The expected 
return on plan assets assumption is determined by considering 
long-term historical returns, asset allocation and future estimates of 
long-term investment returns. The Group determines an appropriate 
discount rate at the end of each year, to be used to determine the 
present value of estimated future cash outfl ows expected to be 
required to settle the pension and post-employment benefi t obligations. 

In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Group considered 
interest rates of high quality corporate bonds that are denominated in 
the currency in which the benefi ts will be paid, and that have terms to 
maturity approximating the terms of the related pension liability. The 
expected rate of medical cost infl ation has been determined by 
comparing the historical relationship of the actual medical cost 
increases with the rate of infl ation. Other key assumptions for the 
pension and post-employment benefi t costs and credits are based in 
part on current market conditions. Additional information is disclosed in 
note 20.       
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3 Insurance risk
The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the 
insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the amount of the resulting 
claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is 
unpredictable and diffi cult to quantify with certainty.

The principal risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is 
that the actual claims and benefi t payments exceed the carrying 
amount of the insurance liabilities, which may occur if the frequency or 
severity of claims and benefi ts are greater than estimated. Insurance 
events are unpredictable and the actual level of claims and benefi ts 
may vary from year to year from the estimates established using 
statistical techniques.

Factors that typically aggravate insurance risk include lack of risk 
diversifi cation in terms of type and amount of risk, geographical spread 
and type of customer covered.

Experience shows that the larger and more diversifi ed the portfolio of 
similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability about the 
expected outcome will be. The Group’s insurance underwriting strategy 
aims to diversify the type of insurance risks accepted in order to reduce 
the variability of the expected outcome. 

(a) General business risks 

General insurance business classes written include property and liability. 
Property cover mainly compensates the policyholder for damage 
suffered to their properties or for the value of property lost. Property 
may also include cover for pecuniary loss through the inability to use 
damaged insured commercial properties. Liability insurance contracts 
protect policyholders from the liability to compensate injured employees 
(employers’ liability) and third parties (public liability). Motor policies 
provide both property and liability cover for the insured. Injury, death or 
incapacity as a result of an unforeseen event is covered by the accident 
class of business.

In all operations pricing controls are in place, underpinned by sound 
statistical analysis and market expertise and appropriate external 
consultant advice. The Group manages risks to limit severity through its 
underwriting strategy, a comprehensive reinsurance programme and 
proactive claims handling. Net retention limits are in place and the 
Group arranges catastrophe reinsurance cover to protect against 
aggregations of losses.

Frequency and severity of claims

Property classes

For property insurance contracts, including the property element of 
motor contracts, the number of claims made can be affected by 
weather events, changes in climate and crime rates. Individual claims 
can vary in amount since the property insured is diverse in both size and 
nature. The cost of repairing property varies according to the extent of 
damage, cost of materials and labour charges.

Climate change may give rise to more frequent and severe extreme 
weather events, such as river fl ooding, hurricanes and drought, and their 
consequences, for example, subsidence claims. 

The maximum claim payable is limited to the sum insured. The Group 
has the right to re-price the risk on renewal. It also has the ability to 
impose deductibles, reject fraudulent claims and pursue third parties for 
payment of some or all costs. These contracts are underwritten on a 
reinstatement basis or repair and renovation basis as appropriate. Costs 
of rebuilding properties, of replacement or indemnity for contents and 
time taken to restart operations for business interruption are the key 
factors that infl uence the level of claims. Individual large claims are 
more likely to arise from fi re, storm, earthquake or fl ood damage. The 
greatest likelihood of an aggregation of claims arises from weather, 
earthquake or recession-related events.

Liability classes 

For liability insurance contracts, including the liability element of motor 
contracts, the frequency and severity of claims can be affected by 
several factors. The most signifi cant are the increasing level of awards 
for damages suffered, the courts’ move to periodic payments awards 
and the increase in the number of cases that were latent for a long 
period of time. Infl ation, from these and other sources, is a signifi cant 
factor due to the long period typically required to settle these claims.  

The Group has the right to re-price the risk on renewal. It also has the 
ability to impose deductibles, reject fraudulent claims and pursue third 
parties for payment of some or all costs. The severity of bodily injury 
claims is highly infl uenced by the value of loss of earnings and the 
future cost of care.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3 Insurance risk (continued)

2011    Type of risk
  Property  Liability  Motor  Accident  Total 
Group  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 

Territory 
United Kingdom Gross  207,179   73,747   37,290   14,372   332,588 
 Net  105,887   66,770   35,625   13,500   221,782 
Australia and New Zealand  Gross  54,573   22,861   6,251   1,126   84,811 
 Net  8,433   17,693   5,986   975   33,087 
Canada Gross  25,251   8,968    -    -   34,219 
 Net  19,297   8,140    -    -   27,437 
Ireland Gross  7,652   5,626   6   181   13,465 
 Net  4,795   5,131   5   168   10,099 
Total Gross  294,655   111,202   43,547   15,679   465,083 
 Net  138,412   97,734   41,616   14,643   292,405 

Parent

Territory 
United Kingdom Gross  207,182   73,747   37,290   14,372   332,591 
 Net  105,887   66,770   35,625   13,500   221,782 
Canada Gross  25,251   8,968    -    -   34,219 
 Net  19,297   8,140    -    -   27,437 
Ireland Gross  7,652   5,626   6   181   13,465 
 Net  4,795   5,131   5   168   10,099 
Total Gross  240,085   88,341   37,296   14,553   380,275 
 Net  129,979   80,041   35,630   13,668   259,318

Concentrations of risk 

The underwriting strategy is designed to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversifi ed in terms of type and amount of risk and geographical 
spread. The Group protects its gross underwriting exposure through the use of a comprehensive programme of reinsurance. The concentration of 
insurance risk for the fi nancial year before and after reinsurance by territory in relation to the type of risk accepted is summarised below, with 
reference to written premiums.
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2010    Type of risk
  Property  Liability  Motor  Accident  Total 
Group  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 

Territory 
United Kingdom Gross  216,635   72,891   33,788   13,226   336,540 
 Net  115,614   65,583   31,962   12,187   225,346 
Australia and New Zealand  Gross  67,603   19,402   8,509   817   96,331 
 Net  22,645   16,508   8,015   690   47,858 
Canada Gross  21,307   7,838    -    -   29,145 
 Net  13,529   7,284    -    -   20,813 
Ireland Gross  7,252   4,986   4   148   12,390 
 Net  4,586   4,580   4   136   9,306 
Total Gross  312,797   105,117   42,301   14,191   474,406 
 Net  156,374   93,955   39,981   13,013   303,323 
      
Parent

Territory       
United Kingdom Gross  207,552   64,592   31,081   12,988   316,213 
 Net  107,847   59,374   29,916   12,006   209,143 
Canada Gross  21,307   7,838    -    -   29,145 
 Net  13,529   7,284    -    -   20,813 
Ireland Gross  7,252   4,986   4   148   12,390 
 Net  4,586   4,580   4   136   9,306 
Total Gross  236,111   77,416   31,085   13,136   357,748 
 Net  125,962   71,238   29,920   12,142   239,262  

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

Property classes

The property classes, including property damage under motor contracts, 
give rise to a variety of different types of claims including fi re, theft, 
business interruption, weather damage, subsidence and accidental 
damage to insured vehicles. There can be variability in both the number 
of claims in each period and the size of those claims. If a weather event 
happens near the end of the fi nancial year, then the uncertainty about 
ultimate claims cost in the fi nancial statements is much higher because 
there is insuffi cient time for adequate data to be received to assess the 
fi nal cost of claims.

Claims payment, on average, occurs within a year of the event that gives 
rise to the claim. However, there is variability around this average with 
larger claims typically taking longer to settle.

Subsidence claims are diffi cult to predict because the damage is often 
not apparent for some time. Changes in soil moisture conditions can 
give rise to changes in claim volumes over time. The ultimate 
settlements can be small or large with a greater risk of a settled claim 
being re-opened at a later date.

Liability classes

The settlement value of claims arising under public and employers’ 
liability and the liability element of motor contracts is particularly diffi cult 
to predict. There is uncertainty as to whether any payments will be 
made and, if they are, the amount and timing of the payments. Key 
factors driving the high levels of uncertainty include the late notifi cation 
of possible claim events and the legal process.

Late notifi cation of possible claims necessitates the holding of 
provisions for incurred claims that may only emerge some years into the 
future. In particular, the effect of infl ation over such a long period can be 
considerable and is uncertain. A lack of comparable past experience 
makes it diffi cult to quantify the number of claims and, for certain types 
of claims, the amounts for which they will ultimately settle. The legal and 
legislative framework continues to develop, which has a consequent 
impact on the uncertainty as to the length of the claims settlement 
process and the ultimate settlement amounts.

Claims that may arise from the liability portfolios include damage to 
property, physical injury, disease and psychological trauma. The Group 
has a different exposure profi le to most other commercial lines 
insurance companies as it has lower exposure to industrial risks, where 
uncertainty is higher. Therefore, claims for industrial diseases are less 
common for the Group than injury claims such as slips, trips and back 
injuries. 
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Claims payment, on average, occurs about three years after the event 
that gives rise to the claim. However, there is signifi cant variability 
around this average.

Note 29 presents the development of the estimate of ultimate claim 
cost for public and employers’ liability claims occurring in a given year. 
This gives an indication of the accuracy of the estimation technique for 
incurred claims.

Sources of uncertainty

The ultimate settlement cost of incurred general insurance claims is 
inherently uncertain. Such uncertainty includes:

■  whether a claim event has occurred or not and how much it will 
ultimately settle for;

■  variability in the speed with which claims are notifi ed and in the time 
taken to settle them, especially complex cases resolved through the 
courts;

■  changes in the business portfolio affecting factors such as the 
number of claims and their typical settlement costs, which may differ 
signifi cantly from past patterns;

■  new types of claim, including latent claims, which arise from time to 
time;

■  changes in legislation and court attitudes to compensation, which 
may apply retrospectively; 

■  the way in which certain reinsurance contracts (principally liability) will 
be interpreted in relation to unusual/latent claims where aggregation 
of claimants and exposure over time are issues; and 

■  whether all such reinsurances will remain in force over the long-term.

Prudence in the provisions for outstanding claims

The Group has taken into account the uncertain nature of claims 
reporting and settlement when provisioning for outstanding claims.

Provisions for latent claims

The public and employers’ liability classes can give rise to very late 
reported claims, which are often referred to as latent claims. These can 
vary in nature and are diffi cult to predict. They typically emerge slowly 
over many years. The Group has refl ected this uncertainty and believes 
that it holds adequate reserves for latent claims that may result from 
exposure periods up to the reporting date.

(b) Long-term business fund

The Group provides Whole of Life insurance policies to support funeral 
planning products, for most of which the future benefi ts are linked to 
infl ation. 

The principal insurance risk that the Group faces under these contracts 
is that the actual claims payments exceed the carrying amount of the 
insurance liabilities, which may occur if the timing of claims are different 
from assumed. Insurance events are unpredictable and the actual level 
of claims may vary from year to year from the estimate established 
using actuarial techniques. 

Uncertainty in the estimation of the timing of future claims arises from 
the unpredictability of long-term changes in overall levels of mortality. 
The Group bases these estimates on standard industry and national 
mortality tables. The most signifi cant factors that could alter the 
expected mortality rates profi le are epidemics, widespread changes in 
lifestyle and continued improvement in medical science and social 
conditions. The primary risk on these contracts is the level of future 
investment returns on the assets backing the liabilities over the life of 
the policyholders. The investment risk within this has been largely 
mitigated by holding fi xed interest assets of a similar term to the 
expected liabilities profi le. The mortality risk is retained by the Group 
and directly impacts shareholders’ equity.

The amount reserved under the long-term business technical provision 
is set out below:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3 Insurance risk (continued)

 Non-profi t fund
      2011  2010
      £000   £000 

Long-term business provision
Life assurance - funeral plan business       81,714    60,663 
Total technical provisions excluding outstanding claims     81,714    60,663 
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4 Financial risk and capital management
The Group is exposed to fi nancial risk through its fi nancial assets, fi nancial liabilities, reinsurance assets and insurance liabilities. In particular the 
key fi nancial risk is that the proceeds from its fi nancial assets are not suffi cient to fund the obligations arising from its insurance contracts. The 
most important components of fi nancial risk are interest rate risk, credit risk, currency risk and equity price risk.

There has been no change from the prior period in the nature of fi nancial risks that the Group is exposed to. The Part VII insurance business 
transfer of Ansvar Insurance Company Limited during the year has increased exposure to certain risks at the Parent level. The Group’s 
management and measurement of fi nancial risks is informed by either stochastic modelling or stress testing techniques.

(a) Categories of fi nancial instruments

 Financial assets Financial liabilities
  Designated  Held for  Loans and   Held for  At amortised  Other assets
Group  at fair value  trading  receivables *   trading  cost  and liabilities  Total 
  £000  £000  £000   £000  £000  £000  £000 
At 31 December 2011        
Financial investments   816,506   2,298   11,117       -    -    -   829,921 
Other assets     -    -   144,150      -    -   2,880   147,030 
Cash and cash equivalents    -    -   155,024      -    -    -   155,024 
Other liabilities    -    -    -    (1,432) (41,315) (7,054) (49,801)
Net other    -    -    -      -    -  (646,090) (646,090)
Total   816,506   2,298   310,291    (1,432) (41,315) (650,264)  436,084 
       
       
At 31 December 2010        
Financial investments   821,486    -   12,677      -    -    -   834,163 
Other assets     -    -   133,614      -    -   3,047   136,661 
Cash and cash equivalents    -    -   164,805      -    -    -   164,805 
Other liabilities    -    -    -      -  (40,416) (8,109) (48,525)
Net other    -    -    -      -    -  (630,197) (630,197)
Total   821,486    -   311,096      -  (40,416) (635,259)  456,907 

* Cash and cash equivalents have been presented with loans and receivables.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4 Financial risk and capital management (continued)

(b) Fair value hierarchy

The fair value measurement basis used to value those fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities held at fair value is categorised into a fair value 
hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This category includes listed 
equities in active markets, listed debt securities in active markets and exchange-traded derivatives.

Level 2: fair values measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes listed debt or equity securities in a market that is not active and 
derivatives that are not exchange traded.

Level 3: fair values measured using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). This 
category includes unlisted equities, including investments in venture capital, and suspended securities. The effect of reasonably possible changes to 
the assumptions used in determining the fair value of these assets is not signifi cant to the values disclosed.

There have been no transfers between the different levels of investments in the current year.

 Financial assets Financial liabilities
  Designated  Held for  Loans and   Held for  At amortised  Other assets
Parent  at fair value  trading  receivables *   trading  cost  and liabilities  Total 
  £000  £000  £000   £000  £000  £000  £000
At 31 December 2011        
Financial investments   610,419   2,298   14    -    -   48,228   660,959 
Other assets     -    -   111,914    -    -   2,704   114,618 
Cash and cash equivalents    -    -   116,239    -    -    -   116,239 
Other liabilities    -    -    -  (1,432) (24,193) (5,881) (31,506)
Net other    -    -    -    -    -  (478,607) (478,607)
Total   610,419   2,298   228,167  (1,432) (24,193) (433,556)  381,703  
       
       
At 31 December 2010        
Financial investments   580,042    -   14    -    -   50,285   630,341 
Other assets     -    -   99,730    -    -   2,830   102,560 
Cash and cash equivalents    -    -   125,237    -    -    -   125,237 
Other liabilities    -    -    -    -  (22,948) (6,590) (29,538)
Net other    -    -    -     -    -  (455,525) (455,525)
Total   580,042    -   224,981     -  (22,948) (409,000)  373,075 

* Cash and cash equivalents have been presented with loans and receivables.
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Analysis of fair value measurement bases
   Fair value measurement at the 
   end of the reporting period based on 
  
Group  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 
  £000  £000  £000  £000 
At 31 December 2011
Financial assets at fair value through profi t or loss     
Financial investments  
      Equity securities   233,885   992   17,215   252,092 
      Debt securities   562,093   2,095   226   564,414 
      Currency options  -  2,298  -  2,298 
Total fi nancial assets at fair value through profi t and loss  795,978   5,385   17,441   818,804 

At 31 December 2010 
Financial assets at fair value through profi t or loss 
Financial investments 
      Equity securities   250,936   916   19,143   270,995 
      Debt securities   546,795   3,411   285   550,491 
Total fi nancial assets at fair value through profi t and loss  797,731   4,327   19,428   821,486 

Parent

At 31 December 2011
Financial assets at fair value through profi t or loss
Financial investments
      Equity securities   209,689   992   17,171   227,852 
      Debt securities   380,840   1,501   226   382,567 
      Currency options  -  2,298  -  2,298 
Total fi nancial assets at fair value through profi t and loss  590,529   4,791   17,397   612,717 

At 31 December 2010
Financial assets at fair value through profi t or loss  
Financial investments
      Equity securities   224,533   916   19,099   244,548 
      Debt securities   332,719   2,490   285   335,494 
Total fi nancial assets at fair value through profi t and loss  557,252   3,406   19,384   580,042 
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   Financial assets at fair value 
   through profi t and loss 

   Equity  Debt  
Group   securities  securities  Total 
   £000  £000  £000 
At 31 December 2011
Opening balance    19,143   285   19,428 
Total losses recognised in profi t or loss   (1,928) (53) (1,981)
Purchases     -   25   25 
Disposal proceeds     -  (31) (31)
Closing balance    17,215   226   17,441 
Total losses for the period included in profi t or loss for assets
held at the end of the reporting period   (1,928) (53) (1,981)

At 31 December 2010
Opening balance    19,966   587   20,553 
Total (losses)/gains recognised in profi t or loss   (726)  103  (623)
Purchases     -   50   50 
Disposal proceeds     -  (134) (134)
Disposal of business   (97) (321) (418)
Closing balance    19,143   285   19,428 
Total (losses)/gains for the period included in profi t or loss for assets     
held at the end of the reporting period   (726)  34  (692)

Parent

At 31 December 2011
Opening balance    19,099   285   19,384 
Total losses recognised in profi t or loss   (1,928) (53) (1,981)
Purchase     -   25   25 
Disposal proceeds     -  (31) (31)
Closing balance    17,171   226   17,397 
Total losses for the period included in profi t or loss for assets  
held at the end of the reporting period   (1,928) (53) (1,981)

At 31 December 2010
Opening balance    19,825   294   20,119 
Total (losses)/gains recognised in profi t or loss   (726)  34  (692)
Purchases     -   25   25 
Disposal proceeds     -  (68) (68)
Closing balance    19,099   285   19,384 
Total (losses)/gains for the period included in profi t or loss for assets 
held at the end of the reporting period   (726)  34  (692)

All the above gains or losses included in profi t or loss for the period (for both the Group and Parent) are presented in net investment 
return within the income statement.

Fair value measurements based on level 3

Fair value measurements in level 3 for both the Group and Parent consist of fi nancial assets, analysed as follows

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4 Financial risk and capital management (continued)
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   Maturity 
  Within Between   After  
  1 year  1 & 5 years  5 years  Total 
Group  £000  £000  £000  £000 
At 31 December 2011
Assets      
Debt securities   83,316   331,122   149,976   564,414 
Mortgage and other loans    -   1,414   9,683   11,097 
Loans to related parties   490    -   16,161   16,651 
Other assets including insurance receivables   34,818    -    -  34,818 
Cash and cash equivalents   155,024    -    -   155,024 
   273,648   332,536   175,820   782,004 

Liabilities (undiscounted)
Finance lease obligations   273   1,780    -   2,053 
Non-profi t long-term business provisions   4,847   18,641   79,153   102,641 
   5,120   20,421   79,153   104,694 
 
At 31 December 2010      
Assets
Debt securities   168,188   255,006   127,297   550,491 
Mortgage and other loans    -   1,329   11,327   12,656 
Loans to related parties   465    -   5,391   5,856 
Other assets including insurance receivables   30,882    -    -   30,882 
Cash and cash equivalents   164,805    -    -   164,805 
   364,340   256,335   144,015   764,690 

Liabilities (undiscounted)
Finance lease obligations   249   1,846    -   2,095 
Non-profi t long-term business provisions   3,771   14,976   63,153   81,900 
   4,020   16,822   63,153   83,995 

(c) Interest rate risk

The table below summarises the maturity dates for those assets and liabilities that are exposed to interest rate risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4 Financial risk and capital management (continued)

   Maturity 
  Within Between   After  
  1 year  1 & 5 years  5 years  Total 
Parent  £000  £000  £000  £000 
At 31 December 2011
Assets      
Debt securities   75,292   255,190   52,085   382,567 
Loans to related parties   490   1,850   25,111   27,451 
Other assets including insurance receivables   29,510    -    -   29,510 
Cash and cash equivalents   116,239    -    -   116,239 
   221,531   257,040   77,196   555,767 

Liabilities (undiscounted)
Finance lease obligations   273   1,780    -   2,053 
   273   1,780    -   2,053 

At 31 December 2010
Assets
Debt securities   118,281   162,387   54,826   335,494 
Loans to related parties   465   1,850   16,491   18,806 
Other assets including insurance receivables   22,064    -    -   22,064 
Cash and cash equivalents   125,237    -    -   125,237 
   266,047   164,237   71,317   501,601 

Liabilities (undiscounted)
Finance lease obligations   249   1,846    -   2,095 
   249   1,846    -   2,095 

Those fi nancial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value and have fi xed interest rates are subject to fair value interest rate risk. Those 
fi nancial assets and liabilities with variable interest rates are subject to cash fl ow interest rate risk.

General business insurance liabilities are not directly sensitive to the level of market interest rates, as they are undiscounted and contractually 
non-interest-bearing. Furthermore, these liabilities do not have maturity dates and hence are not included in the above tables.

Financial investments represent a signifi cant proportion of the Group’s assets. Investment strategy is set in order to control the impact of interest 
rate risk on anticipated Group cash fl ows and asset values. The fair value of the Group’s investment portfolio of debt and fi xed income securities 
reduces as market interest rates rise, and vice versa. Interest rate risk concentration is reduced by the varied maturity profi les of the investments.

The Group has exposure to interest rate risk in respect of its long-term insurance funeral plan business. The benefi ts payable to policyholders are 
independent of the returns generated by interest-bearing assets. Therefore the interest rate risk on the invested assets supporting these liabilities 
is borne by the Group. This risk can be eliminated by purchasing fi xed interest investments with durations that precisely match the profi le of the 
liabilities. For funeral plan policies, benefi ts are linked to the Retail Prices Index (RPI). Assets backing these liabilities are also linked to RPI, and 
include index-linked gilts and corporate bonds. For practical purposes it is not possible to exactly match the durations due to the uncertain profi le of 
liabilities (e.g. mortality risk) and the availability of suitable assets. Some interest rate risk will persist. The Group monitors its exposure by comparing 
projected cash fl ows for these assets and liabilities and making appropriate adjustments to its investment portfolio.
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(d) Credit risk

The Group has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a 
counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due. Key areas 
where the Group is exposed to credit risk are:

■  reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities (excluding provision for 
unearned premiums) and amounts due from reinsurers in respect of 
claims already paid; 

■  amounts due from insurance intermediaries and policyholders; and

■  corporate bond counterparty default.

The carrying amount of fi nancial and reinsurance assets represents the 
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk. Collateral is held over loans 
secured by mortgages. The Group structures the levels of credit risk it 
accepts by placing limits on its exposure to a single counterparty. Limits 
on the level of credit risk are regularly reviewed. 

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. This does not, however, 
discharge the Group’s liability as primary insurer. If a reinsurer fails to 
pay a claim for any reason, the Group remains liable for the payment to 
the policyholder. The creditworthiness of reinsurers is considered on a 
regular basis through the year by reviewing their fi nancial strength. The 
Group Reinsurance Security Committee assesses, monitors and 
approves the creditworthiness of all reinsurers reviewing relevant credit 
ratings provided by the recognised credit rating agencies, as well as 
other publicly available data and market information. The committee 
also monitors the balances outstanding from reinsurers and maintains 
an approved list of reinsurers. 

The Group’s exposure to reinsurance balances has increased 
signifi cantly during the year following the catastrophe events in 
Australia and New Zealand. The reinsurance programme has responded 
well to contain net costs; however, claims continue to evolve and the 
Board has considered a range of contingent risk management actions 
to help manage the risk of further adverse development. There has 
been no signifi cant change in the credit quality of the Group’s 
reinsurance balances during the year with substantially all of the 
Group’s reinsurance assets due from reinsurers rated A or above.

The Group’s credit risk policy details prescriptive methods for the 
collection of premiums and control of intermediary and policyholder 
debtor balances. The level and age of debtor balances are regularly 
assessed via monthly credit management reports. These reports are 
scrutinised to assess exposure in more than one region in respect of 
aged or outstanding balances. Any such balances are likely to be major 
international brokers who are in turn monitored via credit reference 
agencies and considered to pose minimal risk of default.

The Group has no material concentration of credit risk in respect of 
amounts due from insurance intermediaries and policyholders due to 
the well-diversifi ed spread of such debtors.

The fi xed interest portfolio consists of a range of fi xed interest 
instruments including government securities, local authority issues, 
corporate loans and bonds, overseas bonds, preference shares and 
other interest-bearing securities. Limits are imposed on the credit 
ratings of the corporate bond portfolio and exposures regularly 
monitored.

(e) Liquidity risk 

The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources 
mainly from claims arising from insurance contracts. Liquidity risk is the 
risk that funds may not be available to pay obligations when due. The 
Group has robust processes in place to manage liquidity risk and has 
access to funding in case of exceptional need. Sources of funding 
include available cash balances, other readily marketable assets and 
access to short-term bank funding. This is not considered to be a 
signifi cant risk to the Group. 

A maturity analysis for those non-derivative fi nancial liabilities that are 
exposed to interest rate risk is included in part (c) of this note. A 
maturity analysis for other non-derivative fi nancial liabilities is included 
in note 34. An estimate of the timing of the net cash outfl ows resulting 
from insurance contracts is provided in note 29. Derivative fi nancial 
liabilities of the Group all mature within one year.
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 2011  2010 
 Group  Parent   Group  Parent 
 £000  £000   £000  £000 

 Aus $  54,492   9,661  Aus $  52,454   6,918 
 NZ $ (44,330)  50,171  Can $  35,328   35,328 
 Can $  36,753   36,753  Euro  31,334   31,236 
 Euro  19,933   19,923  US $ (14,570) (14,570)
 US $ (10,530) (10,530) Hong Kong $  10,212   10,212 

(f) Currency risk

The Group operates internationally and its main exposures to foreign exchange risk are noted below. The Group’s foreign operations generally 
invest in assets denominated in the same currencies as their insurance liabilities, which mitigates the foreign currency exchange rate risk for these 
operations. As a result, foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies and net investments in 
foreign operations. The Group mitigates this risk through the use of currency options from time to time.

The Group exposure to foreign currency risk within the investment portfolios arises from purchased investments that are denominated in currencies 
other than sterling. 

The Group foreign operations create two sources of foreign currency risk:

■  the operating results of the Group foreign branches and subsidiaries in the Group fi nancial statements are translated at the average exchange 
rates prevailing during the period; and

■  the equity investment in foreign branches and subsidiaries is translated into sterling using the exchange rate at the fi nancial statement year end 
date.

The largest currency exposures with reference to net assets/(liabilities) before the mitigating effects of derivatives are shown below, representing 
effective diversifi cation of resources.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4 Financial risk and capital management (continued)

 2011  2010 
 Group  Parent   Group  Parent 
 £000  £000   £000  £000 

 UK   207,418   187,098  UK   219,958   198,137 
 Europe   19,256   19,256  Europe   21,731   21,731 
 Hong Kong   7,259   7,259  Hong Kong   9,980   9,980 
 Singapore   5,027   5,027  USA   2,929   2,929 
 Other   13,132   9,212  Other   16,397   11,771 
 Total   252,092   227,852  Total   270,995   244,548  

(g) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk because of fi nancial investments held by the Group and stated at fair value through profi t or loss. The 
Group mitigates this risk by holding a diversifi ed portfolio across geographical regions and market sectors, and through the use of options and 
futures contracts from time to time which would limit losses in the event of a fall in equity markets.

The concentration of equity price risk by geographical listing, before the mitigating effect of derivatives, to which the Group and Parent are exposed 
is as follows.
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(h) Market risk sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity of profi t and other equity reserves to movements on market risk variables (comprising interest rate, currency and equity price risk, 
excluding the mitigating effect of derivatives), each considered in isolation, is shown in the following table.

 Potential increase/ Potential increase/(decrease)
Group (decrease) in profi t in other equity reserves

Variable Change in 2011  2010  2011  2010 
 variable £000  £000  £000  £000 

Interest rate risk -100 basis points  8,757  8,274   27   164 
 +100 basis points (9,576) (8,026)  (24) (158)
Currency risk  -5% (762)  1,428   4,545   4,794 
 +5%  724  (1,357)  (4,318) (4,554)
Equity price risk +/-5%  9,264   9,756    -    - 
       
 Potential increase/ Potential increase/(decrease)
Parent (decrease) in profi t in other equity reserves

Variable Change in 2011  2010  2011  2010 
 variable £000  £000  £000  £000 

Interest rate risk -100 basis points  7,903  5,932  (12)  22 
 +100 basis points (8,352) (5,718)   13  (22)
Currency risk  -5%  2,912   1,424   2,159   2,099 
 +5% (2,766) (1,353)  (2,051) (1,994)
Equity price risk +/-5%  8,374   8,804    -    - 

The following assumptions have been made in preparing the above sensitivity analysis:

■  the value of fi xed income investments will vary inversely with changes in interest rates, and all territories experience the same interest rate 
movement;

■  currency gains and losses will arise from a change in the value of sterling against all other currencies moving in parallel;

■  equity prices will move by the same percentage across all territories; and

■  change in profi t is stated net of tax at the blended standard rate of 26.5% (2010: 28%).      
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(i) Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

■  to comply with the regulator’s capital requirements of the markets in 
which the Group operates; and

■  to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue to meet stakeholders’ 
expectations, in accordance with its corporate mission, vision and 
values.

The Group is subject to insurance solvency regulations in all the 
territories in which it issues insurance and investment contracts, and 
capital is managed and evaluated on the basis of regulatory capital. 

In the UK, the Group and its UK regulated entities are required to 
comply with rules issued by the Financial Services Authority (FSA), and 
submit FSA returns detailing levels of regulatory capital held. Regulatory 
capital should be in excess of the higher of two amounts. The fi rst is an 
amount which is calculated by applying fi xed percentages to premiums 
and claims (general insurance business) or by applying fi xed 
percentages to insurance liabilities and applying stress testing (long-
term business). The second is an economic capital assessment by the 

regulated entity, which the FSA reviews and may amend by issuing 
Individual Capital Guidance (ICG). The Group sets internal capital 
standards above the FSA’s minimum requirement. For overseas 
business the relevant capital requirement is the minimum requirement 
under the local regulatory regime. Both the Group and the regulated 
entities within it have complied with all externally imposed capital 
requirements throughout the current and prior year.

Regulated subsidiaries are restricted in the amount of cash dividends 
they transfer to the parent entity, in order for them to meet their 
individual minimum capital requirements.

The Group’s available capital resource is disclosed in note 29(b) part (v).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4 Financial risk and capital management (continued)
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5 Segment information
(a) Operating segments

The Group segments its business activities on the basis of differences 
in the products and services offered and, for general insurance, the 
underwriting territory. This refl ects the management and internal Group 
reporting structure. Group activities that are not reportable operating 
segments on the basis of size are included within an ‘all other 
segments’ category.

Changes have been made to segments during the year including the 
reclassifi cation of Ecclesiastical Underwriting Management Limited 
from ‘United Kingdom and Ireland’ to ‘other general insurance’, which 
ceased underwriting on 30 September 2010, and the introduction of an 
‘insurance broking operations’ segment which provides a material 
income stream to the Group.  The activities of each operating segment 
are described below.

■  General business

 United Kingdom and Ireland

  The Group’s principal general insurance business operation is in the 
UK, where it operates under the Ecclesiastical and Ansvar brands. 
The Group also operates a general insurance Ecclesiastical branch in 
Ireland.

 Australia and New Zealand

  The Group has wholly owned subsidiaries in Australia and New 
Zealand undertaking general insurance business under the Ansvar 
brand.

 Canada

  The Group operates a general insurance Ecclesiastical branch in 
Canada. 

 Other general insurance 

  Other operations that are either in run-off or not reportable due to 
their immateriality, together with central underwriting expenses, are 
included in this segment. This segment now includes the Group 
holding of a global portfolio of risks through its London Market 
operation, Ecclesiastical Underwriting Management Limited, and has 
been reclassifi ed in the current and prior year.

■  Long-term business 
The long-term business segment consists of the Group’s funeral plan 
business.

■  Insurance broking operations
The Group provides insurance broking through its subsidiary South 
Essex Insurance Brokers Limited. 

■  All other segments
This includes the fi nancial advisory services, fund management and 
other investment activities of Group subsidiaries that are not 
reportable operating segments due to their immateriality.

Inter-segment and inter-territory transfers or transactions are entered 
into under normal commercial terms and conditions that would also be 
available to unrelated third parties.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 Segment information (continued)

 2011 2010
 Gross  Fee and  Gross  Fee and 
 written  commission  written  commission 
 premiums income premiums income
 £000  £000  £000  £000 
General business by territory
United Kingdom and Ireland  339,792   34,709   315,734   32,564 
Australia and New Zealand  84,811   9,239   96,331   9,477 
Canada  34,219   1,286   29,145   2,085 
Other general insurance  6,890   1,077   40,508   4,029 
Inter-territory eliminations (629) (784) (7,312) (3,448)
Total general business  465,083   45,527   474,406   44,707 

Long-term business  19,122    -   20,402   370 
Insurance broking operations   -   6,635    -   6,347 
All other segments   -   10,254    -   7,908 
Total segments revenue  484,205   62,416   494,808   59,332 
Inter-segment eliminations   -  (4,723)   -  (8,104)
Less: long-term business discontinued operations   -    -  (6,881) (157)
Group revenue from continuing operations  484,205   57,693   487,927   51,071 

Group revenues are not materially concentrated on any single external customer. Segmental revenues do not include net investment 
return, which is reported within revenue in the consolidated income statement.

Segment result

General insurance business segmental results comprise the underwriting profi t or loss and net investment return earned by each underwriting 
territory. The Group uses the industry standard net combined operating ratio (COR) as a measure of underwriting effi ciency. The COR expresses 
the total of net claims costs, commission and expenses as a percentage of net earned premiums.

The long-term business and all other segment results consist of the profi t or loss before tax measured in accordance with IFRS.

2011 Combined  Net Investment
 operating  Underwriting  Return  Total 
 ratio £000 £000 £000
General business by territory
United Kingdom and Ireland 96.3%  8,397   8   8,405 
Australia and New Zealand 138.5% (16,926)  10,109  (6,817)
Canada 101.4% (344)  2,241   1,897 
Other general insurance  (7,505)  10  (7,495)
Inter-territory eliminations   248  (248)   - 
General business segment result 105.4% (16,130)  12,120  (4,010)
Long-term business result     721 
Insurance broking operations     2,202 
All other segments    (1,718)
Total segments loss    (2,805)

Reconciliation of total segments loss to Group loss
Non-underwriting and fi nance costs    (3,273)
Amortisation of intangibles on acquisitions    (593)
Inter-segment eliminations    (1,000)
Loss before tax    (7,671)

Segment revenue
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2010 Combined   Net Investment
 operating  Underwriting  Return  Total 
 ratio £000 £000 £000
General business by territory
United Kingdom and Ireland 100.2% (373)  54,514   54,141 
Australia and New Zealand 104.6% (2,188) 6,308 4,120
Canada 101.8% (347) 1,341 994
Other general insurance  (3,234) 29 (3,205)
Inter-territory eliminations   241  (2,578)  (2,337) 
General business segment result 102.0% (5,901) 59,614 53,713
Long-term business result     (4,449) 
Insurance broking operations     2,017
All other segments    2,303
Total segments profi t    53,584

Reconciliation of total segments profi t to Group profi t
Non-underwriting and fi nance costs    (4,859)
Amortisation of intangibles on acquisitions    (593)
Inter-segment eliminations    (487)
Add back: loss before tax from long-term business discontinued operations    2,798
Profi t before tax    50,443

Reconciliation of general business net investment return to Group net investment return 2011  2010 
    £000  £000 
     
General business net investment return     12,120   59,614 
Long-term business net investment return     10,181  18,003 
All other segments net investment return     423   4,855 
Net investment return attributable to third party unitholders     -   17,349 
Inter-segment eliminations    (1,165) (1,518)
Less: long-term business discontinued operations    - (12,233)
     21,559   86,070

 2011 2010
Continuing and discontinued operations Gross written Non-current  Gross written  Non-current
 premiums assets premiums assets
 £000  £000  £000  £000 
UK  351,710   59,239   356,942   57,162 
Australia  76,900   1,895   84,381   1,977 
Canada  34,219   707   29,145   679 
Other overseas  21,376    -   24,340   163 
  484,205   61,841   494,808   59,981 

Non-current assets exclude rights arising under insurance contracts, deferred tax assets, pension assets and fi nancial instruments. Gross 
written premiums are allocated based on the country in which the insurance contracts are issued. Non-current assets are allocated 
based on where the assets are located.

(b) Geographical information

Gross written premiums from external customers and non-current assets, as attributed to individual countries which the Group operates in, are as follows.
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6 Net insurance premium revenue

     General  Long-term  
     business  business  Total 
Continuing operations     £000  £000  £000 
For the year ended 31 December 2011       
Gross written premiums      465,083   19,122   484,205 
Outward reinsurance premiums     (172,679)   -  (172,679)
Net written premiums      292,404   19,122   311,526 
       
Change in the gross provision for unearned premiums     15,239    -   15,239 
Change in the provision for unearned premiums, reinsurers’ share   (9,342)   -  (9,342)
Change in the net provision for unearned premiums      5,897    -   5,897 
       
Earned premiums, net of reinsurance      298,301   19,122   317,423 
       
For the year ended 31 December 2010       
Gross written premiums      474,406   13,521   487,927 
Outward reinsurance premiums     (171,083)   -  (171,083)
Net written premiums      303,323   13,521   316,844 
       
Change in the gross provision for unearned premiums    (12,354)   -  (12,354)
Change in the provision for unearned premiums, reinsurers’ share   (1,952)   -  (1,952)
Change in the net provision for unearned premiums     (14,306)   -  (14,306)
       
Earned premiums, net of reinsurance      289,017   13,521   302,538 

Discontinued operations
Gross written premiums and outward reinsurance premiums of discontinued operations are disclosed in note 16.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 Net investment return

   2011  2010 
   £000  £000 
Income from fi nancial assets at fair value through profi t or loss:   
- equity income     8,373   16,737 
- debt income     24,618   30,975 
Income from fi nancial assets not at fair value through profi t or loss:   
- interest income on mortgages and other loans    505   867 
- cash and cash equivalents income, net of exchange movements    2,803   1,842 
- other income received    2,103   2,165 
Other income:  
- rental income    1,653   1,669 
Investment income    40,055   54,255 

Fair value movements on fi nancial instruments at fair value through profi t or loss   (19,022)  43,882 
Fair value movements on investment property    526   166 
Net investment return    21,559   98,303 
Less: discontinued operations     -  (12,233)
Net investment return of continuing operations    21,559   86,070 
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Included within cash and cash equivalents income are exchange gains of £986,000 (2010: £597,000 gains).

Included within fair value movements on fi nancial instruments at fair value through profi t or loss are £3,454,000 losses (2010: £2,961,000 losses) 
in respect of derivatives classifi ed as held for trading. 

8 Claims and change in insurance liabilities and reinsurance recoveries

     General  Long-term  
     business  business  Total 
Continuing operations     £000  £000  £000 
For the year ended 31 December 2011       
Gross claims paid      345,849   5,505   351,354 
Gross change in the provision for claims      275,683   99   275,782 
Gross change in long-term business provisions       -   21,051   21,051 
Claims and change in insurance liabilities      621,532   26,655   648,187 
       
Reinsurers’ share of claims paid     (164,015)   -  (164,015)
Reinsurers’ share of change in the provision for claims    (260,837)   -  (260,837)
Reinsurance recoveries     (424,852)   -  (424,852)
       
Claims and change in insurance liabilities, net of reinsurance    196,680   26,655   223,335 
       
For the year ended 31 December 2010       
Gross claims paid      232,562   4,267   236,829 
Gross change in the provision for claims      123,884   29   123,913 
Gross change in long-term business provisions       -   13,731   13,731 
Claims and change in insurance liabilities      356,446   18,027   374,473 
       
Reinsurers’ share of claims paid     (80,491)   -  (80,491)
Reinsurers’ share of change in the provision for claims    (82,907)   -  (82,907)
Reinsurance recoveries     (163,398)   -  (163,398)
       
Claims and change in insurance liabilities, net of reinsurance    193,048   18,027   211,075 

Discontinued operations
Claims and change in insurance liabilities and reinsurance recoveries arising on discontinued operations are disclosed in note 16.

9 Fees, commissions and other acquisition costs

 2011  2010 
 £000  £000 
Fees paid   
  491   446 
Commission paid  70,683   67,860 
Change in deferred acquisition costs  5,555  (2,561)
Other acquisition costs  35,978   30,769 
Less: discontinued operations   -  (1,358)
Fees, commissions and other acquisition costs of continuing operations  112,707   95,156
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

      2011  2010 
      £000  £000 

(Loss)/profi t for the year has been arrived at after (crediting)/charging:
Net foreign exchange gains      (986) (597)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment       2,302   2,490 
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment       85   356 
Amortisation of intangible assets       2,101   2,050 
Increase in fair value of investment property      (526) (166)
Employee benefi ts expense       63,686   60,168 
Operating lease rentals       3,120   3,141 

10 (Loss)/profi t for the year

      2011  2010 
      £000  £000 

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts    286   191 
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates for other services:  
      The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries, pursuant to legislation     165   281 
       451   472 
      Other services pursuant to legislation       118   131 
      Tax services       10   14 
      Corporate fi nance services        -   216 
      All other services       13   132 
Total auditor’s remuneration       592   965 

Other services pursuant to legislation represents FSA and other regulatory audit work.

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor in respect of the audit of the Group’s associated pension schemes amounted to £17,000 
(2010: £17,000).

11 Auditor’s remuneration

 2011 2010 *  
  General  Long-term   General  Long-term  
  business  business  Other  business  business  Other 

Group       
United Kingdom   763   11   113   739   31   111 
Australia and New Zealand   175    -    -   174    -    - 
Canada   56    -    -   58    -    - 
Ireland   31    -    -   24    -    - 
   1,025   11   113   995   31   111  

* Prior year fi gures have been restated to refl ect the headcount supporting Ecclesiastical Investment Management Limited 
(2011: 20; 2010: 17) being included in ‘Other’, rather than ‘General business’, to better refl ect the nature of its activities.

12 Employee information
The average monthly number of employees including Executive Directors by geographical location was as follows.
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      2011  2010 
      £000  £000 

Wages and salaries       51,934   47,791 
Social security costs       4,082   3,477 
Pension costs - defi ned contribution plans       2,330   2,239 
Pension costs - defi ned benefi t plans       969   3,846 
Other post-employment benefi ts       4,371   2,815 
       63,686   60,168 

The above fi gures include termination benefi ts of £929,000 (2010: £1,005,000).

13 Remuneration of key management personnel
The remuneration of the Directors (including Non-Executive Directors), who are the key management personnel of the Group, is set out individually 
within the Directors’ Remuneration Report, and in aggregate below.

      2011  2010 
      £000  £000 

Salaries and other short-term employee benefi ts       1,256   1,530 
Long-term cash incentive       57   55 
Post-employment benefi ts       84   84 
       1,397   1,669 

Post-employment benefi ts includes £78,640 (2010: £78,046) in respect of contributions to a defi ned contribution scheme.

One Director who was employed by the Company was a member of the Group’s defi ned benefi t pension scheme during the year 
(2010: one Director). Two Directors (2010: two) were members of the Group’s defi ned contribution scheme during the year.

      2011  2010 
      £000  £000 

Highest paid Director:
- emoluments       395   482 
- money purchase pension contributions       45   47 
Chairman’s fees       68   68

      2011  2010 
      £000  £000 

Interest expense:       
- fi nance leases       163   125 
- other interest charge       35   27 
Less: discontinued operations        -  (24)
Finance costs of continuing operations       198   128

14 Finance costs

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L S
TATE

M
E

N
TS



88 Ecclesiastical Insurance Offi ce plc

        2011  2010 
        £000  £000 

Current tax - current year        2,838   9,973 
 - prior years        63   481 
Deferred tax - temporary differences      (4,238)  4,166 
 - reduction in tax rate      (3,106) (1,420)
Total tax (credit)/expense       (4,443)  13,200 
Less: tax credit of discontinued operations        -   517 
Tax (credit)/expense of continuing operations      (4,443)  13,717 

15 Tax (credit)/expense

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Tax on the Group’s result before tax differs from the United Kingdom standard rate of corporation tax for the reasons set out in the following 
reconciliation:

      2011  2010 
      £000  £000 

(Loss)/profi t before tax (continuing operations)      (7,671)  50,443 
Loss before tax (discontinued operations)        -  (2,798)
Total pre-tax (loss)/profi t      (7,671)  47,645 
       
Tax calculated at the UK standard rate of tax of 26.5%  (2010: 28%)    (2,033)  13,341 
       
Factors affecting (credit)/charge for the year:       
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes       741   494 
Non-taxable franked investment income      (3,011) (3,232)
Life insurance and other tax paid at non-standard rates      961   3,249 
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset was recognised     1,942   206 
Impact of reduction in deferred tax rate      (3,106) (1,420)
Other items        -   81 
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior periods       63   481 
Total tax (credit)/expense      (4,443)  13,200

A deferred tax credit on fair value movements on owner-occupied property of £47,000 (2010: £56,000 charge) and tax relief on charitable grants 
of £2,716,000 (2010: £5,390,000) are taken directly to equity.

A change in the UK standard rate of corporation tax from 28% to 26% became effective from 1 April 2011. Where appropriate, current tax has 
been provided at the blended rate of 26.5%. A further 1% reduction on the rate of corporation tax, effective from 1 April 2012, was substantively 
enacted on 5 July 2011. Deferred tax has been provided for at 25% (2010: 27%). Further planned reductions of 1% per annum over two years 
(such that the standard rate reaches 23% from April 2014) were announced in the March 2011 Budget but have not yet been substantively 
enacted. Had they been substantively enacted the deferred tax liability at year end would have been reduced by £2,865,000.
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16 Prior year discontinued operations
During the prior year, the Group entered into a transfer agreement in order to sell its life business excluding its funeral plan related business to 
Homeowners Friendly Society Limited (trading as Engage Mutual). The disposal was effected in order to reduce the Group’s exposure to the risks 
and volatility associated with the life business. The disposal was completed on 30 November 2010 by way of an insurance business transfer 
scheme under Part VII of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000.

The results and cash fl ows of the discontinued operations, which have been included in the consolidated income statement and consolidated 
statement of cash fl ows respectively, were as follows.

       11 months
       ended November
       2010
       £000

Gross written premiums        6,881 
Outward reinsurance premiums       (101,929)
Other revenue        12,390 
Total revenue       (82,658)
       
Claims and change in insurance liabilities       (8,063)
Reinsurance recoveries        95,599 
Other expenses       (6,736)
Total expenses        80,800 
       
Loss before tax       (1,858)

Attributable tax        1,319 
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations, net of selling costs      (940)
Attributable tax       (802)
Net loss attributable to discontinued operations       (2,281)
       
Net cash used by operating activities       (7,474)
Net cash from investing activities        5,799 
Net cash from fi nancing activities         - 

The non-profi t fund discontinued operations were 100% reinsured with effect from 1 January 2010 until 30 November 2010 in order to transfer 
the risks and rewards in the reinsured business to the purchaser in preparation for the sale. The reinsurance agreement resulted in the inclusion of 
£101.4 million outward reinsurance premiums, and a £98.4 million increase in reinsurance recoveries. The net difference between these items is 
due to movements in gross insurance reserves. The business disposed of formed part of the long-term business operating segment.

      2011  2010 
      £000  £000 
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period:       
Dividends
Non-cumulative Irredeemable Preference share dividend      9,181   5,731 
       9,181   5,731 
Charitable grants       
Gross charitable grants to the ultimate parent company, Allchurches Trust Limited    10,250   19,250 
Tax relief      (2,716)  (5,390)
Net charitable grant for the year       7,534   13,860  

17 Appropriations
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18 Goodwill and other intangible assets

Group      Other  
     Computer  intangible  
    Goodwill  software  assets  Total 
    £000  £000  £000  £000 
Cost
At 1 January 2011     19,387   21,060   3,918   44,365 
Additions      -   1,518    -   1,518 
Exchange differences       -  (3)   -  (3)
Disposals      -  (734)   -  (734)
At 31 December 2011     19,387   21,841   3,918   45,146 
       
Amortisation       
At 1 January 2011      -   16,719   1,723   18,442 
Charge for the year      -   1,508   593   2,101 
Exchange differences       -   2    -   2 
Disposals      -  (734)   -  (734)
At 31 December 2011      -   17,495   2,316   19,811 
       
Net book value at 31 December 2011     19,387   4,346   1,602   25,335 
       
Cost       
At 1 January 2010     19,387   19,153   3,918   42,458 
Additions      -   1,467    -   1,467 
Exchange differences       -   440    -   440 
At 31 December 2010     19,387   21,060   3,918   44,365 
       
Amortisation       
At 1 January 2010      -   14,907   1,130   16,037 
Charge for the year      -   1,457   593   2,050 
Exchange differences       -   355    -   355 
At 31 December 2010      -   16,719   1,723   18,442 
       
Net book value at 31 December 2010     19,387   4,341   2,195   25,923 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

£16,885,000 of the goodwill balance in the current and prior year relates to the acquisition of South Essex Insurance Holdings Limited during 
2008. The recoverable amount, determined on a value-in-use basis indicates no impairment has arisen. The calculation uses discounted cash fl ow 
projections based on management-approved business plans covering a fi ve-year period, with forecast cash fl ows in the fi fth year continuing 
thereafter at a constant growth rate in perpetuity. 

Assumptions used are consistent with historical experience within the business acquired and external sources of information, and discounting is at 
the Group’s long-term targeted return on capital. 

Other intangible assets consist of acquired customer and distribution relationships, which have an overall remaining useful life of three years on a 
weighted average basis.
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Parent        Computer
        software 
        £000 
Cost
At 1 January 2011        16,950 
Part VII transfer in *        263 
Additions        1,487 
Exchange differences        (22)
Disposals       (734)
At 31 December 2011        17,944 
       
Amortisation       
At 1 January 2011        13,109 
Part VII transfer in *        148 
Charge for the year        1,347 
Exchange differences        (16)
Disposals       (734)
At 31 December 2011        13,854 
       
Net book value at 31 December 2011        4,090 
       
Cost       
At 1 January 2010        15,551 
Additions        1,297 
Exchange differences         102 
At 31 December 2010        16,950 
       
Amortisation       
At 1 January 2010        11,835 
Charge for the year        1,208 
Exchange differences         66 
At 31 December 2010        13,109 
       
Net book value at 31 December 2010        3,841 

* As disclosed in note 40 of the prior year fi nancial statements, on 1 January 2011 the entire business of Ansvar Insurance Company 
Limited was transferred to the Company under an insurance business transfer scheme pursuant to Part VII of the Financial Services and 
Markets Act 2000. The transfer took place at net asset value and resulted in an increase in the Parent gross assets and liabilities. These are 
identifi ed throughout the remaining Notes to the Financial Statements as ‘Part VII transfer in’.
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19 Deferred acquisition costs

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 2011 2010 
 Group Parent Group  Parent
 £000  £000  £000  £000 

At 1 January 41,482   30,903   38,298   26,858 
Part VII transfer in   -   3,113    -    - 
Increase in the period  35,795   34,506   40,500   30,725 
Release in the period (41,350) (33,950) (37,939) (26,988)
Disposal of business   -    -  (861)   - 
Exchange differences  (139) (96)  1,484   308 
At 31 December  35,788   34,476   41,482   30,903 
   
Current   35,788   34,476   41,474   30,895 
Non-current    -    -   8   8 

 

20 Pension asset and retirement benefi t obligations
Defi ned benefi t pension plans

The Group’s main scheme is a defi ned benefi t scheme for UK employees. On 1 January 2011, Ecclesiastical Insurance Offi ce plc became the 
sponsoring employer for the Ansvar Staff Pension Fund, previously operated by the subsidiary Ansvar Insurance Company Limited. On that date, 
all the assets, liabilities, members and benefi ciaries of the fund were transferred to the Ecclesiastical Insurance Offi ce plc Staff Retirement Benefi t 
Fund. With effect from 1 August 2011, the terms of the scheme for future service changed from a non-contributory fi nal salary scheme to a 
contributory scheme in which benefi ts are based on career average revalued earnings.

The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group by the Trustee of the Ecclesiastical Insurance Offi ce plc Staff Retirement 
Benefi t Fund. An independent qualifi ed actuary appointed by the Trustee is responsible for undertaking triennial valuations which assess the 
fi nancial position of the scheme. Pension costs for the scheme are determined by the Trustee, having considered the advice of the actuary and 
having consulted with the Employer. The most recent triennial valuation was at 31 December 2010.  Pension liabilities for the Ireland branch are 
dealt with by payment to an Irish life offi ce. Actuarial valuations have been reviewed and updated by the actuary at 31 December 2011 for IAS 19 
purposes.

The valuation of the scheme includes allowance for the government’s change in statutory infl ation measure for UK occupational pension schemes 
from the Retail Price Index (RPI) to the Consumer Price Index (CPI).  This change affects revaluation in deferment for members of the 
Ecclesiastical Insurance Offi ce (EIO) Section.  Members of the Ansvar Section are unaffected.  This change has reduced the liabilities of the EIO 
Section by approximately £2.5 million, which has been treated as an actuarial gain.

All Group defi ned benefi t schemes are now closed to new entrants.  The Group operates a number of defi ned contribution pension schemes, for 
which contributions by the Group are disclosed in note 12.
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 2011 2010
 Group Parent Group  Parent
 £000  £000  £000  £000 
The amounts recognised in the statement 
of fi nancial position are determind as follows:

Present value of funded obligations  (199,087) (199,087) (213,740) (205,196)
Fair value of plan assets   234,314   234,314   237,440   227,604 
  35,227   35,227   23,700   22,408 
Unrecognised actuarial (gains)/losses (1,514) (1,514)  6,485   5,653 
Net asset in the statement of fi nancial position  33,713   33,713   30,185   28,061 
     
  
Movements in the net asset recognised in the 
statement of fi nancial position are as follows:
    
At 1 January  30,185   28,061   27,495   25,519 
Transfer in of Ansvar scheme   -   2,124    -    - 
Exchange differences  (35) (35) (27) (27)
Total expense charged in the income statement (969) (969) (3,846) (3,626)
Contributions paid   4,532   4,532   6,563   6,195 
At 31 December  33,713   33,713   30,185   28,061 

The amounts recognised in the income statement 
are as follows:
Current service cost  5,396   5,396   6,405   6,047 
Interest cost   11,487   11,487   10,856   10,417 
Expected return on plan assets  (16,039) (16,039) (13,733) (13,146)
Net actuarial gains recognised during the year (14) (14) (6) (16)
Past service cost   139   139   324   324 
Total included in employee benefi ts expense  969   969   3,846   3,626 
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The actual return on pension plan assets was a loss of £2,063,000 (2010: £30,844,000 gain).
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      2011  2010 

Discount rate       5.00% 5.40%
Infl ation (RPI)      3.10% 3.50%
Infl ation (CPI)      2.30% n/a
Expected return on plan assets       6.80% 6.70%
Future salary increases       4.60% 5.00%
Future increase in pensions in deferment      2.30% 3.50%
Future pension increases (linked to RPI)      3.10% 3.50%
Future pension increases (linked to CPI)      2.30% n/a

The principal actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted averages) were as follows.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

20 Pension asset and retirement benefi t obligations (continued)

The expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns available on the assets underlying the current investment 
policy. Expected yields on fi xed interest investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the year end date. Expected returns on equity and 
property investments refl ect long-term real rates of return experienced in the respective markets.

Mortality rate 
       
The average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 65, at the year end date,   2011  2010
is as follows: 

Male       23.9   24.0 
Female       26.1   26.4 
       
The average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 65, 20 years after the year 
end date, is as follows:        

Male       26.2   26.0 
Female       28.4   28.3 

Plan assets are as follows: 2011 2010
 Group Parent Group  Parent
 £000  £000  £000  £000 

Equities  126,559   126,559   142,293   136,293 
Bonds  79,293   79,293   77,680   74,336 
Cash  13,992   13,992   5,145   4,653 
Other  14,470   14,470   12,322   12,322 
  234,314   234,314   237,440   227,604  
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The movements in the fair value of scheme assets and the defi ned benefi t obligation over the year are as follows

  2011 2010
  Group  Parent  Group  Parent 
  £000  £000  £000  £000
Scheme assets 
As at 1 January   237,440   227,604   205,628   197,063 
Transfer in of Ansvar scheme    -   9,836    -    - 
Pension benefi ts paid and payable  (5,508) (5,508) (5,501) (5,265)
Contributions paid   4,532   4,532   6,563   6,195 
Expected return on scheme assets   16,039   16,039   13,733   13,146 
Actuarial (losses)/gains  (18,102) (18,102)  17,111   16,559 
Exchange differences   (87) (87) (94) (94)
As at 31 December   234,314   234,314   237,440   227,604 
     
Defi ned benefi t obligation   
As at 1 January   213,740   205,196   190,985   183,336 
Transfer in of Ansvar scheme    -   8,544    -    - 
Current service cost   5,396   5,396   6,405   6,047 
Past service cost   139   139   324   324 
Pension benefi ts paid and payable  (5,508) (5,508) (5,501) (5,265)
Interest cost   11,487   11,487   10,856   10,417 
Actuarial (gains)/losses  (26,058) (26,058)  10,795   10,461 
Exchange differences   (109) (109) (124) (124)
As at 31 December   199,087   199,087   213,740   205,196 
  

History of Group experience gains and losses 2011  2010  2009  2008  2007 
 £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 

Present value of defi ned benefi t obligations (199,087) (213,740) (190,985) (143,282) (164,458)
Fair value of scheme assets  234,314   237,440   205,628   170,374   189,880 
Surplus  35,227   23,700   14,643   27,092   25,422 
  
Experience adjustments on scheme liabilities  6,656   3,046  (516)  3,417   7,379 
Experience adjustments on scheme assets (18,102)  17,111   24,723  (35,820)  3,471 

The contribution expected to be paid by the Group during the year ending 31 December 2012 is £3.5 million.
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      2011  2010 
      £000  £000 

Present value of unfunded obligations and net obligations in the statement of fi nancial position   12,760   8,652 
       
Movements in the net obligations recognised in the statement of fi nancial position 
are as follows:  

At 1 January       8,652   6,115 
Total expense in the income statement       4,371   2,815 
Benefi ts paid       (263) (278)
At 31 December       12,760   8,652 
       
The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows:     
Current service cost       107    - 
Interest cost        484   349 
Net actuarial losses recognised during the year        3,780   1,758 
Past service cost         -   708 
Total expense included in employee benefi ts expense       4,371   2,815 
       
The main actuarial assumption is a long-term increase in medical costs of 12% (2010: 12%)   
       
The effect of a 1% movement in the assumed medical cost trend is as follows:    
      Increase  Decrease 
      £000  £000 
Effect on the aggregate of the current service cost and interest cost     201  (153)
Effect on the medical benefi t obligation       3,087  (2,372)

Post-employment medical benefi ts

The Parent operates a post-employment medical benefi t scheme. The method of accounting, assumptions and the frequency of valuation are 
similar to those used for the defi ned benefi t pension scheme.

The amounts recognised in the statement of fi nancial position are determined as follows.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

20 Pension asset and retirement benefi t obligations (continued)
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21 Property, plant and equipment

Group     Furniture,   
   Land and  Motor  fi ttings and  Computer  
   buildings  vehicles  equipment  equipment  Total 
   £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 
Cost or valuation       
At 1 January 2011    3,634   2,776   6,405   8,045   20,860 
Additions     -   756   200   1,098   2,054 
Exchange differences     5    -  (2)  13   16 
Disposals     -  (487) (151) (1,077) (1,715)
Revaluation     40    -    -    -   40 
At 31 December 2011    3,679   3,045   6,452   8,079   21,255 
       
Depreciation       
At 1 January 2011     -   849   4,532   6,062   11,443 
Charge for the year     -   510   665   1,127   2,302 
Exchange differences      -    -  (1)  10   9 
Disposals     -  (304) (151) (1,077) (1,532)
At 31 December 2011     -   1,055   5,045   6,122   12,222 
       
Net book value at 31 December 2011    3,679   1,990   1,407   1,957   9,033 

Cost or valuation       
At 1 January 2010    3,576   2,711   6,386   7,209   19,882 
Additions     -   929   529   878   2,336 
Exchange differences     83    -   238   332   653 
Disposals     -  (864) (748) (374) (1,986)
Revaluation    (25)   -    -    -  (25)
At 31 December 2010    3,634   2,776   6,405   8,045   20,860 
       
Depreciation       
At 1 January 2010     -   910   4,111   4,928   9,949 
Charge for the year     -   478   758   1,254   2,490 
Exchange differences      -    -   126   229   355 
Disposals     -  (539) (463) (349) (1,351)
At 31 December 2010     -   849   4,532   6,062   11,443 
       
Net book value at 31 December 2010    3,634   1,927   1,873   1,983   9,417 

Certain properties, held as investment properties by subsidiary undertakings but occupied by the Group, were revalued at 31 December 2011. All 
others were revalued at 31 December 2009. Valuations were carried out by Cluttons, an external fi rm of Chartered Surveyors, and were made on 
the basis of open market value. Revaluation movements net of applicable deferred taxes are taken to the revaluation reserve in shareholders’ equity. 
Revaluation movements relating to individual properties for which the current market value is below original cost are recognised within net 
investment return in the income statement.

The value of land and buildings on a historical cost basis is £3,049,000 (2010: £3,048,000).

Depreciation expense has been charged in other operating and administrative expenses.

Included within net book value of motor vehicles is £1,772,000 (2010: £1,723,000) in respect of assets held under fi nance leases.
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Parent     Furniture,   
   Land and  Motor  fi ttings and  Computer  
   buildings  vehicles  equipment  equipment  Total 
   £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 
Cost or valuation       
At 1 January 2011    1,467   2,432   4,249   5,415   13,563 
Part VII transfer in    285   288   885   401   1,859 
Transfer in    1,000    -    -    -   1,000 
Additions     -   661   153   894   1,708 
Exchange differences      -    -  (11) (5) (16)
Disposals     -  (468) (151) (1,077) (1,696)
Revaluation   (5)   -    -    -  (5)
At 31 December 2011    2,747   2,913   5,125   5,628   16,413 
        
Depreciation       
At 1 January 2011     -   704   3,382   4,215   8,301 
Part VII transfer in     -   112   541   358   1,011 
Provided in the year     -   480   459   848   1,787 
Exchange differences      -    -  (6) (3) (9)
Disposals     -  (293) (151) (1,077) (1,521)
At 31 December 2011     -   1,003   4,225   4,341   9,569 
        
Net book value at 31 December 2011    2,747   1,910   900   1,287   6,844 
        
Cost or valuation       
At 1 January 2010    1,467   2,359   4,195   4,869   12,890 
Additions     -   799   5   554   1,358 
Exchange differences      -    -   49   21   70 
Disposals     -  (726)   -  (29) (755)
At 31 December 2010    1,467   2,432   4,249   5,415   13,563 
        
Depreciation       
At 1 January 2010     -   764   2,850   3,250   6,864 
Provided in the year     -   398   500   982   1,880 
Exchange differences      -    -   32   12   44 
Disposals     -  (458)   -  (29) (487)
At 31 December 2010     -   704   3,382   4,215   8,301 
        
Net book value at 31 December 2010    1,467   1,728   867   1,200   5,262 

During the year a property previously classifi ed as an investment property became an owner-occupied property. This is shown above as a 
transfer in. 

The majority of the Company’s land and buildings were revalued at 31 December 2009 by Cluttons, an external fi rm of Chartered Surveyors. 
Valuations were made on the basis of open market value. Revaluation movements net of applicable deferred taxes are taken to the revaluation 
reserve in shareholders’ equity. Revaluation movements relating to individual properties for which the current market value is below original cost are 
recognised within net investment return in the income statement.

The value of land and buildings on a historical cost basis is £2,484,000 (2010: £1,601,000).

Depreciation expense has been charged in other operating and administrative expenses. 

Included within net book value of motor vehicles is £1,772,000 (2010: £1,723,000) in respect of assets held under fi nance leases.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

21 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
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22 Investment property

 2011 2010
 Group Parent Group  Parent
 £000  £000  £000  £000 

Net book value at 1 January  24,641   25,641   24,732   20,950 
Transfer out   -  (1,000)   -    - 
Additions  3,133   3,133   1,956   4,525 
Disposals (827) (827) (2,213)   - 
Fair value gains  526   526   166   166 
Net book value at 31 December 27,473   27,473   24,641   25,641  

 
During the year a property previously classifi ed as an investment property became an owner-occupied property. This is shown above as a transfer out.

The Group’s investment properties were last revalued at 31 December 2011 by Cluttons, an external fi rm of Chartered Surveyors. Valuations were 
made on the basis of open market value.

Investment properties are held for long-term capital appreciation rather than short-term sale. Rental income arising from the investment properties 
owned by the Group amounted to £1,653,000 (2010: £1,669,000) and is included in net investment return. Other operating and administrative 
expenses include £731,000 (2010: £512,000) relating to investment property. Rental income in respect of Parent investment properties amounted to 
£1,653,000 (2010: £1,695,000) and expenses were £731,000 (2010: £496,000).

23 Financial investments
Financial investments summarised by measurement category are as follows.

 2011 2010
 Group Parent Group  Parent
 £000  £000  £000  £000 
Financial investments at fair value through 
profi t or loss   
Equity securities  
- listed   234,877   210,681   251,852   225,449 
- unlisted  17,215   17,171   19,143   19,099 

Debt securities 
- government bonds  258,147   182,152   337,975   235,270 
- listed   306,041   200,189   212,231   99,939 
- unlisted   226   226   285   285 

Derivative fi nancial instruments    
- options  2,298   2,298    -    - 
  818,804   612,717   821,486   580,042 
Loans and receivables
Loans secured by mortgages  11,097    -   12,657    - 
Other loans  20   14   20   14 
  11,117   14   12,677   14 
Parent investments in subsidiary undertakings    
Shares in subsidiary undertakings   -   48,228    -   50,285 
 
Total fi nancial investments  829,921   660,959   834,163   630,341 
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All investments in subsidiary undertakings are unlisted.

Derivative fi nancial instruments are classifi ed as held for trading and their maturity is disclosed in note 24.

All other fi nancial investments are non-current, with the exception of those debt securities maturing within one year, disclosed in note 4(c). Equity 
and debt securities are designated by the Group to be measured at fair value through profi t or loss. The Directors consider that the carrying value 
of loans and receivables approximates to their fair value. An analysis of fi nancial investments by IAS 39 measurement category is given in note 
4(a).

24 Derivative fi nancial instruments
The Group utilises non-hedge derivatives to mitigate equity price risk arising from investments held at fair value and foreign exchange risk arising 
from claims payable in foreign currency.         

 2011 2010
  Contract/    Contract/    
  notional  Fair value  Fair value  notional  Fair value  Fair value  
  amount  asset  liability  amount  asset  liability  
Group and Parent  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  
Equity/Index contracts        
Futures   92,680    -  (1,432)   -    -    -  

Foreign exchange contracts        
Options   50,000   2,298    -    -    -    -  
Total at 31 December   142,680   2,298  (1,432)   -    -    -  
        
Current    117,680   951  (1,432)   -    -    -  
Non-current    25,000   1,347    -    -    -    -  

The notional amounts above refl ect the aggregate of individual derivative positions on a gross basis and so give an indication of the overall scale of 
the derivative transaction. They do not refl ect current market values of the open positions.

Derivative fair value assets are recognised within fi nancial investments (note 23) and derivative fair value liabilities are recognised within other 
liabilities (note 34).

Amounts pledged as collateral in respect of derivative contracts are disclosed in note 26.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

23 Financial investments (continued)
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25 Other assets

 2011 2010
 Group  Parent  Group  Parent 
 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Receivables arising from insurance and reinsurance contracts:    
- due from contract holders  32,003   28,432   26,985   23,666 
- due from agents, brokers and intermediaries   52,481   34,096   66,756   31,642 
- due from reinsurers  16,912   11,850   10,434   9,312 

Other receivables:  
- accrued interest and rent  7,467   5,362   7,243   4,764 
- other prepayments and accrued income  3,152   2,963   3,272   5,386 
- amounts owed by related parties   18,275   31,339   8,627   27,349 
- other debtors  16,740   576   13,344   441 
  147,030   114,618   136,661   102,560  

 
Other assets are current, except for loans to related parties, for which a maturity analysis is presented in note 4(c). The above carrying amounts are 
a reasonable approximation of fair value.

The Group has recognised a credit of £3,187,000 (2010: credit of £266,000) in other operating and administrative expenses in the income 
statement refl ecting an updated assessment of the level of impairment of its trade and other receivables during the year. The Parent has 
recognised a credit of £2,690,000 (2010: credit of £407,000).

There has been no signifi cant change in the credit quality of the Group’s trade receivables, for which no collateral is held. The Directors consider 
that the amounts are recoverable at their carrying values, which are stated net of an allowance for doubtful debts, based on historic experience of 
credit losses.

 2011 2010
 Group  Parent  Group  Parent 
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 January  4,055   3,622   4,367   4,034 
Part VII transfer in   -   120    -    - 
Movement in the year (3,389) (3,358) (312) (412)
Balance 31 December  666   384   4,055   3,622   

The allowance for doubtful debts includes a provision of £650,000 (2010: £656,000) for the Group and £364,000 (2010: £366,000) for the 
Parent, in respect of debtors that are individually determined to be impaired based on an assessment of their ageing profi le and credit rating at the 
reporting date.

Included within trade receivables of the Group is £3,638,000 (2010: £4,508,000) overdue but not impaired, of which £3,232,000 
(2010: £3,766,000) is not more than three months overdue at the reporting date. Included within trade receivables of the Parent is £3,586,000 
(2010: £3,929,000) overdue but not impaired, of which £3,232,000 (2010: £3,196,000) is not more than three months overdue at the reporting 
date. 
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27 Called up share capital

   Issued, allotted and 
   fully paid
    2011  2010 
    £000 £000

Ordinary shares of 10p each     14,027   14,027 
8.625% Non-cumulative Irredeemable Preference shares of £1 each    106,450   106,450 
     120,477   120,477 
    
Movements in the number of shares in issue during the year were as follows:  2011  2010 
    000s  000s 
Ordinary shares of 10p each   
At 1 January and 31 December     140,270   140,270 
 
8.625% Non-cumulative Irredeemable Preference shares of £1 each    
At 1 January     106,450   66,450 
Shares issued      -   40,000 
At 31 December     106,450   106,450 

 

During the prior year the issued share capital of the Company was increased by the placing of 40,000,000 additional 8.625% Non-cumulative 
Irredeemable Preference Shares of £1 each.

On winding up, the assets of the Company remaining after payment of its liabilities are to be applied to holders of the Irredeemable Preference 
shares in repaying the nominal capital sum paid up on the shares and an amount equal to all arrears of accrued and unpaid dividends up to the 
date of the commencement of the winding up. The residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all liabilities belongs to the 
Ordinary shareholders.

Holders of the Irredeemable Preference shares are not entitled to receive notice of, or to attend, or vote at any general meeting of the Company 
unless, at the time of the notice convening such meeting, the dividend on such shares which is most recently payable on such shares shall not have 
been paid in full, or where a resolution is proposed varying any of the rights of such shares, or for the winding up of the Company.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

26 Cash and cash equivalents

 2011 2010
 Group  Parent  Group  Parent 
 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cash at bank and in hand   48,453   20,062   62,442   38,682 
Short-term bank deposits   106,571   96,177   102,363   86,555 
  155,024   116,239   164,805   125,237  

 
Included within short-term bank deposits of the Group and Parent are cash deposits of £8,912,000 (2010: £nil) pledged as collateral by way of 
cash margins on open derivative contracts and cash to cover derivative liabilities. On closure of these contracts any derivative liability position is 
settled, and collateral pledged on the margin ceases.
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28 Share premium account

    2011  2010 
    £000 £000

At 1 January     4,632   4,632 
Premium on shares issued      -   800 
Expenses of issue of shares      -  (800)
At 31 December     4,632   4,632 

 Transaction costs in excess of the premium on shares issued in the prior year of £349,000 have been recognised in other operating and 
administrative expenses in the income statement.

29 Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets

 2011 2010
 Group  Parent  Group  Parent 
 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Gross   
Claims outstanding  946,824   479,159   668,091   469,304 
Unearned premiums   221,087   180,746   236,555   164,365 
Long-term business provision  81,714    -   60,663    - 
Total gross insurance liabilities  1,249,625   659,905   965,309   633,669 
    
Recoverable from reinsurers    
Claims outstanding  482,166   99,697   217,950   116,508 
Unearned premiums   58,884   43,081   68,244   42,683 
Total reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities   541,050   142,778   286,194   159,191 
  
Net    
Claims outstanding  464,658   379,462   450,141   352,796 
Unearned premiums   162,203   137,665   168,311   121,682 
Long-term business provision  81,714    -   60,663    - 
Total net insurance liabilities  708,575   517,127   679,115   474,478 
     
Gross insurance liabilities     
Current   611,660   350,801   474,131   314,514 
Non-current   637,965   309,104   491,178   319,155 
    
Reinsurance assets   
Current   307,992   95,412   183,746   102,090 
Non-current   233,058   47,366   102,448   57,101 
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(a) General business insurance contracts

(i) Reserving methodology

Reserving for non-life insurance claims is a complex process and the Group adopts recognised actuarial methods, and, where appropriate, other 
calculations and statistical analysis. Actuarial methods used include chain ladder, the Bornhuetter-Ferguson and average cost methods.

Chain ladder methods extrapolate paid amounts, incurred amounts (paid claims plus case estimates), the number of claims or average cost of 
claims, to ultimate claims based on the development of previous years. This method assumes that previous patterns are a reasonable guide to 
future developments. Where this assumption is felt to be unreasonable, adjustments are made or other methods, such as Bornhuetter-Ferguson or 
average cost, are used. The Bornhuetter-Ferguson method places more credibility on expected loss ratios for the most recent loss years. For 
smaller portfolios the materiality of the business and data available may also shape the methods used in reviewing reserve adequacy.

The selection of results for each accident year and for each portfolio depends on an assessment of the most appropriate method. Sometimes a 
combination of techniques is used.

(ii) Calculation of uncertainty margins

To refl ect the uncertain nature of the outcome of the ultimate settlement cost of claims an uncertainty margin is added to the best estimate. The 
addition for uncertainty is assessed primarily by the Thomas Mack actuarial method, based on at least the 75th percentile confi dence level for each 
portfolio. For smaller portfolios where the Thomas Mack method cannot be applied, provisions have been calculated at a level intended to be 
equally prudent. Where the standard methods cannot allow for changing circumstances then additional uncertainty margins are added and are 
typically expressed as a percentage of outstanding claims. This approach generally results in a favourable release of provisions in the current 
fi nancial year, arising from the settlement of claims relating to previous fi nancial years, as shown in part (c) of the note. 

(iii) Calculation of provisions for latent claims

The Group adopts commonly used industry methods including those based on claims frequency and severity and benchmarking. 

(iv) Assumptions

The Group follows a process of reviewing its reserves for outstanding claims on a quarterly basis. This involves an appraisal of each portfolio with 
respect to ultimate claims liability for the recent exposure period as well as for earlier periods, together with a review of the factors that have the 
most signifi cant impact on the assumptions used to determine the reserving methodology. The work conducted on each portfolio is subject to an 
internal peer review and management sign-off process.

The most signifi cant assumptions in determining general insurance reserves are the anticipated number and ultimate settlement cost of claims, and 
the extent to which reinsurers will share in the cost. Factors which infl uence decisions on assumptions include legal and judicial changes, signifi cant 
weather events, other catastrophes, subsidence events, exceptional claims or substantial changes in claims experience and developments in older 
or latent claims. Signifi cant factors infl uencing assumptions about reinsurance are terms of the reinsurance treaties, the anticipated time taken to 
settle a claim and the incidence of large individual and aggregated claims.

(v) Change in assumptions

There are no signifi cant changes in assumptions. 

(vi) Sensitivity of results

The ultimate amount of claims settlement is uncertain and the Group’s aim is to reserve at a prudent level.

If fi nal settlement of insurance claims reserved for at the year end turns out to be 10% higher or lower than that included in these fi nancial 
statements, the following pre-tax Group loss or profi t will be realised. 

  2011 2010
  Gross  Net  Gross  Net 
   £000 £000 £000 £000

Liability - UK  23,200 21,100 20,500 18,200
 - Overseas  10,300 9,500 9,600 9,100
Property - UK  6,300 4,000 8,300 5,100
 - Overseas  44,600 22,800 19,300 4,900
Motor - UK  2,700 2,100 2,900 2,300
 - Overseas  300 100 300 100

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

29 Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets (continued)
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(vii) Claims development tables

The nature of liability classes of business is that claims may take a number of years to settle and before the fi nal liability is known. The tables below 
show the development of the estimate of ultimate gross and net claims cost for these classes across all territories. 

Estimate of gross ultimate claims

  2002  2003  2004  2005  2006  2007  2008  2009  2010  2011  Total 
Group  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 
At end of year   37,794 42,800   42,503   46,155   45,688   50,840   56,420   74,742   84,476   82,095  
One year later   35,255 38,919   40,075   32,998   45,900   47,307   53,552   59,807   75,550   
Two years later   33,978   36,741   35,645   35,001   40,092   43,270   47,643   55,250    
Three years later   29,817   33,859   33,431   30,365   36,168   35,510   44,658     
Four years later   26,322   32,361   31,870   26,835   30,791   35,556      
Five years later   25,183   32,517   25,912   25,860   28,470       
Six years later   27,319   31,855   25,713   25,893        
Seven years later   27,654   32,067   25,685         
Eight years later   28,998   32,422          
Nine years later   28,644           
            
Current estimate of
ultimate claims   28,644   32,422   25,685   25,893   28,470   35,556   44,658   55,250   75,550   82,095   434,223 
Cumulative payments 
to date   (25,173) (29,502) (21,539) (19,904) (20,156) (20,353) (17,603) (14,343) (8,289) (1,457) (178,319)
Outstanding liability   3,471   2,920   4,146   5,989   8,314   15,203   27,055   40,907   67,261   80,638   255,904 
            
Liability in respect of earlier years            76,131 
Total gross liability (for liability classes) included in insurance liabilities in the statement of fi nancial position    332,035 
            
Parent *            

At end of year   34,140   35,279   36,590   39,338   38,332   41,927   46,882   60,810   69,230   66,864  
One year later   30,505   32,490   34,683   27,128   37,518   38,967   43,344   46,660   60,202   
Two years later   29,933   30,950   30,998   28,917   33,711   33,464   37,204   43,853    
Three years later   26,346   29,353   28,394   24,960   30,329   28,093   37,669     
Four years later   23,407   26,741   26,669   21,643   24,731   28,569      
Five years later   22,547   23,610   21,919   21,095   24,821       
Six years later   24,311   23,117   21,166   20,919        
Seven years later   24,274   22,835   21,047         
Eight years later   25,110   23,228          
Nine years later   24,509           
            
Current estimate of
ultimate claims    24,509   23,228   21,047   20,919   24,821   28,569   37,669   43,853   60,202   66,864   351,681 
Cumulative payments 
to date   (21,199) (20,533) (18,007) (16,558) (17,819) (17,285) (14,992) (12,850) (6,200) (1,201) (146,644)
Outstanding liability   3,310   2,695   3,040   4,361   7,002   11,284   22,677   31,003   54,002   65,663   205,037 

Liability in respect of earlier years            61,357 
Total gross liability (for liability classes) included in insurance liabilities in the statement of fi nancial position    266,394 
            
* Parent claims development tables have been adjusted to include Part VII transfer in of insurance business. 
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Estimate of net ultimate claims

  2002  2003  2004  2005  2006  2007  2008  2009  2010  2011  Total 
Group  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 
At end of year   34,480   34,483   35,349   39,528   41,007   46,235   51,795   64,476   73,218   75,302  
One year later   29,269   30,253   34,867   32,780   40,976   43,107   48,432   53,700   64,796   
Two years later   26,140   29,791   29,447   31,287   35,783   38,979   44,498   50,805    
Three years later   24,934   28,897   28,486   28,641   33,145   34,180   42,524     
Four years later   21,787   26,142   27,840   25,665   30,283   35,004      
Five years later   20,393   25,018   24,560   25,391   28,230       
Six years later   21,103   23,375   24,482   25,150        
Seven years later   21,378   23,300   24,435         
Eight years later   21,793   23,590          
Nine years later   22,136           
            
Current estimate of
ultimate claims    22,136   23,590   24,435   25,150   28,230   35,004   42,524   50,805   64,796   75,302   391,972  
Cumulative payments 
to date   (18,924) (20,718) (20,325) (19,578) (19,997) (20,100) (17,507) (12,830) (8,032) (1,447) (159,458)
Outstanding liability   3,212   2,872   4,110   5,572   8,233   14,904   25,017   37,975   56,764   73,855   232,514  
            
Liability in respect of earlier years            70,567 
Total gross liability (for liability classes) included in insurance liabilities in the statement of fi nancial position    303,081 
            
Parent *            

At end of year   29,672   28,731   29,839   32,394   33,318   36,959   41,631   51,226   57,135   59,011 
One year later   24,561   25,767   29,328   26,772   32,547   34,656   38,270   39,841   49,060  
Two years later   22,609   25,402   24,552   25,279   29,284   29,650   33,814   40,198   
Three years later   21,662   25,637   24,061   23,304   27,449   26,905   34,983    
Four years later   19,270   23,169   23,622   20,929   24,103   28,322     
Five years later   18,304   21,262   21,399   20,551   24,707      
Six years later   18,695   20,729   20,828   20,811       
Seven years later   18,679   20,356   20,877        
Eight years later   18,768   20,969         
Nine years later   19,293          
            
Current estimate of
ultimate claims     19,293   20,969   20,877   20,811   24,707   28,322   34,983   40,198   49,060   59,011   318,231 
Cumulative payments 
to date   (16,143) (18,299) (17,853) (16,473) (17,819) (17,285) (14,992) (11,429) (6,200) (1,201) (137,694)
Outstanding liability    3,150   2,670   3,024   4,338   6,888   11,037   19,991   28,769   42,860   57,810   180,537  

Liability in respect of earlier years            55,824 
Total gross liability (for liability classes) included in insurance liabilities in the statement of fi nancial position    236,361 
            
* Parent claims development tables have been adjusted to include Part VII transfer in of insurance business. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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(b) Long-term insurance and group life yearly renewable contracts        
(i) Assumptions         

The most signifi cant assumptions in determining long-term business reserves are as follows.

Mortality

An appropriate base table of standard mortality is chosen depending on the type of contract. Where prudent, an allowance is made for future 
mortality improvements based on trends identifi ed in population data. 

Investment returns 

Projected investment returns are based on actual yields for each asset class less an allowance for credit risk, where appropriate. The risk adjusted 
yields after allowance for tax and investment expenses for the current valuation are as follows.

    2011  2010 
    Non-profi t Non-profi t
UK and overseas government bonds: non-linked    2.52% n/a
UK government: index-linked    -0.92% -0.30%
Corporate debt instruments: index-linked    -0.36% 0.17%

 

The investment return assumption is determined by calculating an overall yield on all cash fl ows projected to occur from the portfolio of fi nancial 
assets which are assumed to back the relevant class of liabilities.  At the end of 2010 a weighted average rate of investment return was derived. 
The change in methodology applies a modifi cation to FSA Rule INSPRU 3.1.35R, which was granted in September 2011. For index-linked assets, 
the real yield is shown.

Funeral plans renewal expense level and infl ation 

Numbers of policies in force and both projected and actual expenses have been considered when setting the base renewal expense level. The unit 
renewal expense assumption for this business is £15.40 per annum (2010: £19.00 per annum).

Expense infl ation is set with reference to the index-linked UK government bond rates of return, and published fi gures for earnings infl ation, and is 
assumed to be 3.78% per annum (2010: 3.28%).

Tax

It has been assumed that current tax legislation and rates continue unaltered. 

(ii) Changes in assumptions 

Projected investment returns have been revised in line with the changes in the actual yields of the underlying assets. As a result, liabilities have 
increased by £5.1 million (2010: £2.6 million increase).

The effect on insurance liabilities of the changes to unit renewal expense assumptions (described in (i) above) was a £0.6 million decrease (2010: 
£1.1 million increase).

Future improvements to mortality have been introduced for funeral plan business for the fi rst time in 2011. As a result, liabilities have increased by 
£0.7 million. In 2010, an improvement in base mortality assumptions resulted in a £0.8 million increase in liabilities.

An increase in projected investment expenses to 0.12% of funds under management (2010: decrease from 0.25% to 0.10%) has increased 
liabilities by £0.2 million (2010: decreased liabilities by £0.5 million). 

(iii) Changes in methodology 

The effect of the change to the methodology for calculating the investment return assumption (described in (i) above) would have been to reduce 
the start of the year liabilities by £0.5 million.

A decision has been made to cease paying fund-based commission on some of the funeral plan business. The release of reserves to provide for 
that commission has reduced the start of the year liabilities by £0.7 million.
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(iv) Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity of the profi t or loss before tax to changes in the key assumptions used to calculate non-profi t fund insurance liabilities is shown in 
the following table. No account has been taken of any correlation between the assumptions.

   Change in Potential increase/
   variable (decrease) in the result 
    2011  2010 
Variable    £000  £000 

Deterioration in annuitant mortality   -10%  600  (300)
Improvement in annuitant mortality   +10% (700)  300 
Increase in fi xed interest/cash yields   +1%pa (400) (1,100)
Decrease in fi xed interest/cash yields   -1%pa  300   1,200 
Worsening of base renewal expense level   +10% (500) (400)
Improvement in base renewal expense level   -10%  500   400 
Increase in expense infl ation    +1%pa (500) (400)
Decrease in expense infl ation    -1%pa  500   300 

 (v) Available capital resources

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

29 Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets (continued)

   Non-profi t  Share-  Total   
   life  holders’  life  Other  Group 
   fund  fund  business  activities  total 
   £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 
2011       
Shareholders’ equity   (6,954)  33,184   26,230   409,854   436,084 
Adjustments to assets/liabilities     15,500  (15,500)   -  (79,821) (79,821)
Adjustments to actuarial liabilities    (2,822)   -  (2,822)   -  (2,822)
Total available capital resources     5,724   17,684   23,408   330,033   353,441 
Policyholder liabilities       
- life insurance business     81,714    -   81,714   
Net actuarial liabilities on statement 
of fi nancial position     81,714    -   81,714   

2010       
Shareholders’ equity   (6,746)  33,636   26,890   430,017   456,907 
Adjustments to assets/liabilities     12,500  (12,500)   -  (67,131) (67,131)
Adjustments to actuarial liabilities    (2,822)   -  (2,822)   -  (2,822)
Total available capital resources     2,932   21,136   24,068   362,886   386,954 
Policyholder liabilities       
- life insurance business     60,663    -   60,663   
Net actuarial liabilities on statement 
of fi nancial position     60,663    -   60,663     
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Shareholders’ equity/(defi cit) in the non-profi t fund represents the net profi t or loss generated by this fund not transferred, to date, to the 
shareholders’ fund. The life shareholders’ fund is the balance of shareholder equity in the life business. The adjustments to assets/liabilities relate 
to both assets and liabilities which are not admissible for FSA solvency purposes. The adjustments to the non-profi t fund net assets/(liabilities) are 
capitalised computer software and deferred acquisition costs.

Other activities include the general insurance business of the Parent and its subsidiaries, and consequently all Group capital not required to meet 
the solvency requirements of the general business is available to meet the solvency requirements of the life business. 

The available capital resources in the non-profi t life fund, subject to the regulatory capital requirements of the fund itself, are available to meet 
requirements elsewhere in the Group. The capital requirements of the life business are based on the FSA capital requirements. 

The Group uses both its Individual Capital Assessment and its Individual Capital Guidance as a tool for determining capital requirements and their 
sensitivity to various risks. The Group manages these risks by means of its underwriting strategy, reinsurance strategy, investment strategy, and 
management control framework.

(vi) Movements in life capital

     Non-profi t  Share-  Total 
     life  holders’  life 
     fund  fund  business 
     £000  £000  £000 
2011       
Published capital resources as at 31 December 2010     2,932   21,136   24,068 
Effect of new business      (2,065)   -  (2,065)
Variance between actual and expected experience       254    -   254 
Effect of changes to valuation process       983    -   983 
Effect of changes to valuation interest rates      (221)   -  (221)
Effect of changes to unit renewal expense assumptions      926    -   926 
Effect of changes to infl ation assumption       146    -   146 
Effect of changes to mortality assumptions      (722)   -  (722)
Transfers between funds       3,000  (3,000)   - 
Other movements       491  (452)  39 
Capital resources as at 31 December 2011       5,724   17,684   23,408 
 

Assumptions, and the effect of changes in these assumptions on profi t or loss, are covered in sections b(i) to b(iii) of this note.
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(c) Movements in insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

29 Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets (continued)

Group     Gross  Reinsurance  Net 
     £000  £000  £000 
Claims outstanding       
At 1 January 2011      668,091  (217,950)  450,141 
Cash (paid)/received for claims settled in the year     (351,354)  164,015  (187,339)
Change in liabilities/reinsurance assets       
- arising from current year claims      661,333  (431,881)  229,452 
- arising from prior year claims     (34,197)  7,029  (27,168)
Exchange differences       2,951  (3,379) (428)
At 31 December 2011      946,824  (482,166)  464,658 

Provision for unearned premiums       
At 1 January 2011      236,555  (68,244)  168,311 
Increase in the period      220,558  (58,652)  161,906 
Release in the period     (235,797)  67,994  (167,803)
Exchange differences      (229)  18  (211)
At 31 December 2011      221,087  (58,884)  162,203  

Long-term business provision       
At 1 January 2011      60,663    -   60,663 
Effect of new business during the year      18,946    -   18,946 
Effect of claims during the year     (5,028)   -  (5,028)
Changes in assumptions      5,335    -   5,335 
Change in methodology     (983)   -  (983)
Other movements      2,781    -   2,781 
At 31 December 2011      81,714    -   81,714 

Claims outstanding       
At 1 January 2010      522,570  (124,769)  397,801 
Cash (paid)/received for claims settled in the year     (255,908)  86,852  (169,056)
Change in liabilities/reinsurance assets       
- arising from current year claims      448,666  (190,556)  258,110 
- arising from prior year claims     (65,112)  20,754  (44,358)
Disposal of business     (6,664)  44  (6,620)
Exchange differences       24,539  (10,275)  14,264 
At 31 December 2010      668,091  (217,950)  450,141 

Provision for unearned premiums       
At 1 January 2010      214,496  (66,531)  147,965 
Increase in the period      230,308  (65,804)  164,504 
Release in the period     (217,954)  67,756  (150,198)
Exchange differences       9,705  (3,665)  6,040 
At 31 December 2010      236,555  (68,244)  168,311 

Long-term business provision       
At 1 January 2010      242,252  (2,591)  239,661 
Reinsurance of existing business       -  (94,999) (94,999)
Effect of new business during the year      18,096  (2,648)  15,448 
Effect of claims during the year     (28,122)  8,801  (19,321)
Changes in assumptions      2,778   2,209   4,987 
Change in methodology      25  (159) (134)
Disposal of business     (180,572)  91,786  (88,786)
Other movements      6,206  (2,399)  3,807 
At 31 December 2010      60,663    -   60,663  
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Parent     Gross  Reinsurance  Net 
     £000  £000  £000 
Claims outstanding       
At 1 January 2011      469,304  (116,508)  352,796 
Part VII transfer in      19,543  (4,297)  15,246 
Cash (paid)/received for claims settled in the year     (207,954)  57,437  (150,517)
Change in liabilities/reinsurance assets       
- arising from current year claims      227,674  (43,209)  184,465 
- arising from prior year claims     (28,016)  6,594  (21,422)
Exchange differences      (1,392)  286  (1,106)
At 31 December 2011      479,159  (99,697)  379,462 
       
Provision for unearned premiums       
At 1 January 2011      164,365  (42,683)  121,682 
Part VII transfer in      12,338  (1,032)  11,306 
Increase in the period      180,880  (43,108)  137,772 
Release in the period     (176,451)  43,670  (132,781)
Exchange differences      (386)  72  (314)
At 31 December 2011      180,746  (43,081)  137,665 
       
Claims outstanding       
At 1 January 2010      407,684  (92,827)  314,857 
Cash (paid)/received for claims settled in the year     (163,814)  42,784  (121,030)
Change in liabilities/reinsurance assets       
- arising from current year claims      271,650  (82,235)  189,415 
- arising from prior year claims     (49,872)  17,082  (32,790)
Exchange differences       3,656  (1,312)  2,344 
At 31 December 2010      469,304  (116,508)  352,796 
       
Provision for unearned premiums       
At 1 January 2010      152,599  (44,627)  107,972 
Increase in the period      163,601  (42,473)  121,128 
Release in the period     (152,973)  44,628  (108,345)
Exchange differences       1,138  (211)  927 
At 31 December 2010      164,365  (42,683)  121,682 
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30 Finance lease obligations

 2011 2010
 Group  Parent  Group  Parent 
 £000 £000 £000 £000
Minimum lease obligations payable:    
Within 1 year  741   741   701   701 
Between 1 & 5 years  1,312   1,312   1,394   1,394 
  2,053   2,053   2,095   2,095 

Less: future fi nance charges (167) (167) (197) (197)
Present value of fi nance lease obligations  1,886   1,886   1,898   1,898 

The present value of minimum lease obligations payable:
Within 1 year  643   643   587   587 
Between 1 & 5 years  1,243   1,243   1,311   1,311 
  1,886   1,886   1,898   1,898 

 

Finance lease obligations are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets revert to the lessor in the event of default. The carrying amount 
of fi nance lease obligations equates to fair value.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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31 Provisions for other liabilities

     Restructuring  
    Regulatory  and other  
    levies  provisions  Total 
    £000  £000  £000 
Group
At 1 January 2011     10,202   1,025   11,227 
Additional provisions       -   6   6 
Used during year     (403) (125) (528)
Not utilised    (1,990)   -  (1,990)
Exchange differences       -   2   2 
At 31 December 2011     7,809   908   8,717 
      
Current      7,809   195   8,004 
Non-current       -   713   713 

Parent
At 1 January 2011     9,070   675   9,745 
Part VII transfer in     927    -   927 
Additional provisions       -   1   1 
Used during year     (403) (78) (481)
Not utilised    (1,990)   -  (1,990)
At 31 December 2011     7,604   598   8,202 

Current     7,604   164   7,768 
Non-current      -   434   434  

 
Regulatory levies         

The Group is required under the Financial Services Compensation Scheme to contribute towards any levies raised on UK general and life insurance 
business. The amount of the levy has historically been based on a proportion of UK written premium. The Group’s provision was increased in 2008, 
refl ecting management’s view of the impact of changes in the funding arrangements (such that insurers may also be required to contribute to levies 
arising from compensation paid to retail deposit holders) amid uncertainty regarding the extent of the banking crisis. The current year reduction in 
provision refl ects an updated assessment of the total potential levies. 

Restructuring and other provisions         

The provision for restructuring and other costs relates mainly to onerous lease costs arising from a restructure of the Group’s UK operations.  
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32 Deferred tax
An analysis and reconciliation of the movement of the key components of the net deferred tax liability during the current and prior reporting period 
is as follows.         

   Net    
  Unrealised  retirement    
  gains on  benefi t  Equalisation  Other  
  investments  assets  reserve  differences  Total 
  £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 
Group
At 1 January 2010   33,064   5,884   6,069  (7,263)  37,754 
Charged/(credited) to income  3,992  (45) (807)  1,026   4,166 
(Credited)/charged to income
- resulting from reduction in tax rate (1,029) (210) (218)  37  (1,420)
Charged to equity    -    -    -   1,322   1,322 
Credited to equity
- resulting from reduction in tax rate   -    -    -  (6) (6)
Disposal of business  (3,450)   -    -    -  (3,450)
Exchange differences   7  (3)   -  (569) (565)
At 31 December 2010   32,584   5,626   5,044  (5,453)  37,801 

(Credited)/charged to income (3,616) (148)  1,011  (1,458) (4,211)
(Credited)/charged to income
- resulting from reduction in tax rate (2,443) (404) (375)  116  (3,106)
Credited to equity    -    -    -  (23) (23)
Credited to equity
- resulting from reduction in tax rate   -    -    -  (11) (11)
Exchange differences    -  (5)   -  (22) (27)
At 31 December 2011   26,525   5,069   5,680  (6,851)  30,423 

Parent   
At 1 January 2010   28,025   5,331   5,799  (2,722)  36,433 
Charged/(credited) to income  5,186  (87) (868) (473)  3,758 
(Credited)/charged to income
- resulting from reduction in tax rate (1,001) (187) (208)  34  (1,362)
Charged to equity    -    -    -   1,260   1,260 
Credited to equity
- resulting from reduction in tax rate   -    -    -  (6) (6)
Exchange differences  (3) (3)   -  (62) (68)
At 31 December 2010   32,207   5,054   4,723  (1,969)  40,015 

Part VII transfer in    -   572   321  (75)  818 
(Credited)/charged to income (3,934) (148)  1,011   15  (3,056)
(Credited)/charged to income
- resulting from reduction in tax rate (2,385) (404) (375)  99  (3,065)
Credited to equity    -    -    -  (4) (4)
Credited to equity
- resulting from reduction in tax rate   -    -    -  (11) (11)
Exchange differences    -  (5)   -   13   8 
At 31 December 2011   25,888   5,069   5,680  (1,932)  34,705 
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Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for fi nancial reporting 
purposes.

 2011 2010
 Group  Parent  Group  Parent 
 £000  £000  £000  £000 
   
Deferred tax liabilities  35,877   35,625   42,321   40,912 
Deferred tax assets (5,454) (920) (4,520) (897)
  30,423   34,705   37,801   40,015 

 
The Group has unused tax losses of £8,315,000 (2010: £9,773,000) arising from life business deferred acquisition costs and capital transactions, 
which are available for offset against future profi ts. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profi t streams.

The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries and branches for which deferred tax 
liabilities have not been recognised is £79,158,000 (2010: £83,962,000). No liability has been recognised in respect of these differences because 
the Group is in a position to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that such differences will not reverse in 
the foreseeable future.         

33 Deferred income

 2011 2010
 Group  Parent  Group  Parent 
 £000 £000 £000 £000

Reinsurance commissions receivable  17,163   14,341   20,150   13,842 
Other deferred income  394    -   412    - 
Total  17,557   14,341   20,562   13,842 

Current   17,557   14,341   20,557   13,837 
Non-current    -    -   5   5 

 

34 Other liabilities

 2011 2010
 Group  Parent  Group  Parent 
 £000 £000 £000 £000

Creditors arising out of direct insurance operations 7,087   215   2,343   454
Creditors arising out of reinsurance operations  14,076   13,647   17,665   11,788 
Derivative liabilities  1,432   1,432    -    - 
Other creditors  16,321   8,170   15,322   7,029 
Amounts owed to related parties  782   952   956   1,230 
Accruals  10,103   7,090   12,239   9,037 
  49,801   31,506   48,525   29,538
All liabilities are current 
 

Derivative liabilities are in respect of equity futures contracts and are detailed in note 24. 

The above carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value.
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35 Commitments
Capital commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at the year end date but not yet incurred is as follows.

 2011 2010
 Group  Parent  Group  Parent 
 £000 £000 £000 £000

Property, plant and equipment  171   120   184   132 
 

Operating lease commitments         

The Group leases premises and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease agreements.  

The future aggregate minimum lease rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows. 

  2011 2010
   Group  Parent  Group  Parent 
   £000 £000 £000 £000

Within 1 year    2,330   2,330   1,530   1,628 
Between 1 & 5 years    4,926   4,926   4,479   4,867 
After 5 years    9,892   9,892   7,416   7,416 
    17,148   17,148   13,425   13,911  

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows. 

  2011 2010
   Group  Parent  Group  Parent 
   £000 £000 £000 £000

Within 1 year    2,760   1,904   2,707   1,860 
Between 1 & 5 years    7,204   5,240   8,600   6,205 
After 5 years    2,472   2,137   2,964   2,964 
    12,436   9,281   14,271   11,029 

Operating lease rentals charged to the income statement during 
the year    3,120   2,164   3,141   2,125 

Total future minimum sublease payments expected to be received 
under non-cancellable subleases   131   131   211   211 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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36 Parent and subsidiary undertakings
Ultimate parent company and controlling party

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ecclesiastical Insurance Group plc. Its ultimate parent and controlling company is Allchurches Trust 
Limited. Both companies are incorporated and operate in Great Britain and copies of their fi nancial statements are available from the registered 
offi ce as shown on page 120. The parent companies of the smallest and largest groups for which group fi nancial statements are drawn up are 
Ecclesiastical Insurance Offi ce plc and Allchurches Trust Limited respectively. All the subsidiaries listed are included within the consolidated 
fi nancial statements. Voting rights are in line with the holdings of Ordinary shares.

The Company’s interest in Group undertakings at 31 December 2011 is as follows. 

             Holding of shares by:
Subsidiary undertakings   Share capital Parent  Subsidiary

Incorporated and operating in Great Britain, engaged in investment, 
insurance and fi nancial services or other insurance-related business     
  
Ecclesiastical Financial Advisory Services Limited   Ordinary shares 100%    - 
Ecclesiastical Investment Management Limited   Ordinary shares 100%    - 
Ecclesiastical Life Limited   Ordinary shares 100%    - 
South Essex Insurance Brokers Limited   Ordinary shares   -   100%
 
Incorporated and operating in Australia, engaged in insurance business
 
Ansvar Insurance Limited   Ordinary shares 100%    - 
 
Incorporated and operating in New Zealand, engaged in insurance business
 
ACS (NZ) Limited (previously known as Ansvar Insurance Limited)  Ordinary shares   -   100%

Additionally, at the year end there were four other wholly owned subsidiary undertakings of which the assets and contributions to Group income are 
not signifi cant.         
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37 Related party transactions
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not included in 
the Group analysis, but are included within the Parent analysis below. 

The parent-related party transactions below relate to Ecclesiastical Insurance Group plc, the Group and Parent’s immediate parent company. Group 
and Parent other related parties include Beaufort House Trust Limited, a company under common control, the Group’s pension schemes, fellow 
subsidiary undertakings and the ultimate parent undertaking.        

     Other 
     related 
   Parent  Subsidiaries  parties 
   £000  £000  £000 
2011     
Group     
Trading, investment and other income, including recharges   153    -   2,290 
Trading, investment and other expenditure, including recharges   11,177    -   3,219 
Amounts owed by related parties    16,161    -   2,114 
Amounts owed to related parties    728    -   54 
  
Parent     
Trading, investment and other income, including recharges   153   8,539   1,447 
Trading, investment and other expenditure, including recharges   11,177   6,438   3,191 
Amounts owed by related parties    16,161   13,063   2,115 
Amounts owed to related parties    621   277   54 

2010
Group   
Trading, investment and other income, including recharges   71    -   5,013 
Trading, investment and other expenditure, including recharges   6,314    -   4,011 
Amounts owed by related parties    5,391    -   3,236 
Amounts owed to related parties    924    -   32 
  
Parent   
Trading, investment and other income, including recharges   71   28,508   2,014 
Trading, investment and other expenditure, including recharges   6,314   22,921   3,626 
Amounts owed by related parties    5,391   18,790   3,168 
Amounts owed to related parties    924   285   21 

During the prior year, the Company acquired the entire business of Ansvar Insurance Company Limited, a 100% owned subsidiary of the Company. 
The transfer took place at net asset value of £25,820,000. 

During the year, the Company received premiums, commission and reinsurance recoveries via a related party insurance agency amounting to 
£20,237,369 (2010: £54,606,927) and paid reinsurance protection, commission and claims amounting to £30,779,596 (2010: £57,238,250).

Group investments in related party mutual funds of £135,552,000 (2010: £148,949,000) are included in listed equity securities in note 23 to the 
fi nancial statements, as are Parent investments in related party mutual funds of £118,147,000 (2010: £129,984,000).

Transactions and services within the Group are made on commercial terms. Amounts outstanding between Group companies are unsecured, are 
not subject to guarantees, and will be settled in cash. No provisions have been made in respect of these balances.  

Key management compensation is disclosed in note 13.    

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

Directors * W. M. Samuel BSc, FCA Chairman    
 * Sir Philip Mawer DLitt, LLD Deputy Chairman    
 * D. Christie BA, BSc (Econ) Dip. Ed.    
 * M. D. Couve BComm, LLM, MA Law, Solicitor    
  M. C. J. Hews BSc, FIA Chief Financial Offi cer    
 * J. F. Hylands FFA    
 * A. P. Latham ACII    
 * The Venerable Dr. N. Peyton MA, BD, STM, PhD Archdeacon of Newark  
  M. H. Tripp BSc, ARCS, FIA Group Chief Executive    
 * D. P. Wilson BA Hons, FCII    
  S. A. Wood BSc, FCII Managing Director UK    

Group Executive Team  M. H. Tripp BSc, ARCS, FIA Group Chief Executive    
  N. P. Gray FIA    
  M. C. J. Hews BSc, FIA    
  A. C. Keate CFP, ACII    
  D. G. Lane BComm (Hons)
  A. Moon, Chief Financial Offi cer MBA, F Fin, MAICD    
  C. M. Taplin BSc (Hons), MSc, MBA
   S. J. Whyte MC Inst M, ACII    
  S. A. Wood BSc, FCII Managing Director UK    
   
Company Secretary  Mrs R. J. Hall FCIS    
      
Registered and  Beaufort House,     
Head Offi ce  Brunswick Road,     
  Gloucester GL1 1JZ    
  Tel: 0845 777 3322    
       
Company Registration   24869    
Number       
       
Investment Management  19-21 Billiter Street,     
Offi ce  London EC3M 2RY    
  Tel: 0845 604 4840    
       
Auditor  Deloitte LLP,    
  London    
       
Solicitors  Speechly Bircham LLP,     
  London    
       
Registrar  Computershare Services PLC,    
  The Pavilions,     
  Bridgwater Road,    
  Bristol BS13 8AE    
       
 * Non-Executive Directors    
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UNITED KINGDOM REGIONAL CENTRES  
     

Central Offi ce: 7th Floor, 
  9 Colmore Row, 
  Birmingham B3 2BJ 
 Tel: 0845 605 0209 
      
London Offi ce: 19-21 Billiter Street, 
  London EC3M 2RY 
 Tel: 0845 608 0069 
      
Southern Offi ce: Fitzalan House,
  Park Road,
  Gloucester GL1 1LZ
 Tel: 0845 604 4240
    
Northern Offi ce: 1st Floor, 3 Hardman Square,
  Spinningfi elds,
  Manchester M3 3EB
 Tel: 0845 603 7554
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UNITED KINGDOM BUSINESS DIVISION AND 
INTERNATIONAL BRANCHES 

Ansvar Insurance Managing Director: R. Lane TD, BA, FCII, MCMI, MCGI  
Business Division Offi ce: Ansvar House,  
  St Leonard’s Road,  
  Eastbourne BN21 3UR  
 Tel: 01323 737541  
       
Canada branch General Manager
 and Chief Agent: S. J. Whyte MC Inst M, ACII  
 Chief Offi ce: 20 Eglinton Avenue West, Suite 2200,  
  P.O. Box 2004,  
  Toronto, Ontario M4R 1K8  
       
 -  Eastern Region Manager: M. Thornhill BA, FCIP, CRM  
 Offi ce: 1969 Upper Water Street, Suite 2106,  
  Purdy’s Wharf, Tower 2,  
  Halifax, Nova Scotia B3J 3R7  
       
 -  Western Region Manager: tba  
 Offi ce: Suite 630 Box 20,  
  Bow Valley Square 1,  
  202-6th Avenue S.W.,  
  Calgary, Alberta T2P 2R9  
       
 -  Pacifi c Region Manager: E. M. Mak BA, BSc, FCIP  
 Offi ce: Suite 1795, Two Bentall Centre,  
  555 Burrard Street, Box 239,  
  Vancouver, British Columbia V7X 1M9  
       
 -  Central Region Manager: tba  
 Offi ce: 20 Eglinton Avenue West, Suite 2200,  
  P.O. Box 2004,  
  Toronto, Ontario M4R 1K8  
       
 -  National Programmes Manager: J. Williamson CIP, CRM  
 Offi ce: 20 Eglinton Avenue West, Suite 2200,  
  P.O. Box 2004,  
  Toronto, Ontario M4R 1K8  
       
 -  Risk Managed Accounts Manager: J. Wleugel BA, CRM  
 Offi ce: 20 Eglinton Avenue West, Suite 2200,  
  P.O. Box 2004,  
  Toronto, Ontario M4R 1K8  
       
Ireland branch Manager: D. G. Lane BComm (Hons)  
 Offi ce: Fitzwilliam Business Centre,  
  77 Sir John Rogerson’s Quay,  
  Dublin 2  
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INSURANCE SUBSIDIARIES AND AGENCIES

Ansvar Insurance Limited Chief Executive Offi cer: A. Moon MBA, F Fin, MAICD 
 Head Offi ce: Ansvar House, 
  Level 12, 
  432 St Kilda Road, 
  Melbourne VIC 3004 
      
 - Victoria Regional Manager: J. Valeras ANZIIF (Assoc) 
  PO Box 1655, 
  Level 12, 
  432 St Kilda Road, 
  Melbourne VIC 3004 
      
 - New South Wales Regional Manager: I. Ireland BComm, ANZIIF (Snr Assoc) 
  PO Box 20547, 
  Level 20, 
  44 Market Street, 
  Sydney NSW 2000 
      
 - Queensland Regional Manager: V. Miller ANZIIF (Snr Assoc) 
  GPO Box 747, 
  43 Peel Street, 
  South Brisbane QLD 4001 
      
 - South Australia Regional Manager: J. Nili DipFs 
  PO Box 630, 
  Unit 6, 202 Glen Osmond Road, 
  Fullarton 5063 
      
 - Western Australia Regional Manager: L. Drabble ANZIIF (Snr Assoc) 
  PO Box 840, 
  Unit 9-10, 
  162 Colin Street, 
  West Perth WA 6005 
      
ACS (NZ) Limited Chief Executive Offi cer: A. Moon MBA, F Fin, MAICD 
(previously known as  PO Box 7042, 
Ansvar Insurance Limited)  Wellesley Street, 
  Auckland 1141 
      
Ecclesiastical Life Limited Chairman: M. H. Tripp BSc, ARCS, FIA 
 Head Offi ce: Beaufort House,  
  Brunswick Road,  
  Gloucester GL1 1JZ 
      
Ecclesiastical Underwriting Director and Underwriter: K. P. Cannon FCII 
Management Limited Offi ce: 19-21 Billiter Street, 
  London EC3M 2RY 
 Tel: 020 7283 0666 
      
South Essex Insurance Director: B. W. Fehler 
Brokers Limited Offi ce: South Essex House, North Road, 
  South Ockendon, 
  Essex RM15 5BE 
 Tel: 01708 850000 
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NOTICE OF MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the annual general meeting of Ecclesiastical Insurance Offi ce plc will be held at Beaufort House, Brunswick Road, 
Gloucester, GL1 1JZ on Thursday, 21 June 2012 at 12:15 pm for the following purposes:

Ordinary business
1. To receive the report of the Directors and accounts for the year ended 31 December 2011 and the report of the auditor thereon. 

2. To re-elect Mr W. M. Samuel as a Director. *

3. To re-elect Sir Philip Mawer as a Director. *

4. To re-elect Mr D. Christie as a Director. *

5. To re-elect Mr M. C. J. Hews as a Director. *

6. To re-elect Mr J. F. Hylands as a Director. *

7. To re-elect Mr A. P. Latham as a Director. *

8. To re-elect Mr M. H. Tripp as a Director. *

9 To re-elect Ms D. P. Wilson as a Director. *

10. To re-elect Mr S. A. Wood as a Director. *

11. To consider the declaration of a dividend. 

12. To re-appoint Deloitte LLP as auditor and authorise the Directors to fi x their remuneration.

Special business
To consider and if thought fi t to pass the following resolution as a special resolution:

13. THAT:

 a)  Pursuant to section 618 of the Companies Act 2006, each of the issued Ordinary shares of 10 pence in the capital of the Company be 
and is hereby sub-divided into 2.5 Ordinary shares of 4 pence with each sub-divided share having the rights and being subject to the 
restrictions attaching to Ordinary shares under the Articles of Association; and

 b)  The Articles of Association be altered by the deletion of the wording in Article 5(A) and the substitution in its place of the following:

   “EIO’s shares are ordinary shares of 4p each and 8.625 per cent Non-cumulative Irredeemable Preference Shares of £1 each 
(Non-cumulative Irredeemable Shares). The rights attaching to the Non-cumulative Irredeemable Shares are as follows.”

By order of the Board
Mrs R. J. Hall, Secretary

20 March 2012

* Brief biographies of the Directors seeking election or re-election are shown on pages 30 to 31. 

Only a member holding Ordinary shares, or their duly appointed representative(s), is entitled to attend, vote and speak at the annual general 
meeting.   

A member holding Ordinary shares is entitled to appoint a proxy or proxies (who need not be a member of the Company) to exercise all or any 
of their rights to attend speak and vote on their behalf at the meeting. Such a member may appoint more than one proxy in relation to the annual 
general meeting provided that each proxy is appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares held by that member.  

Any corporation which is a member holding Ordinary shares can appoint one or more corporate representatives who may exercise, on its behalf, all 
of the same powers as that corporation could exercise if it were an individual member, provided that they do not do so in relation to the same share 
or shares and that they act within the powers of their appointment.  

This notice is sent purely for information to the holders of 8.625% Non-cumulative Irredeemable Preference shares who are not entitled to attend 
and vote at the meeting.
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NOTES





Ecclesiastical Insurance Office plc (EIO) Reg. no. 24869. this company is registered in England at Beaufort House, Brunswick Road, Gloucester, GL1 1JZ, UK. EIO is authorised and regulated by the 
Financial services Authority and is a member of the Financial Ombudsman service and Association of British Insurers.
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